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heart of everything we do. ‘‘
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A caring progressive society 
that supports its members. If 
you meet a Forester, you know 
you’ve met a human being.

A satisfied Foresters member, 2016

‘‘
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The value to our members – both 
from the policies and the additional 
benefits – continues to be recognised 
by the market.

John Instance, Chairman

‘‘
‘‘
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This has been the year the Board has developed its plan 
to ensure the future of the Society. We have considered:

• the needs of our customers in our chosen markets;

• our track record of outstanding customer service;

• our Courts and our people; and

• our capital strength.

Your Board believes that the successful implementation 
of its plan will see Foresters establish its position as the 
UK’s most member-centric Friendly Society. 

The Environment
2016 has been an interesting year. Political events in the UK 
and around the world have shaken up the status quo. This has 
increased uncertainty about the operating environment for our 
own business and for the businesses in which we invest our 
policyholders’ funds. 

On the positive side, investment markets have generally performed 
well despite some expert predictions to the contrary. The FTSE All 
Share total return index increased by 12.5% over 2016. Interest 
rates have fallen – the yield on 10-year UK Government bonds 
fell by 0.7% over 2016 to just 1.24%. This has been good for the 
investments in the Order Insurance Fund which have earned a total 
return of 12% in 2016. However, not all investment classes have 
performed as well. The UK property market had been subdued in 
the wake of the Brexit referendum result, but recovered towards the 
end of the year. This has had an impact on the Court Funds which 
achieved a total return of 9.9% in 2016.

The reduction in interest rates over the year is not all good news. It 
has put significant pressure on our profit margins by increasing the 
cost to the Society of the guarantees provided by our with-profits 
products. One consequence is a reduction in some annual bonus 
rates declared for 2016 despite the good overall investment return. 

Business Performance
The value to our members – both from the policies themselves 
and the additional benefits provided through Foresters Extras – 
continues to be recognised by the market. We had record sales 
in 2016 of £3.0 million on an Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) 
basis, up 91% on our 2015 results. APE, which is an alternative 
performance measure used for life insurance sales, is described 
in note 3 on page 69. We have ambitious plans to develop our 
product range in 2017 to include a Lifetime ISA and Junior ISA. 

 In support of our product offering, we have continued to maintain 
the high level of service we provide. This is demonstrated by 
the very positive feedback we received in our surveys of new 
policyholders and claimants. More details are provided in the 
Chief Executive’s report on page 11. However, we are not 
complacent and so are investing in a new Member Hub to 
enhance the experience that prospective customers, existing 
policyholders and other members have when they interact with 
us. We are also investing in improved back-office processes 
and IT systems to ensure we continue to deliver market-leading 
customer service as we continue to grow the business and 
expand our product offering.

Chairman’s report
It is with pleasure that I present my first statement as 
Chairman of the Society. 

Overview



We aim to improve 2017 profits through organic growth and 
a combination of expense reductions and changes in benefits 
provided for new business. A reduction in the fees paid to our 
Non-Executive Directors commencing in January 2017, is the  
first of those actions.

The Court Network
Our Courts are a vital market differentiator for Foresters. We 
were therefore pleased to welcome Myles Edwards to the Society 
in January 2016 as a Board Adviser, to then be appointed as 
Membership Director in June 2016. Myles has developed a 
six-point strategy in close collaboration with the Membership 
Committee, led by the High Chief Rangers, Linda Levett and her 
successor, Glyn Carpenter. This strategy will be implemented over 
the next three years and includes the recruitment of new Fraternal 
members. More details are contained in the Strategic Report on 
page 14. Successful implementation of this strategy will ensure 
the future of the Court network by improving its relevance to 
current and new members and providing opportunities for 
new members to get involved.

Reporting Changes
The regulatory regime under which we operate changed on 1 
January 2016. We have elected to make our financial reporting 
for 2016 consistent with this new regime. Therefore, we have 
restated the 2015 results. One of the key differences is that 
liabilities now include an estimate of the value of the full amount 
we expect to pay out as claims, including final bonuses on with-
profit policies, rather than a prudent estimate of only the value of 
guaranteed benefits. This change increases our reported liabilities 
by £19.2m at 31 December 2015. As a result, the Fund for Future 
Appropriations at 31 December 2015, which is a measure of the 
capital supporting the insurance business of the Society, reduced 
by £19.7 million to £21.5 million. The Board considers these 
revised accounts reflect the financial performance and capital 
position of our business more appropriately.

We wish to emphasise that the financial strength of the Society 
has not changed, but the revised presentation provides clarity  
of the members’ capital invested in the insurance business.  
The changes are explained in greater detail in Note 29.

Capital Management
The Board aims to grow that part of the Fund for Future 
Appropriations which is held outside the ring-fenced with-profit 
funds. This will be achieved by continuing to underwrite Group 
insurance business profitably and reducing the unit costs we  
incur in acquiring and maintaining our individual insurance 
products, both with-profits and unit-linked.

We regularly monitor our capital position and your Board made 
some strategic decisions during the year to reduce the business 
risks we run. Two key decisions were to:

•  reduce the average target percentage of equities and property 
in the Order Insurance Fund to 50%; and

• sell the equities held in our non-profit funds.

We will continue to seek to reduce risks related to non-core activities 
in order that our capital can be deployed to grow our business.

The Board
Mike Wilkinson retired as Chairman at the 2016 High Court in 
Telford. He stabilised the Society after the turbulent events of 
2011 and 2012, and led the Society through the successful 
takeover and amalgamation of the Post Office Insurance Society 
business. He left the Society in a sound financial position able to 
exploit opportunities to develop Foresters and all that it represents. 
As I said at High Court, we all owe him a significant debt of 
gratitude for his work on our behalf.

As well as Mike Wilkinson’s retirement at High Court 2016, we 
also lost Penny O’Nions and David Watkins as Member Directors. 
Penny, who was elected to the Board in 2007, had brought with 
her a wealth of experience in financial services. David’s valuable 
insights reflected his many years of service to the Foresters, twice 
serving as High Chief Ranger and on the Board and years serving 
in the districts, areas and courts. We welcomed Helen Mackinnon 
and John Garrett as Member Directors, who have already made a 
positive contribution to Board deliberations.

At the 2017 High Court in Scarborough, we will say goodbye 
to Kathryn Vagneur as a Professional Director after nine years 
of exceptional service. Kathryn is a staunch supporter of the 
value that Foresters and its members deliver both to its 
policyholders and the wider community. Her experience of 
corporate governance, investments, risk management and 
the business world will be a loss.
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I would like to thank the 

whole Foresters team for their 

dedication to our members 

throughout 2016.

John Instance, Chairman

‘‘
‘‘
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Trevor Batten and Erik Vynckier were elected onto the Board 
at the 2016 High Court as Professional Directors to fill the gap 
left by Mike and Kathryn.

Our People
There has been debate about discrimination in pay levels by 
gender for a number of years and more recently over high pay for 
business leaders. From April 2017, larger firms employing 250 or 
more staff will have to publish information on comparative rates 
of pay between male and female employees. The Government is 
currently consulting on a requirement to publish information on 
the relative pay of the Chief Executive compared to all employees. 

As a mutual, as well as being committed to treating our 
policyholders fairly, we also consider it important to treat our 
employees fairly. We agreed at the 2015 High Court to move 
towards being an accredited Living Wage employer. The Board 
has decided that it will provide information on the differential in 
pay between our male and female employees and on the relative 
pay of our Chief Executive. An analysis of our pay levels by gender 
indicates that on average, our female employees earn 81.8% of 
the salary earned by our male employees. Our Chief Executive 
earned 5.04 times the level of our average employee. More details 
are included in the Remuneration Committee’s report.

Thanks and Congratulations
I would like to thank the whole Foresters team – those in 
Southampton and Tunstall, the Area Co-ordinators and our Court 
and POIS Introducers – for their dedication to our members 
throughout 2016. Everyone has made a difference.

There are three teams that I would like to congratulate:

•  the Marketing team led by Sally Waterfield for producing a 
year of record sales - their great work has continued into the 
New Year;

•  the Insurance Operations team led by Grant Streader. It is not 
easy to earn the high levels of policyholder satisfaction that 
they have achieved again this year;

•  finally, the Area Co-ordinators and Branch Services team led 
by Tony Lewis. Their dedication to Foresters and high level of 
support to our Courts has been outstanding.

John Instance 
Chairman 
6 April 2017
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The Society has made good progress 
against all strategic objectives and 
continues to receive independent 
testament to its high levels of 
member satisfaction.

Paul Osborn, Chief Executive

‘‘
‘‘
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From Solvency II to the EU Referendum, 2016 has 
brought considerable challenge in addition to 
our ongoing need to increase policy sales and 
member numbers. 

Organic Growth
In contrast to the previous two years, our growth in 2016  
has been entirely organic. The strategic sales and marketing 
project has been developed into a six point, three year marketing 
and distribution strategy by a team led by Myles Edwards, 
Membership Director.

Myles and his membership and marketing teams have spent 
2016 focussing on delivering changes identified in the Strategy. 
The aim is to grow the Society’s membership and ensure that 
existing members have access to products and services that are 
relevant to and valued by them. Their work is described in more 
detail on pages 14 and 15.

The Board reviewed the current product portfolio, considering new 
products which would be relevant for our members and prospective 
members. This culminated in a product strategy that forms the 
foundation of our 2017-19 Business Plan which aims to;

•  address our existing product range given the current low 
interest rate environment

•  introduce two new products to our current product range, 
the Junior ISA (JISA) and Lifetime ISA (LISA), which will be 
launched in 2017; and 

•  provide third party general insurance products that meet our 
member’s requirements. These will include Home, Travel and 
Car insurance along with a fully guaranteed Funeral plan.

I am delighted to report that during 2016 new individual business 
sales on an Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) basis exceeded the 
Society’s 2016 Business Plan by 8% and is the highest APE since 
the Society was incorporated in 2003. The Society’s gross premium 
income for 2016 increased by £1.6m year on year to £20.5m.

The demographic of new members has begun to change, in 2016, 
the majority of new policyholders who were first-time Foresters, 
were under 50. This provides us with an opportunity to keep these 
new members with us through their evolving life stages. Our 
challenge will be to provide products and services that are suitable 
for, and support them throughout the rest of their lives.

Although we substantially grew our new business, high levels 
of maturities and other claims meant our membership base 
fell in 2016. Whilst the Society grew its membership base in 
2014 through the acquisition of POIS, by 2018 the Society’s 
total membership base will begin to grow organically if the 
current trend continues.

Whilst our focus is on organic growth, further acquisitions will 
be considered as this would enable the business to be scaled 
up and significantly grow our member numbers. However, 
acquisitions need to be the right fit for the Society, both aligned 
to our product portfolio and suitable for building long-term 
relationships with those new members.

Chief Executive’s 
report
It gives me great pleasure to present my fifth annual Chief 
Executive’s report. We have seen some significant changes 
during my tenure as Chief Executive and I believe that 2016 
has been one of the most challenging years yet. 

Overview



Member Matters
The Court Review project is now being progressed with the support of 
the Membership Committee. Six key objectives have been identified 
to enhance our membership proposition and secure the future of our 
Courts. As part of our strategy to increase member engagement, 
Miscellany, our member’s magazine was relaunched. Miscellany is 
unique to Foresters – it is content about our membership produced by 
the members, for the members. I would like to congratulate Christine 
Carpenter as Editor for the successful re-launch - 3,000 members 
have opted to receive a copy on a quarterly basis.

Underpinning our member strategy are activities intended to build 
strong member communities and demonstrate our caring values.  
The HCR’s appeal raised £85,670 for Alzheimer’s Research UK; 
17,106 members attended social events; £472,793 of discretionary 
benefits were paid out by Courts and there were 6,879 care and 
befriending contacts by Courts to members requiring support.

We continue to receive exceptional scores for our customer service. 
Our net promoter score (a simple measure reflecting the loyalty 
of customers and how likely our customers are to recommend us) 
continues to improve to 63 (2015: 60) against a back drop of a 
financial services sector average of 42. Overall, 97% of new members 
and claimants were satisfied or very satisfied with their experience 
with Foresters. I am pleased that the overwhelming majority of 
members enjoy their interactions with the Society and we will strive 
to uphold these high standards and remain the member-centric 
organisation we have always been.

2016 has seen the introduction of a PAYE system for all payments 
to Court officers, to meet HMRC’s requirements for real-time 
reporting. Setting up and administering 188 individual payrolls in 
respect of the UK mainland Courts has been a time consuming 
process and I would like to thank those members involved for 
their patience and support in this matter. 

Regulation

Solvency II
Solvency II has continued to be a major focus in 2016. This 
has required further development of our governance and risk 
management framework, the identification and measurement of 
our risks and calculation of the capital which must be held against 
those risks. We spent considerable time on the disclosures, reporting 
and transparency requirements around these risks and capital 
requirements. More details will be provided in a new report, our 
Solvency and Financial Condition Report, which will be available  
on our website, towards the end of May.

Work in Progress
Further regulatory projects were commenced in 2016, and they will 
continue into 2017. These relate to the Financial Conduct Authority’s 
(FCA) Review on the ‘Fair Treatment of Long-Standing Customers 
in the Life Insurance Sector’ and the European initiative on Key 
Information Documents.

The aim of the FCA review is to ensure life insurers safeguard their 
‘closed-book’ customers, those with products that are no longer  
sold, and that they are treated fairly. While we consider that the 
Society meets the requirements in this area, we intend to follow  
newly emerging recommendations to ensure that we adopt best 
practice in all areas, not just in our closed funds.

We are also monitoring developments relating to Key Information 
Documents (‘KIDs’) which will provide standardised information 
about packaged retail investment and insurance-based investment 
products. They are designed to give customers clear and comparable 
information on the products available from different insurers and other 
providers to improve transparency and increase competition across 
the single market.

The Society has a project to implement the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) that comes into effect from May 2018. We are 
confident that we will meet our obligations under this legislation 
and will provide our members, policyholders and employees with 
heightened protection of their personal data.

Review of 2016

Premium Income
Gross Premium income has increased by £1.6m since 2015, from 
£18.9m in 2015 to £20.5m in 2016. For individual business, our 
new business on an Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) has increased 
significantly to £1.9m (2015: £1.5m) on our alternative performance 
measure (refer to note 3 on page 69), which combined with new APE 
for Group business of £1.1m (2015: £0.1m) results in new APE for 
the Society as a whole of £3.0m (2015: £1.6m).

Group Business
In respect of our Group business, we acquired two new schemes with 
a combined APE of £1.1m.

Following two years of higher than expected group claims paid, we were 
pleased to see that 2016 claims were close to our expected level.
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Our members are the focus 

of what we do and I am 

pleased to see the number of 

members actively engaging 

with the Society increase.

Paul Osborn, Cheif Executive

‘‘
‘‘
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Expenses
Our business as usual expenses have remained under control. 
However, there have been significant one-off projects costs  
in relation to the implementation of Solvency II of £239k. The 
Board has committed to develop our IT systems including end- 
to-end processing, self-service and member zone functionality.  
This project commenced in 2016 with project costs totalling £76k. 
The Board is currently reviewing the options materialising from the 
IT project and will provide an update at High Court 2017.

Investment Returns
Our total investment return including both realised and unrealised 
investment gains has increased in 2016 to £27.5m (2015: £15.8m). 
This is due to positive performances on each of our main asset 
classes in 2016, with realised and unrealised gains totalling 
£17.3m (2015: £5.5m). This includes unrealised gains of 
£8.4m on Equity, £2.5m Fixed Interest and £3.8m on our 
property holdings which have recovered since the devaluation 
in the immediate wake of Brexit.

CIF Unit Price
At the High Court in June 2015, delegates voted to unitise the 
Court Investment Fund from 1 January 2016. Unitising the Court 
Investment Fund ensures that the change in value of its assets 
is passed back to each Court individually by adjusting their Court 
Investment Fund balance appropriately. The unit price at 31 
December 2016 was £1.0477. This reflects the positive total 
return on the property portfolio over 2016.

Thank You
2016 was a busy year for the Society which means that our 
teams have continued to work hard, often over and above 
expectations. Their efforts and skills are crucial to the Society’s 
success in serving our members and acting as advocates as 
we introduce new members.

In particular I would like to acknowledge the work of the 
Membership Committee, adding value in the development 
of strategy, refreshing the Court Handbook and supporting 
operational decision making.

Our members are the focus of what we do, and to them I would 
also like to say thank you. I am pleased to see the number of 
members actively engaging with the Society increased year-
on-year and I hope this continues. There are many passionate 
members whose contribution to the Society is immeasurable 
through the value of their feedback and engagement with 
management and their fellow Foresters. This is demonstrated by 
the level of attendance and positive atmosphere at High Court 
2016 and in the feedback they have given which will be 
invaluable as we look forward to High Court 2017.

Summary and Outlook
Whilst 2016 has undoubtedly brought its challenges, the Society 
has made good progress against all strategic objectives and 
continues to receive independent testament to its high levels of 
member satisfaction. We continue to develop our product offering 
and member benefits to ensure they support our members 
throughout life in the 21st century. 

2017 will see the Society embark on a significant project to 
develop its IT systems with the objective of providing employees 
and members with the tools and technology required to meet the 
Society’s strategic goals. We are reviewing our systems needs  
for a Marketing Automation and Customer Relationship tool  
and a robust and future-proofed Policy Administration system.  
The benefits will allow us to increase sales via the ability to 
develop our digital marketing and acquisition capability, enable 
new commercial partnerships, diversify our own product range,  
as well as offer a fully online customer journey. 

We are positive about our prospects for future growth and look 
forward to another year of progress in 2017.

Paul Osborn 
Chief Executive  
6 April 2017
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About Foresters
We have been helping families for over 180 years. The ‘Ancient 
Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited,’ which trades as 
Foresters Friendly Society, was established in 1834, although 
our origins lie in a much older society called the Royal Foresters, 
formed around 1745. 

Before the development of the National Health Service and 
employer health insurance and other financial services, friendly 
societies played an important part in the lives of many people.  
Our first members came to recognise they had a duty to assist their 
fellow men who fell into need ‘as they walked through the forests of 
life’. This ‘need’ arose principally when a breadwinner fell ill, could 
not work and received no wages. Illness and death left families 
financially distressed and often destitute.

Addressing this need has been the main purpose of Foresters 
Friendly Society throughout its long history. Members recognised 
that by paying a few pence a week into a common fund, they would 
be able to receive sick pay and funeral grants when needed.

In the modern era, Foresters is a mutual insurance business with 
a social, fraternal and benevolent mission. The Society delivers a 
wide range of benefits to members, including savings, investment 
and insurance products and additional fraternal benefits, called 
Forester’s Extras. As a mutual friendly society, there are no 
shareholders: profits are distributed to with-profits policyholders 
in the form of bonuses and are also used for the benefit of all 
members through the Forester’s Extras membership package.

The Society offers a range of products that are simple, flexible and 
affordable and are backed by excellent customer service. Products 
range from individual with-profits and unit-linked savings and 
investment policies to group life and sickness insurance. Every 
individual Foresters member has access to a unique range of 
valuable Forester’s Extras, from free nurse advisers to discretionary 
grants, all made available at no additional cost.

The structure of the Society encourages members to participate 
in local branches, known as Courts. The Society has 190 Courts 
spread across the UK and the Channel Islands that meet socially 
on a regular basis to provide friendship and support to one another. 
Each Court is responsible for its own affairs. As well as having 
policyholders as members, the Courts have fraternal members – 
individuals who do not hold a Foresters policy and participate 
in Court activities.

Today, the Society is led by a Board consisting of Executive 
Directors (ED) and Non-Executive Directors (NED). The Board 
is responsible for developing the strategy of the Society and 
the related Business Plans, and the NEDs provide constructive 
challenge, advice and oversight to management.

Objectives and Strategy
As a mutual Friendly Society, we offer a service which aims to 
make a positive impact on the lives of members.

The Board regularly reviews the Society’s strategy. Our 
current strategy, which remains unchanged in its objective, 
is to continue to grow the Society by offering good value 
savings, investment and insurance products whilst retaining 
our core values of providing excellent customer service and 
worthwhile member benefits.

To support this strategy, our mission statement is:

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The corporate objective is to grow the Society in the 
following areas:

• assets under management;

• number of members;

• annual premium income; and

• member capital.

While growing the Society, we will continue to:

• operate within our defined risk appetite;

• control costs;

• maintain customer and member service satisfaction levels; and

• increase member engagement in court activities. 

The aim is to grow the Society’s membership and ensure that 
existing members have access to products and services that are 
relevant to and valued by them. During 2016, this work has been 
primarily in the following areas:

•  court proposition – building a strong central offering 
of member benefits, services and products that build 
membership and sustain the court structure; 

•  member benefits – rationalising little used benefits such as 
the GP consultation services and welfare benefits helpline;

•  digital marketing – enhancing through referral sites, search 
engine optimisation and pay-per-click campaigns;

•  content marketing – developing content such as online 
thought leadership;

Strategic Report

To be the most member- 
centric financial mutual 

in the UK



•  brand treatment –updating presentation of our brand 
in literature and online to make it more attractive and 
easier to read;

•  POIS Introducers – improving to increase results and 
geographic coverage;

•  Court Introducers – launching an improved programme 
in April 2016.

The Board considers that the Society needs a membership base 
of 100,000 to operate effectively and therefore has targeted 
doubling the rate of new business acquisition over the next 
three years from 4,000 to 8,000 new members a year. This 
will require further development of the themes identified in the 
marketing and distribution strategy and future plans include:

•  enhancing digital capability to enable members to manage 
their entire customer journey with Foresters online if they 
so wish – this would combine access to policyholder 
information such as policy valuations in the same place 
as member information such as discretionary benefits 
applications, charitable donations, applying for Court 
positions through to booking local Court social events;

•  supporting Courts to recruit new members through Fraternal 
Membership campaigns;

•  developing the POIS brand and product offering in order to 
expand distribution capability outside the main Royal Mail 
sorting offices through advertising and digital channels;

• increasing sales through the IFA distribution channel; 

•  expanding introducer networks and developing 
affinity partnerships;

•  offering additional products to provide a range of savings 
and investment solution for every life stage. 

Business Model
The Society’s insurance business can be divided into two 
distinct parts – products available to individual members 
either directly online or via our network of introducers and 
financial adviser intermediaries, and products provided to 
organisations as group schemes. The current group schemes 
cover a range of organisations from police federations through 
to agencies of charity workers. 

What we Sell
The Society currently offers a range of financial products that 
are simple and affordable and are backed by excellent customer 
service. The main individual products are:

• regular premium with-profits and unit-linked savings plans;

• with-profits individual savings account (ISA);

• with-profits investment bond; and

•  regular premium with-profits whole life assurance for 
the over-50s.

A medical insurance policy is also provided to residents of 
Guernsey and Alderney covering primary healthcare costs.

Group products provide insurance protection against death and 
terminal illness, incidence of a critical illness, and loss of pay as a 
result of sickness.

The graph below represents the new APE by product. This is 
an alternative performance measure with more detail provided 
in note 3 on page 69.

A key outcome of the Product Proposition Strategy has been the 
decision to develop and launch two new products to complement 
the existing product range: a Lifetime ISA and Junior ISA. We 
are also engaging with third parties to provide a range of general 
insurance products that meet member requirements.
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New APE by 
Product

  Regular premium with profits & 
unit-linked savings plans - 50%

 With-profits ISA - 8%

  With-profits Investment Bond - 
3%

  Regular premium with-profits 
whole of life over 50s - 2%

 Group - 37%
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How we Sell
Currently our products are promoted to members and potential 
members in a number of different ways:

•  online advertising and social media (Facebook, Twitter, 
LinkedIn and others); 

•  direct mail and member services telephone team; 

• introducers (court and POIS); 

•  IFA - sales made via independent financial advisers (IFA) or 
professional introducers;

• group business via specialist brokers.

The graph below represents the new APE by sales channel. This 
is an alternative performance measure with more detail provided 
in note 3 on page 69.

The Society will continue to review methods of distribution and 
make changes to enhance business results where required.

Key Markets
Whilst the Society seeks to offer products and benefits to 
members from all age groups, key markets are:

• young families (in 30s and early 40s);

• older families (in 40s and early 50s); and 

• those pre/at retirement (late 50s and early 60s).

It is recognised that the Society has a large number of older 
members who make up an important part of our base. These 
members are among the most active members making the most 
of the companionship, social activities and benefits offered by 
Courts. While they may not buy new financial products, we want 
them to be advocates of our offering and to introduce Foresters to 
their friends and relations in our target markets.

Foresters Extras – Member Benefits
When a policy is taken out with the Society, members are 
automatically given access to Foresters Extras at no additional 
cost. Membership can also be purchased as a stand-alone 
product. The current package of additional benefits on  
offer includes:

Grants for:

• optical and dental care;

• hardship grants for adults and children in special need; and

• educational awards.

During 2016, the amounts paid out in grants are shown 
in the following graph.

Foresters Care - a confidential, independent care advisory 
service. During 2016 52 members accessed this service 
(2015 42 members).

Access to the Manchester Unity Credit Union which gives access 
to low premium savings and short term loans. During 2016, 
14 members joined the Manchester Unity Credit Union. 

The Society supports a convalescent home in Bridlington, 
Yorkshire. Members can stay for up to two weeks over two years 
and non-members, such as spouses, can accompany them for a 
charge. During 2016, 135 members stayed in the home to rest, 
recuperate and recover following illness (2015: 160 members).

 Online - 10%

 Direct - 17%

 Introducer - 29%

 IFA - 7%

 Group - 37%

New APE by 
Sales Channel

  Optical and Dental Care - 
£260,935

  Hardship grants for adults 
and children in special need - 
£43,860

  Educational awards - £48,950

Grants Paid 
During 2016

Strategic Report (continued)
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Our Courts
Forester’s Courts are central to its governance and fraternal 
structure. These are geographical groups of members who 
manage their own funds and support social, fraternal, educational 
and benevolent activities. Each Court elects its own officers and 
delegates to represent their Court at High Court (the Annual 
General Meeting) of the Society. These High Court delegates elect 
the Society’s Directors, who are responsible for oversight of the 
business, and a High Chief Ranger to represent Courts at internal 
and external events. This approach provides a governance 
structure for members to have their say in their Society. 
Communication with and representation of the members occurs 
through a Membership Committee and the Area structures. 
Miscellany supports our commitment to keep all members 
regularly updated on Society and Court matters. 

There are currently 190 Courts which are the local point of 
contact for members. The Courts seek to promote the ethos of the 

Society and encourage members to meet for social, business and 
benevolent purposes. They also organise charitable fundraising 
events. The discretionary benefits provided by Courts are selling 
points for the insurance operation and, in the case of the insurance 
operation, sales provide new members for the Courts.

Since 2008 a process known as accreditation has ensured that 
Courts operate to a consistent standard and members receive a 
high level of support from Courts. Each Court is run by a Committee 
of Management responsible for the control of the business of 
the Court within the Rules and procedures of the Society. Each 
Court has a Secretary who is responsible for the accounting and 
administration of the Court. The Courts are grouped into larger 
geographic areas. Each Area is supported by an employee of the 
Society, called an Area Co-ordinator. The Area Coordinators ensure 
that the Courts in their Area adhere to corporate objectives and 
they, along with the Membership Committee, act as a conduit 
between the Courts and the Board and Management.

Overview

Developing Discretionary Grants Develop a relevant grants programme to support all members to access and benefit from support, reduce 
administrative demands on Courts and support discretionary decisions.

Care and Befriending Develop a Court befriending programme to support existing activities, link with partners, support more members 
and deliver great social impact outcomes.

Court Committee of Management 
and Volunteering

Build and promote a range of Court and Foresters roles to appeal to a wider range of members supporting Court 
sustainability and a life skills programme. This includes succession planning for key positions within the Courts.

Conferences, Socials and 
Member Engagement

Build an effective, affordable and accessible conference strategy to increase new member attendance and 
engagement in conferences and social events. Develop a tracking programme that captures the social impact of 
members attending Court socials and engaged membership.

Charity Fundraising and Support Develop a National HCR and local charity strategy that supports wider engagement across the membership base, 
celebrating success and lasting community benefits.

Developing Insight and 
Communication

Capture evidence of Court activities and member outcomes that support promotion of best practice across Courts 
and externally to drive an increase in member engagement and consideration of non engaged members.

Court Development Six-Point Strategy
The Board, taking account of the advice of the Membership Committee, has agreed a six-point strategy to develop the Court network over 
the next three years and ensure Courts remain relevant to all members. These include:



High Chief Ranger
The role of High Chief Ranger (HCR) is of a presidential nature 
acting as a figurehead for the membership, representing and 
promoting Foresters Friendly Society and is a key link between 
the insurance side of the Society and the members.

The HCR is the Chairman of the Membership Committee and 
shares the responsibility of chairing High Court with the Chairman 
of the Board. At the invitation of the Board, the HCR attends a 
number of Board meetings during his or her term of office.

Linda Levett was elected HCR at High Court in June 2015.  
Linda chose Alzheimer’s Research UK as her charity for 
2015/16. Alzheimer’s Research UK is the UK’s leading 
research charity aiming to defeat dementia. Its vision is a world 
where people are free from the fear, harm and heartbreak of 
dementia. During 2015/16, the Courts raised a total of £85,670 
for Alzheimer’s Research UK which will make a significant 
contribution towards the valuable work they do.

Glyn Carpenter, HCR during 2016/17, has chosen to support 
Canine Partners during his term of office. Canine Partners 
transforms the lives of people with physical disabilities by 
partnering them with assistance dogs. These amazing dogs 
bring a greater independence and quality of life to their partners, 
offering security, companionship, and practical help with everyday 
household tasks. Canine Partners receives no government funding 
and relies solely on donations and legacies from the public to help 
them continue their life-transforming work.

Finances
Court funds are maintained in separate ring-fenced funds which 
are only available to the Courts. At 31 December 2016, total Court 
funds amounted to £78.9m (2015: £75.3m). The make-up of the 
Court Investment Fund at 31 December 2016 was as follows:

In addition to the Court funds there are a number of 
discretionary funds valued at £12.9m (2015: £12.0m) with 
specific purposes as determined by the Society. These are set 
out on page 78. Court income primarily derives from investment 
income, membership fees and other fundraising activities. 
Court expenses include the costs of administering the Courts, 
investment charges and grants and donations.

The amounts that Courts returned to members is shown in 
the table below;
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 Fixed Interest - 8% 

 Property - 76% 

 Cash - 8% 

 Other excluding Cash - 9%

Court 
Investment 

Fund December 
2016

Type 2016 £ 2015 £

Grants 495,411 515,469

Donations 194,508 170,537

Social subsidies 432,788 423,179

Strategic Report (continued)



19

Overview

Financial Highlights

Introduction
The results for 2016 are set out in detail on pages 54 to 99 and 
summarised below together with the Society’s Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs). The KPIs show the six key measures that the Society 
uses to assess its performance covering premium income, expenses, 
membership, complaints, financial strength (as measured by the FFA) 
and assets under management.

In summary, premium income is up, the Fund for Future Appropriations 
(FFA) (on the restated basis) has increased, complaints have remained 
low, funds under management have increased, although expenses are 
higher and membership numbers have fallen.

Premium Income
Gross long term premium income has increased in 2016 to £20.5m 
(2015: £18.9m). 2016 premium income includes £5.4m in respect 
of Unit-linked products (2015: £5.3m). New business calculated on 
an Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) basis increased significantly to 
£3.0m (2015: £1.6m) with annualised regular premiums of £2.6m 
(2015: £1.3m) and single premiums of £4.2m (2015: £2.9m).  
Gross premium income of the Guernsey (medical insurance) general 
business remained consistent at £2.3m (2015 £2.2m).

Investment Income
Despite gloomy predictions and the uncertainty surrounding the results 
and the implications of the EU Referendum, growth in the UK economy 
held up in 2016 at 1.9%, compared to 2.2% in 2015. Inflation remains 
at a low level, although slightly higher than in 2015, and on the CPI 
measure the deflation seen in 2015 has not been repeated. The 
unemployment rate has fallen from 8% at the start of 2013 to around 
5%, although the pace of decline has slowed. The rate of average 
annual pay growth has slowed over 2016 although it is still rising faster 
than inflation to give real pay growth.

The Bank of England cut interest rates in the aftermath of the vote to 
leave the EU, from 0.5% to 0.25%. Yields on 10-year UK Government 
bonds have been volatile, ending the year down 0.7% despite being 
down almost 1.5% following the EU Referendum. Although in the US 
the Federal Reserve increased interest rates by 0.25% in December 
2015 and again in December 2016, there are still no firm indications 
of when UK interest rates are likely to rise.

2016 has been another year of considerable volatility in UK equity 
markets, with the FTSE All-Share total return index recovering from 
mid-February lows with strong gains in April, to close up 12.5% at 
the end of the year.

Following 2 years of exceptional returns from the Society’s property 
portfolio, and the downturn in the property market experienced 
immediately following the EU Referendum, the portfolio produced a 
positive total return of 12.5% in 2016.

The total investment return (including unrealised gains and losses) 
for the insurance funds amounted to £16.7m (2015: £5.2m). The 
investment returns for the major insurance funds were as follows:

The total investment return (including unrealised gains and losses)  
for the other funds amounted to £9.2m (2015: £10.3m). This arises 
from significant unrealised capital gains on property holdings in 2016 
£3.7m (2015: £5.8m).

Claims
Claim payments (including the Guernsey general insurance  
business but excluding claims administration expenses) were  
£26.2m (2015: £27.2m).

Total Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses (excluding investment expenses) amount to 
£9.0m (2015 restated: £8.1m). The increase is due to one-off project 
costs for Solvency II, costs for development of the Society’s IT systems 
and higher acquisition costs reflecting increased levels of new business.

Court Benefits 
In 2016 the Courts paid out a total of £970,000 (2015: £1,027,000) in 
dental and optical grants, discretionary benefits and charitable donations. 

Total Assets
The Society holds total assets of £276.5m (2015: £263.1m). 
Investments held include a mixture of equities, fixed interest 
stocks, property and cash. Other assets include debtors, 
prepayments and accrued income.

Fund

2016 
Investment 

Return
£’000

2016 
Investment 

Return 
as % 

of fund

2015 
Investment 

Return
£’000

2015 
Investment 

Return 
as % 

of fund

Order 
Insurance Fund

7,390 12.0 2,438 3.3

POIS Ring 
Fenced Fund

2,082 7.4 749 2.3

Other closed 
with-profit 
funds

930 7.5 200 1.6

GCF 1,700 8.6 243 1.1

Non Profit 
Funds

6,268 11.8 1,825 3.1
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Fund for Future Appropriations
The FFA stands at £24.4m (2015: £41.2m, 2015 restated: £21.5m 
see note 29) and represents the member capital – the estimated 
surplus in the funds that has not been allocated to with-profits 
policyholders and is available to meet regulatory capital and business 
requirements. Following the adoption of the Solvency II regulatory 
regime for financial reporting, the FFA has reduced significantly, as 
amounts available for distribution to with-profits policyholders are 
now included in the long term business provision of £151.8m (2015: 
£127.6m, restated £146.7m.) and not the FFA as previously.

Financial strength
The available capital resources consist of the Fund for Future 
Appropriations adjusted to meet regulatory requirements. The 
total available capital resources amount to £24.2m, an increase 
of £2.7m over the restated 2015 available capital resources. 
Although the 2015 restatement showed a decrease of £16.2m, 
due to the increase in reported liabilities now reflecting the full 
amount expected to be paid out in claims, this is a more appropriate 
reflection of our available capital and not a change in the financial 
strength of the Society.

The Society is required to hold additional capital to cover its Solvency 
Capital Requirements (SCR) which are calculated in accordance with 
the PRA rules. The total SCR of the Society amount to £12.3m (2015: 
£15.2m). The Society aims to hold available capital in excess of the 
SCR and to manage the available capital within risk limits. 

The Society has not been subject to any regulatory capital actions or 
breached its capital requirements in the last 12 months.

Further details are set out in note 21 on pages 83 to 85.

KPIs
The Society uses a number of KPIs to manage and monitor its 
business performance. (These are shown in the tables that follow). 
The 2014 results include POIS from the date of acquisition (26 
September 2014) to the end of 2014.

Premium Income
Premium income is the total income generated by the Society through 
regular premiums, new business and additional contributions. 
The main reason for the increase in premiums between 2014 and 
2015 was the addition of the POIS book of business for the entire 
financial year. Group regular premium income is 0.8% lower in 2016 
compared to 2015, and Individual regular premium income increased 
by 3.8% in comparison to 2015. Single premium income for 2016 

was 45% higher than in 2015 driven primarily by £0.6m higher 
Bond income from new business, £0.3m higher ISA income from 
new business and £0.3m higher ISA contributions to existing policies 
compared to 2015.

Further details of premium income are set out in note 3.

Total Operating Expenses
Expenses are managed through the setting of budgets within the 
business planning process and a regular review and challenge 
process throughout the year. This is a KPI as with-profits 
policyholders’ returns and members’ capital are directly affected by 
the costs of operating the business. Expenses in 2016 have increased 
by £0.9m compared to 2015 restated mainly due to project costs 
and higher levels of new business and associated acquisition costs. 
Further details on net operating expenses are set out in note 7.

Year
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Overview

Branch            Non-technical            Insurance

Individual Membership
The size of the membership base is an indication of the scale of the 
Society. It is expressed as the total number of members (including the 
Guernsey branch) at the end of the financial year. As at 31 December 
2016 the Society had 75,210 members, 2,897 members less than 
2015 (78,107). In 2016, there was an increase in new business 
volumes but high levels of maturities and other claims reduced the 
overall membership. The reduction on members from 2014 to 2015 
was mainly due to the closure of Leek policies.

 
Fund for Future Appropriations
The FFA is used as an indicator of financial strength and the ability of 
the Society to meet its regulatory capital and business requirements. 
The current value of £24.4m exceeds the Society’s regulatory capital 
commitments. The 2015 FFA reduced by £19.7m to £21.5m as 
a result of the revised accounting policy for the measurement of 
technical provisions. The 2016 FFA increased by £2.9m over the 
2015 restated, largely reflecting positive investment returns. 

Complaints
Membership satisfaction is core to the Society. The Society 
measures member satisfaction by a number of different means, 
principally member retention, member complaints, investment 
performance and results of membership surveys. Complaints are 
managed through the Society’s complaints process to ensure they 
are dealt with promptly and fairly. 

The number of complaints received in 2016 was 20, of which 3 
were upheld. In 2015 the corresponding number of complaints was 
28 with 6 being upheld. In common with prior years the incidence 
of complaints remained low. During the year the FCA’s new 
requirements around the handling of complaints and the reporting of 
complaints were successfully implemented.

 

Total Assets 
The value of total assets is another key indicator of the scale of the 
Society. Total assets show the growth in the value of the business 
over time, through both increased sales, profitability, expense control 
and investment returns. As at the end of 2016, total assets were 
£276.5m (2015 £263.1m).
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Risk

Risk Management
Effective risk management supports the Society in delivering its 
strategy. It also protects policyholders and members and helps 
with the efficient use of capital.

The Society’s Risk Management and 
Control Framework
Risk is managed through the adoption of a Risk Management 
and Control Framework.

Risk is considered from both a financial and non-financial 
perspective. For each risk, mitigation and action plans are 
developed and monitored. Any material changes to those risks are 
reported to the Risk and Capital Committee and the Board. 
Risks that could impact the Society within a one-year period are 
monitored through the use of Risk and Control Assessments. 
The Society also uses stress testing as part of the Own Risk 
and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) process and to determine its 
Minimum Capital Requirement and Solvency Capital Requirement 
under the Solvency II regime.

Risk Strategy and Risk Appetite
The Society’s Risk Strategy, which is designed to support the 
achievement of the Society’s corporate objective, is: 

•  Foresters is a Friendly Society in the business of taking 
on risks in the course of providing financial solutions for 
members, where they can be managed efficiently;

•  Foresters will focus on risks where it is believed it can provide 
value to members, and for which members are willing to pay 
the appropriate amount. These are primarily insurance and 
investment risks;

•  risks are only taken that will be rewarded and where we have the 
appropriate skills available to manage them. Risks that expose 
the Society to very volatile or extreme potential outcomes which 
would threaten our ability to continue, are avoided.

The Society’s risk appetite supports the delivery of the risk strategy. 
It is the level of risk the Society is prepared to take whilst pursuing 
its business strategy. The risk appetite is determined by the Board. 
The Board also determines the risk tolerance from the stated risk 
appetite which provides a framework for Management to apply risk 
limits and any actions. Management monitors the Society’s risk 
profile against the risk appetite and reports this to the Board. 

The Society’s current risk profile is shown in the graph below – the 
graph sets out the relevant proportion of risk exposure in capital 
terms based on the Society’s Solvency Capital Requirements. The 
risks are described in more detail in note 25. The most significant 
capital requirements for the Society are in respect of increases in 
mortality and morbidity (Insurance Risk) and falls in equity markets 
(Market Risk). The risk profile changed over the year as the Society 
reduced exposure to equities and property in its insurance funds in 
response to investment market conditions.

 Market - 19% 

 Credit - 7% 

 Default - 6% 

  Insurance - 46% 

 Business - 12% 

 Operational - 4%

 Pension - 6%

Current  
Risk Profile
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Risk Governance
The Society operates a Three Lines of Defence model of risk management to enable defined roles and responsibilities for Committees and individuals. 

First line day to day risk management is delegated from the Board to the Chief Executive and then to the management team. 

The CFO and CRO positions are both held by one individual, Sally Butters. In fulfilling the 2nd line responsibilities, the CRO is supported and 
overseen by the Society’s Risk and Capital Committee, which has ultimate responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Risk Function, 
as delegated by the Board.

Risk oversight is provided as the second line of defence by the Risk and Capital Committee, Chief Risk Officer and the Business Risk and 
Compliance Committee (BRCC). Specialist Risk Management and Compliance capability supports this. Standardised Risk Management 
Information is produced for the Risk and Capital Committee to support the Committee in discharging its responsibilities. This Risk Reporting is 
shared with the Board on a quarterly basis. 

To ensure an effective third line of defence, an independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal 
control system is provided by the Audit Committee, which is supported by the Internal Auditors. 

Further detail is provided on the role of the Risk and Capital Committee and the Audit Committee on pages 37 to 38 and 41.

The Society’s Risk Management Framework and Risk Policies set out the specific requirements for the management of the principal risks.

Governance structure

1st line of defence

Business
Ownership, accountability and 

responsibility for risk

Board

Executive and Senior Management

Department Managers

All Staff

2nd line of defence

Risk Function
Facilitate, coordinate, challenge, 

support, train and educate

CRO and Risk Manager

Compliance

Actuarial and Chief Actuary

Risk and Capital Committee

Business Risk and Compliance 
Committee

3rd line of defence

Assurance
Independent 
assessment

Internal Audit

Audit Committee

Own Risk and Solvency Assessment
The ORSA conducted by the Society includes all the processes for risk identification, risk assessment and measurement, risk management including 
capital, monitoring and reporting that are in place as part of the overall Risk Management Framework. The Board, with support from the Risk and 
Capital Committee and the CRO, undertake a regular assessment of the principal risks. This assessment is a key component of the ORSA process.

The output of the ORSA processes is detailed within regular reporting to the Board as part of the ongoing ORSA assessment, with an annual 
ORSA Report produced following completion of the Business Plan process in Q4.

The ORSA output and the associated stress and scenario testing are key components for the assessment the Directors consider to determine 
the statement regarding the viability of the Society in the Directors’ Report on page 31.
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Risk (continued)

Risk 2016 and future Risk management

1.  Market Risk 
– Lower gilt yield 
position

Exposure to this risk increased this year after the EU referendum in June 
2016 due to the fact there was a significant further drop in gilt yields 
which had already been falling from the start of the year. This impacted 
the Society’s capital position by increasing the value of liabilities and 
led to a review of the Society’s capital and consideration of appropriate 
management actions to reduce market risk taken and reduce the level of 
guarantees in new business.

The Bank of England reduced the Base Rate to 0.25% in August 2016 
and this may be maintained throughout 2017.

•  monitoring of gilt yields is undertaken daily and 
reported to the Investment Committee and Risk and 
Capital Committee on a regular basis 

• oversight by the Investment Committee

•  review product design to reduce embedded 
guarantees

2.  Market Risk 
– Financial Market 
Volatility

Volatility in the equity, bond and currency markets was seen throughout 2016, 
with Brexit and the US elections being sources of volatility. It is expected that 
volatility will remain during 2017 and beyond.

Higher volatility increases the value of guarantees within policies written.

•  risk appetite measures and monitoring in place

• investment strategy including trigger points

•  diversified portfolio of assets and asset benchmarks

• oversight by the Investment Committee 

3.  Regulatory 
Risk – Unable to 
meet regulatory 
changes (GDPR, 
PRIIPs, TR16/02, 
Solvency II)

The Society has been preparing for up-coming regulatory changes 
expected in 2017/2018 including Packaged Retail and Insurance Based 
Investment Products (PRIIPs), Key Information Documents (KIDs) and 
General Data Protection Regulation.

Regulators continue to focus on the fair treatment of customers, 
particularly on product design, advice, product lifecycle and the after 
sales process.  The Society is addressing regulator recommendations on 
long standing customers (TR16/02).

The Society continues to comply with the Solvency II regulations now in 
force to further embed these regulations into the business.

• project management capability

• project governance and planning/reporting

•  risk assessments with appropriate actions and 
controls

•  BRCC monitoring of progress and escalation to the 
Risk and Capital Committee

• oversight by the Committees and Board

• customer surveys

4.  Strategic 
Risk – Failure of 
IT project to deliver 
targeted efficiencies 
within budget and 
timescales

During 2016 a new risk was identified as a result of the Society’s 
ambition to improve and future proof its IT systems, this poses a material 
change risk and risks associated with not meeting identified efficiencies 
and the project plan. A project commenced in 2016. As at the end of 
2016 the Society issued a ‘Request For Tender’ to chosen IT system 
providers. 

• robust project management process

•  monthly MI monitoring of project expenses vs 
estimated costs with detailed variance analysis

•  regular management discussions on visible 
progress against project milestones

• steering Group and Board oversight

• Internal Audit review of the IT project

5.  Strategic Risk 
– Failure to address 
product profitability 
and product mix 
during the Business 
Plan period whilst 
meeting increased 
sales targets

Due to the size and complexity of the fund structure that the Society 
operates, level of regulation to adhere to and current levels of new 
business, the Society has a higher than average expense position. This 
expense position has an impact on the Society’s capital and profitability. 
To make more efficient use of capital and improve the profitability 
position, the Society will review its product profitability and product mix 
to ensure a sustainable position for the future.

• project management capability

• project governance including budget

• appropriate resourcing

•  monthly progress reporting to steering group/Senior 
Management

•  full Risk Assessment with appropriate actions and 
controls

• oversight by the Board

Details of risks associated with Solvency and Liquidity can be found on pages 91 to 94.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The types of principal risks the Society is exposed to are strategic, insurance, financial, market, operational, counterparty default, conduct and 
regulatory. The table below summarises the current principal risks the Society has identified and is managing alongside other key risks as part 
of its top risk assessment, taking into account the likelihood and the impact of the risk occurring. These risks are closely monitored and regular 
updates are given to the Board and the Risk and Capital Committee.
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Developments in Risk Management
The Society continued to embed Risk Management throughout 2016 aligned to Solvency II requirements. The Society further developed its ORSA 
process, reviewed and refreshed its Risk Management Framework document as well as the Risk Appetite and Risk Policies during 2016.

By Order of the Board

Lisa Russell 
Company Secretary 
6 April 2017



The depth of passion that the 
members have for our Society 
and their commitment to making 
it better and helping those in need 
never ceases to impress me. 

‘‘

‘‘A satisfied Foresters member, 2016
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Board of Directors

Trevor Batten 
Non-Executive Director

Trevor was elected to the Board in June 2016. Prior to his retirement in 2015, he held the position of Risk  
Director and CRO for Engage Mutual where he worked for 22 years and was a member of the Executive 
Committee. His experience includes risk management, actuarial reporting and with-profits business. Trevor  
is a Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries. He is a director of Family Assurance Staff Pension  
Scheme Trustees which provides trustee services to the Family Assurance Staff Pensions Scheme and the 
Homeowners Friendly Society Pension Scheme.

Chairman of the Audit and Reserving Committees, With-Profits and Unit-Linked Advisory Arrangements.  
He is also a member of the Risk and Capital Committee.

John Instance 
Chairman

John was appointed to the Board in 
December 2012. In June 2016 he was 
appointed to the position of Chairman for 
which regulatory approval was subsequently 
received. He retired in 2015 from his 
role as Acting Director, Actuarial Policy in 
the Codes and Standards Division at the 
Financial Reporting Council. His experience 
includes business management, product 
development, actuarial reporting, as well 
as setting and overseeing Business Plans. 
John is a Fellow of the Institute and Faculty 
of Actuaries and has a BA inMathematics 
from Oxford.

Chairman of the Nominations Committee 
and member of the Investment Committee.

Paul Osborn 
Chief Executive 

Paul joined the Society in 2006, was 
appointed to the Board as Finance Director 
in February 2007 and as Chief Executive 
in November 2012. He is a Chartered 
Accountant with over 20 years’ experience 
in the friendly societies industry and over 
10 years working for a London based firm 
of chartered accountants. Prior to joining 
Foresters, Paul worked for Teachers 
Provident Society holding senior positions 
in finance and investment. Paul is a 
member of the Board of the Association of 
Financial Mutuals.

Member of the Investment and the Risk 
and Capital Committees.

Myles Edwards 
Membership Director

Myles was elected to the Board in June 
2016. He was previously Commercial  
and Distribution Director at Age UK 
Enterprises Ltd, where he was responsible 
for developing and implementing the  
new commercial and distribution model. 
He has extensive experience as a Director 
in Financial Services and Social Enterprise. 
Myles is a member of the Royal London 
Independent Governance Committee.

Member of the Membership Committee.

John Garrett
Non-Executive Member Director

John was elected to the Board in June 2016. He retired from the role of Practice Principal to his Financial 
Services practice in 2011 having served his private and corporate clients for 26 years. John has been an 
active member of the Society since 2010 and previously served as an elected Member of the Membership 
Committee. John is a partner in 3J and K Properties and Desire Properties.

Member of the Membership and Remuneration Committees and the With-Profits and Unit-Linked  
Advisory Arrangements.
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Helen Mackinnon
Non-Executive Member Director 

Helen was elected to the Board in June 2016. She is a fifth generation Forester who has been an 
active member since age 16 and held many positions within the Court structure. She is a qualified 
Chartered Certified Accountant and in 2013 obtained her law degree. Her experience includes audit, 
business management advice, cash flows, accounts and tax. Helen is the owner and director of H2H 
Accountancy Limited, Trustee and Treasurer for Herriot Hospice Homecare charity and Company 
Secretary to Bean Creative Limited and Bay Dreamer Yachts Limited.

Member of the Audit, Nominations and Remuneration Committees and the With-Profits and Unit-Linked 
Advisory Arrangements.

Graham Setterfield
Non-Executive Director

Graham was elected to the Board in June 2015. Graham previously held the positions of Director and 
Chief Executive for American Express Insurance Services Europe Limited as well as various marketing 
and management positions within the insurance sector including Aegon. Graham has an HND in 
Business Studies from the University of West England. Now semi-retired Graham is involved with the 
Prince’s Trust as an Enterprise & Next Steps Scheme Business Mentor.

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. He is also a member of the Nominations and the Risk and 
Capital Committees, and the With-Profits and Unit-Linked Advisory Arrangements.

Kathryn Vagneur
Non-Executive Director

Kathryn was appointed to the Board in March 2008, elected to the position of Deputy Chairman in 
September 2012, and appointed Senior Independent Director in June 2016. She was previously a 
Director with PricewaterhouseCoopers. Kathryn has a PhD from London Business School where she 
undertook research for the CBI and consulted on strategy implementation with FTSE100 companies. 
She is a Certified Public Accountant and has a MSc (Management), BSc (Maths) and researches, 
teaches and writes about corporate governance and business improvement. Kathryn is a Director of 
Durant Holdings, Vietnam Equity Holding and Vietnam Property Holding, an Instructor at the Edinburgh 
Business School and a Trustee of the Royal United Services Institute. 

Chairman of the Risk and Capital Committee and member of the Audit and the Investment Committees.

Erik Vynckier 
Non-Executive Director

Erik was elected to the Board in June 2016. He was previously Chief Investment Officer at 
AllianceBernstein responsible for asset management and capital management for life insurance clients, 
and has held a number of senior roles managing with-profits and annuity funds. Erik graduated as a 
Chemical Engineer in Belgium and subsequently completed an MBA at London Business School.

Chairman of the Investment Committee and a member of the Risk and Capital Committee.

The Directors may be invited to become a member of other companies, subject to the appointment not leading to a conflict of interest 
and the agreement of the Society. These appointments provide an opportunity to gain broader experience and therefore benefit the 
Society. All external commitments are listed above and have been approved by the Board.

Corporate Governance
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Directors’ Report
Introduction
The Society’s Board of Directors present their report together 
with the audited accounts of The Ancient Order of Foresters 
Friendly Society Limited (the Society) for the year ended 31 
December 2016. The Society is a friendly society which 
incorporated under the Friendly Societies Act 1992 on 1 January 
2003. Its core business objective is to provide financial services 
products to its members in addition to discretionary financial, 
social and benevolent benefits. At 31 December 2016 the 
Society had 75,210 members (2015: 78,107 members).  
The Directors confirm that the Society did not carry out any 
activities outside its powers during the year.

Directors
The Directors who have served since 1 January 2016 are as follows:

Non-Executive Directors
Mike Wilkinson – Chairman (retired 13 June 2016)

John Instance – Chairman (appointed as Chairman 
13 June 2016)

Kathryn Vagneur – Deputy Chairman, Senior 
Independent Director 

Trevor Batten (co-opted 10 February 2016 and elected 
13 June 2016) 

John Garrett (elected 13 June 2016)

Helen Mackinnon (elected 13 June 2016)

Penny O’Nions (retired 13 June 2016)

Graham Setterfield

David Watkins (retired 13 June 2016)

Erik Vynckier (co-opted 10 February 2016 and elected 
13 June 2016)

Executive Directors
Paul Osborn – Chief Executive 

Myles Edwards – Membership Director (elected 13 June 2016)

Business Review
The Board sets objectives and priorities supported by KPIs 
and targets, which it monitors on an ongoing basis throughout 
the year. A summary of the results for the year together with 
the KPIs are contained in the Strategic Report on pages 14 to 
21. The results of the Society are set out in the Income and 
Expenditure accounts on pages 54 to 56.

The Society consists of its Insurance and Court operations.  
The consolidated results include the results of the Leeds 

Investment Association, as outlined in Note 2 to the financial 
statements and the Guernsey Court’s general insurance 
business. The Society also has one wholly owned subsidiary 
company – Foresters General Insurance Services Limited, but 
this subsidiary is effectively dormant. Its results are not material 
and are not included in these financial statements.

The Society retains surplus capital of £11.9m (2015 restated: 
£6.2m) as shown in Note 21.

The key risks facing the Society together with how they 
are managed, mitigated and reported are documented 
on pages 22 to 25.

Regulatory
The Society is regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority 
(PRA) which is responsible for the Prudential Regulation of firms 
and the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) which retains the 
responsibility for conduct issues concerning the distribution of 
products to customers and how these products are administered. 

As described in the Chief Executive’s Report on page 11, 2016 
has seen the Society focus on embedding Solvency II following 
implementation on 1 January 2016.

The Society remains clear over its obligations to the Regulators 
and the Society’s own Rules, its Principles and Practices of 
Financial Management (PPFM), Money Laundering rules, Bribery 
Act, Data Protection Act and Advertising and Health and Safety 
requirements and legislation. 

Statement of the Directors’ 
Responsibilities
The Friendly Societies Act 1992 (‘the Act’) requires the Directors 
to prepare accounts for each financial year which give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Society at the end of the 
year and of its income and expenditure for that year. In preparing 
those accounts the Directors are required to:

•  select suitable accounting policies 
and apply them consistently;

•  make judgements and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent;

•  state whether applicable United Kingdom accounting 
standards have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

•  prepare the accounts on the going concern 
basis unless it is inappropriate to assume that 
the Society will continue in business.
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The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting 
records, which must show and explain the transactions of the 
Society and disclose the financial position of the Society with 
reasonable accuracy at any time, and enable them to ensure 
that the accounts comply with the Act and the regulations under 
it. They are also responsible for the system of internal control, 
for safeguarding the assets of the Society and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and the detection of fraud 
and other irregularities. The Directors consider the Report and 
Accounts herein, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and 
understandable and provides the information necessary for 
members to assess the Society’s performance, business 
model and strategy.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the maintenance and 
integrity of the corporate and financial information included 
on the Society’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom 
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial 
information differs from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability 
Insurance
The Society has maintained liability insurance cover for members 
of the Board and Senior Management of the Society.

Society’s Relationship with Members
As a branch-based friendly society, members are allocated to 
branches (known as “Courts”) which are represented through a 
delegate system at the Society’s Annual General Meeting (known 
as “High Court”). The Annual General Meeting takes place over 
three days and includes detailed discussions between the Board 
and member delegates on the performance of the Society and 
strategic issues. The Society’s delegate system has proven to 
be an effective model for communication with 302 delegates 
attending in 2016. Conferences are also held each year at which 
the views of Court members are obtained.

To enhance engagement with members outside of the 
conferences, the Society re-launched its member newsletter, 
Miscellany, and conducts an independent Customer Satisfaction 
Survey. Highlights of the survey can be found in the Chief 
Executive’s Report on page 11.

The Membership Committee acts as a conduit between the 
Board and the members through which matters of direct 
interest are considered.

Statement of Risk Management and 
Internal Control
The Board, Audit Committee and the Risk and Capital Committee 
have reviewed the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control 
system, including financial, operational and compliance controls 
and risk management, in accordance with the Code for the period 
from 1 January 2016 to the date of approval of this Annual Report.

No significant failings or weaknesses were identified 
during this review. 

Going Concern
Under the Code the Directors are required to state whether the 
business is a going concern. The Directors are of the opinion 
that the Society has adequate capital resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason 
the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis for the 
Society’s accounts. In assessing whether the going concern 
basis is appropriate, the Directors have considered all relevant 
information including the information contained in the financial 
statements, the latest Business Plan forecasts and estimated 
forecasts of solvency.

Longer-term Viability Statement
The Board is also required to assess the prospects of the Society 
over a longer period than the 12 months required for the going 
concern review.

In considering the longer-term viability of the Society the Board 
has identified the principal risks facing the Society and the basis 
of these risks. The Society’s risk mitigation is set out within the 
risk report on pages 22 to 25.

The Society uses a stress testing approach to calculate its 
economic capital requirements, the results of which are set out 
in the annual ORSA report. This is supplemented by sensitivity 
and scenario testing to aid understanding of the key risks 
faced. These scenarios help contribute to the Board’s decision 
making process when considering the longer-term viability of 
the Society. The longer-term viability of the Society is further 
supported by the Society’s operational Business Plan. 

A three year look forward was chosen as this is the period 
over which the Society has reasonable clarity over its likely 
cashflows and key risks.

Corporate Governance
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The analysis showed that on all bases of measurement, the 
Society was operating within risk appetite in aggregate, and 
highlighted actions to be taken on individual with-profit funds to 
more closely align them within risk appetite. These actions have 
been implemented during 2016.

The results demonstrate that the Society would still be within risk 
appetite after setting aside capital for another acquisition and to 
cover non-insurance expenses in the group capital fund over the 
business planning period.

The three year Business Plan shows the Society to still have 
considerable financial strength at the end of 2019, even in 
the event of falling sales, failure to complete an acquisition or 
significant falls in investment markets. This is demonstrated 
through the Society’s ORSA and Stress Testing processes.

As a result of the analysis and reviewing the three year Business 
Plan for 2017-2019, prepared by Management, the Directors 
have a reasonable expectation that the Society will be able to 
continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over 
the period of assessment without qualifications or assumptions.

Donations
The Society donated £3,050 (2015: £3,676) to various charities 
during the year from Head Office. No political donations were 
made during the year. 

Courts carry out charitable fundraising work as part of social 
activities and in 2016 £101,119 (2015: £66,589) was raised.  
In total £194,508 (2015: £170,538) was paid out from branch 
held membership funds to various local and national charities. 

Each year the Society’s High Chief Ranger chooses a charity to 
support. Members and staff throughout the country support the 
appeal and during 2015/2016 a total of £85,670 was raised 
for Alzheimer’s Research UK. As previously reported the HCR’s 
chosen charity for 2016/2017 is Canine Partners.

Independence of External Auditor
Deloitte LLP was appointed as external auditor to the Society 
on 13 June 2016 and has confirmed their independence to the 
Board of Directors. Deloitte LLP has expressed their willingness 
to continue in office as auditor and a resolution to reappoint them 
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Statement of Disclosure of Information 
to Auditor
Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of this report 
confirms that, so far as each of them is aware, there is no 
information relevant to the audit of the Society’s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 of which the 
auditor is unaware; and the Director has taken all steps that he/
she ought to have taken in his/her duty as a Director to make 
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to 
establish that the Society’s auditor is aware of that information.

By Order of the Board

Lisa Russell 
Company Secretary 
6 April 2017

Directors’ Report (continued)
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The Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is the Governing Body of the whole of the 
Society’s activities. The Board is responsible for the direction 
and management of the business of the Society in the fulfilment 
of its mission and strategic objectives and in compliance with 
the Society’s Memorandum, Rules and any applicable legislation 
and regulation and the Society’s policies, principles and values.

In pursuance of its strategic objectives, the Board maintains 
a schedule of matters specifically reserved for the Board 
and it exercises all those powers that are not by Regulation, 
Legislation, or by the Rules required to be exercised by  
the Society at the Annual General Meeting or a Special  
General Meeting.

The size and composition of the Board and the Sub-Committees 
are kept under review by the Nominations Committee to ensure 
there is adequate succession planning for Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors, and there is an optimum mix of skills 
and experience on the Board and to populate and chair the 
Sub-Committees. Over the last two years the Board has put in 
place succession plans and duly appointed new Board members 
in 2016 to cover the departure of Mike Wilkinson (former 
Chairman) and the forthcoming departure of Kathryn Vagneur. 
The appointment of John Instance as Chairman was an internal 
appointment and formed part of this succession plan.

The composition of the Board at the end of 2016 is a mix of 
five Non-Executive Professional Directors, two Non-Executive 
Member Directors and two Executive Directors. A ‘Professional 
Director’ is identified as having recent insurance industry 

knowledge and experience, and a ‘Member Director’ is one 
drawn directly from the membership, having knowledge of the 
Society’s fraternal activities. The Board believes the balance 
of skills, experience, independence and knowledge remains 
appropriate although it will continue to monitor the position 
to comply with evolving regulatory requirements and to 
complement the Society’s Strategy. The particular skills 
and experience that each Director brings to the Board are 
included on pages 28 to 29.

In December 2016 the Board resolved that following conclusion 
of the 2017 Annual General Meeting, the total number of 
Directors on the Board shall be no more than eight being up to 
four Non-Executive Professional Directors, two Non-Executive 
Member Directors and up to two Executive Directors.

The Board delegates certain parts of its responsibilities to Sub-
Committees and to Advisory Arrangements which operate within 
defined Terms of Reference. Their associated reports on their 
activities during 2016 are provided on pages 37 to 42.

The Terms of Reference for the Board, its Sub-Committees and 
Advisory Arrangement are available on the Society’s website at 
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/governance

Governance Arrangements
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An entry of 2/3 means 2 out of a possible 3 meetings.

1 John Instance was appointed as Society Chairman on 13 June 2016 and subsequently stepped down as Chairman of the Audit Committee and Advisory Arrangements. He continued 
his role as Chairman of the Nominations Committee as permitted by the Code.

2 Trevor Batten was appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee and Advisory Arrangements on 29 June 2016. He was also appointed as Chairman of the Reserving Committee in 
December 2016.

3 The Executive Directors are invited to attend the Sub-Committees and Advisory Arrangement meetings as required.

4 Erik Vynckier was appointed as Chairman of the Investment Committee on 29 June 2016.

Board Audit Investment Membership Nominations Remuneration Reserving
Risk and 

Capital 
With Profits 

and 
Unit-Linked

NUMBER OF MEETINGS 13 8 6 8 4 4 2 7 5

Mike Wilkinson
(Chairman to June 2016)

6/6 - 2/2 - - - - - -

John Instance1 (Chairman 
from June 2016)

13/13 4/4 6/6 - 4/4 - - 2/2 3/3

Trevor Batten2 (from 
February 2016)

12/13 7/7 - - - - 2/2 4/5 4/4

Myles Edwards3 
(elected June 2016) 

13/13 - - 7/7 - - - - -

John Garrett 
(elected June 2016)

6/7 - - 4/4 - 1/1 - - 2/2

Helen Mackinnon 
(elected June 2016)

7/7 4/4 - - - 1/1 - - 2/2

Penny O’Nions 
(retired June 2016)

4/6 - 2/2 - 3/3 3/3 - - 2/2

Paul Osborn3 13/13 - 6/6 - - - - 7/7 -

Graham Setterfield 12/13 4/4 - - 4/4 4/4 - 7/7 5/5

Kathryn Vagneur 13/13 8/8 6/6 - 2/3 - - 7/7 -

Erik Vynckier4 (from 
February 2016)

11/13 - 5/5 - - - - 6/6 -

David Watkins
(retired 13 June 2016)

5/6 4/4 - 4/4 - 3/3 - - 2/2

Board Attendance Table
Directors’ attendance at meetings of the Board, the Sub-Committees and Advisory Arrangements of which they were members in 2016 is set out in 
the table below. During 2016 there were a number of changes to Directors and the composition of Sub-Committees and Advisory Arrangements but 
in all cases there was a quorum for the meetings held.

Governance Arrangements (continued)
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Chairman and Chief Executive 
The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are held by different 
people and the division of responsibilities between the two is clearly 
established, set out in writing and agreed by the Board of Directors. 

The Chairman is a Non-Executive and responsible for leadership 
of the Board and ensuring the Board acts effectively. In the 
opinion of the Board, the Chairman is independent in character 
and judgement (although this is not a requirement of the Code) 
and prior to his election as a Non-Executive Director in 2012 he 
had no previous relationship with the Society. On appointment as 
Chairman in June 2016, the Chairman had no other significant 
commitments to disclose to the Board of Directors, a situation 
that has not changed since his appointment. 

The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for managing the 
Society and for implementing the strategies and policies agreed 
by the Board.

Non-Executive Directors
The Non-Executive Directors are responsible for bringing independent 
judgement and challenge to the Board debate and its decisions.  
In the opinion of the Board, each Non-Executive Director, including 
the Chairman, is independent in character and judgement. 

The Non-Executive Directors meet without the Executive Directors 
present at least annually. 

Each Non-Executive Director is formally appraised annually.

The Non-Executive Directors may seek independent advice at the 
Society’s expense in accordance with Board policy.

Copies of the terms and conditions of appointment of the Non-
Executive Directors are available for inspection at the Society’s Head 
Office and can be viewed by contacting the Company Secretary.

Executive Directors
Two Executive Directors were in post at the end of 2016, Paul 
Osborn, Chief Executive Officer and Myles Edwards, Membership 
Director. Their performance is appraised by the Chairman.  
In appraising Myles Edwards, the Chairman considers his 
directorial duties only as his executive function is appraised  
by the Chief Executive Officer as his line manager.

Independence
The Code requires the Board to determine whether each Non-
Executive Director is independent in character and judgement and 
whether there are relationships or circumstances which are likely 
to affect, or could appear to affect, the Director’s judgement. The 
Board should state its reasons if it determines that a Director is 
independent notwithstanding the existence of relationships or 

circumstances which may appear relevant to its determination, 
including if the Director:

• has been employed by the Society within the last five years;

•  has had a material business relationship with the Society in 
the last three years;

•  has received additional remuneration from the Society apart 
from a Director’s fee or participated in any of the Society’s 
pension schemes;

•  has close family ties with any of the Society’s advisers, 
Directors or senior employees;

•  holds cross-directorships or has significant links with other 
Directors through involvement in other companies or bodies;

• has served on the Board for more than nine years.

The Board has determined that each Non-Executive Director 
meets the standards set out in the Code and can be considered 
independent, although the code does not require the Chairman 
to be assessed after appointment.

Senior Independent Director
The Code recommends that Mutual Insurers maintain a dialogue 
with their members and maintain a Senior Independent Director 
to handle issues and concerns raised by members. The Senior 
Independent Director also provides counsel for the Chairman and 
to serve as an intermediary for the other Directors when necessary.

Kathryn Vagneur is the Society’s nominated Senior Independent 
Director and she may be contacted by email at 
sid@forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk

Appointments to the Board and 
Re-election
The Appointment of new Directors is considered by the Nominations 
Committee which makes recommendations to the Board. 

Following co-option to the Board, a Director is subject to election 
by members at the next Annual General Meeting. Thereafter, in 
accordance with the Society’s Rules, each Director must retire 
at the Annual General Meeting three years after the meeting at 
which they were last elected or re-elected as a Director. A retiring 
Director may seek re-election subject to the Society’s Rules and 
the Code. A Director’s initial term of office may be reduced to 
align with Board rotation.

Trevor Batten and Erik Vynckier were elected to the Board as 
Non-Executive Professional Directors in 2016 for an initial term 
of one year to align with Board rotation and will be subject to 
re-election in 2017.

Paul Osborn was re-elected at the 2014 Annual General Meeting 
and will be subject to re-election in 2017.
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Kathryn Vagneur is due to retire at the conclusion of this year’s 
Annual General Meeting having served on the Board for nine years.

Diversity Policy
The Board recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board and 
sees increasing diversity as an essential element in maintaining 
an effective Board without compromising on the calibre of 
new Directors. The Board has adopted a Diversity Policy which 
embraces knowledge and understanding of relevant diverse 
geographies, Courts/Branches, people and their backgrounds, 
although it continues to adopt the principle that all appointments 
should be based on merit and the skills and experience that 
individual can bring, and take into account the composition, skills 
and experience on the Board. The gender balance of the Board, 
management and staff are shown in the Nominations Committee 
report on page 39.

Appraisal and Evaluation
The Code recommends that the Board should undertake a 
formal annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its 
Committees and individual Directors.

An external review of the Board by an expert consultant in the 
area of board effectiveness, Sarah Thwaite of BP&E Global, 
commenced in 2016. Ms Thwaite has no connection with 
the Society other than the appointment to review the Board’s 
effectiveness. The Board is considering a number of actions 
resulting from the review.

During the year, the Board reviewed internal evaluations on the 
effectiveness of its Sub-Committees led by the Sub-Committee 
Chairmen and assisted by the Company Secretary. 

The Directors, led by the Senior Independent Non-Executive 
Director, also evaluated the performance of the former Chairman 
and gave feedback which was also reflected in the Board 
discussion. The Non-Executive Directors and the Executive 
Directors will meet without the Chairman present to appraise the 
Chairman’s performance in June 2017.

The Chairman reviews the performance of each Non-Executive 
Director where they are encouraged to highlight any potential skills 
gaps or areas of development in order that training can be provided. 
Each Director is required to undertake a programme of continued 
professional development designed to expand and update their 
skills and knowledge, both within the Society and outside. The 
Chairman is responsible for reviewing training requirements for 
the Board as a whole and sources such training as required. CPD 
records for each Director are held by the Company Secretary and 
form part of the annual appraisal evaluation.

Compliance with The UK Corporate 
Governance Code: An Annotated 
Version for Mutual Insurers 
(‘the Code’)
The Board is committed to following best practice of corporate 
governance, wherever appropriate for the Society. The 
recommendations of the Code are applied on a “comply or 
explain” basis. This recognises that best practice should be 
followed in most circumstances but that firms also have the 
opportunity to explain why certain recommendations were not 
applied. The Board believes that, in all material respects, the 
Society is compliant with the provisions of the Code subject 
to the following areas:

Ref Extract of the Code provision where not compliant Explanation

B.7.1 All Directors of FTSE 350 companies (and mutual societies 
the size of Foresters) should be subject to annual election 
by shareholders.

As part of a review of the Society’s delegate system in 2014, 
consideration was given on whether annual elections would be 
appropriate. Given the size and delegate structure of the Society it 
was recommended not to adopt annual elections and to continue 
with the three year term as provided in the Society Rules. This 
resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting. The election 
process will remain under review.

E.2.1 For each AGM resolution, proxy appointment forms should 
provide shareholders with the option to direct their proxy to 
vote either for or against the resolution or to withhold their vote.

E.2.2 also contains requirements for proxy voting which are 
not applicable to the Society. 

The Society operates a delegate system and its rules do not 
permit the use of proxy voting. A review of whether the system 
was appropriate was carried out in 2014, using internal and 
external surveys. Given a high level of engagement at the Society’s 
AGM, it was recommended to continue with the current system 
and structure. A number of proposals to further enhance the 
engagement and participation of members are being progressed. 

Governance Arrangements (continued)
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Committee Reports
Audit Committee
The members who served on the Committee during 2016 were:

Trevor Batten (Chairman) (from June 2016)

John Instance (until June 2016) (Chairman until June 2016)

Helen Mackinnon (from June 2016)

Graham Setterfield (until June 2016)

Kathryn Vagneur 

David Watkins (until June 2016)

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Deloitte LLP, external 
auditor, and Mazars LLP, external provider of internal audit services, 
attend meetings by invitation of the Committee. The Committee also 
invites other relevant managers as necessary to provide a deeper 
insight into key issues. The Board considered that all members of 
the Committee are independent and at least one had recent and 
relevant financial experience in line with the Code.

Number of Meetings held in 2016: 8

Key Terms of Reference:
The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are described in: 

www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/governance

Key issues addressed by the Committee:

Annual Report and Accounts
The Committee reviewed the 2016 Annual Report and Accounts 
and the report from the external auditor, Deloitte LLP on the 
outcome of their audit. The significant issues that the Committee 
considered in relation to the financial statements, and how they 
were addressed were as follows:

The Committee recommended the Board move to a Solvency II basis for the Society’s technical provisions in the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended 2016. In making this recommendation, it considered that the change results in the financial statements 
providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of writing insurance business on the entity’s financial performance.

In accordance with the Code, the Committee considered whether the annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and 
understandable, providing the information necessary for members to assess the Society’s performance, business model and strategy.

Technical provisions, valuations 
and assumptions

The Committee received reports from management setting out the proposed valuation assumptions and 
methodology and a recommendation from the Reserving Committee. The Chief Actuary’s Report on the 
valuation result set out the checks undertaken to validate the data and the movement in the technical 
provisions over the year. The Committee was satisfied that the methodology and assumptions were 
appropriate and had been applied in the calculation of the technical provisions. 

Valuation of investment 
properties

For Head Office owned properties, valuations are provided by Aston Rose as our managing agents. 
Management challenge Aston Rose as appropriate particularly to understand where significant gains or losses 
have arisen since the previous valuation. The Committee was satisfied that appropriate controls were in place. 

Assumptions underlying the 
defined benefit pensions

The Society outsources the valuation of the pension schemes to third party advisors. Management review 
and challenge the proposed assumptions. The Committee was satisfied that the recognition of the pension 
obligations as an asset and liability was appropriate.

Allocation of management 
expenses

The Committee received and challenged a report from management setting out the basis of allocation 
of expenses between the insurance business and the Courts, and between the various sub-funds in the 
insurance business. The Committee was comfortable that the allocation was appropriate. 

Going concern and Longer-term 
Viability Statement

Having reviewed quarterly Management Information reports, the 2017-2019 Business Plan and capital 
projections in the ORSA, the Committee concluded that it was appropriate to adopt the going concern basis. 
The Committee concurred with management’s proposal for a three year period for the Longer-term Viability 
Statement and that the Society would be able to continue in operation over this period. 
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External Auditor
Following Deloitte LLP’s first audit of the Society, an independent 
audit was carried out to assess the effectiveness of the external 
audit process and approach.  The Committee concluded that 
the external auditors were effective and recommended their 
reappointment for a further one year term. Deloitte LLP was 
subsequently reappointed by the members at the 2016 Annual 
General Meeting as External Auditors for the 2016 year end.

The Committee assessed and agreed Deloitte LLP’s audit plan 
which identified its assessment of the key audit risks. The 
Committee met privately with the external auditors, Deloitte LLP.

The independence and objectivity of the external auditor 
was monitored and it was concluded to be satisfactory. Any 
engagement for non-audit services in excess of £10,000 
requires pre-approval of the Committee to ensure that the 
provision of such services does not impair the External Auditors’ 
independence or objectivity.

Internal Audit
During 2016 the Committee received reports from Mazars LLP, 
Internal Auditor, following audits of the Society’s (i) Conduct 
Risk and Customer Service Delivery, (ii) Group Insurance, (iii) 
Actuarial Systems and Spreadsheets, (iv) Investment, Treasury 
Management and Cash Flow, and (v) Risk Management and 
Compliance. Two further audits were carried out on Solvency 
II, focussing on the reporting deliverables and the operating 
effectiveness of the ORSA process and the Risk Management 
Framework. The Committee also received reports from the in-
house Internal Auditor on Court audits. Consideration was given 
to the findings, and particularly to management actions and 
responses to the recommendations.

Reserving Committee
The Reserving Committee is a sub-committee of the Audit 
Committee and comprises:

Trevor Batten (Chairman)

James Joiner, Actuarial Manager

The Committee may request the presence, at any of its meetings, of 
the Society’s Chief Actuary and any other individuals as appropriate

Number of meetings held in 2016: 2

Terms of Reference:
The main responsibilities of the Reserving Committee are 
described in: 
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/governance

Key issues addressed by the Committee:
As part of the process of the Board agreeing the methodology 
and assumptions for the year end valuation, the Committee 
considered in detail the approach to the cost of guarantees and 
group insurance business, the guaranteed annuity take up rates 
and the derivation of the expense assumptions.

Investment Committee
The members who served on the Committee during 2016 were:

Erik Vynckier (Chairman) (from June 2016)

Sally Butters

John Instance

Penny O’Nions (until June 2016)

Paul Osborn

Mike Wilkinson (until June 2016) (Chairman until June 2016)

Kathryn Vagneur

Number of meetings held in 2016: 5

Terms of Reference:
The main responsibilities of the Investment Committee are 
described in: 
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/governance

Key issues addressed by the Committee:
The Committee considered capital efficiency in light of economic 
conditions (in particular persistent low interest rates, aggravated 
after the Brexit vote and the rate cut by the Bank of England) and 
instigated a number of actions to reduce risk whilst maintaining 
an expectation of achieving positive real returns for members:

•  reduced market risk by selling equity in the Non-Profit and 
Pure Endowment Funds;

•  reduced the equity backing ratio in the Order Insurance Fund;

•  introduced trigger points to sell equity under adverse market 
conditions;

•  increased the holdings of index-linked gilts to more closely 
match inflation-linked liabilities;

•  increased the holdings of corporate bonds earning a higher 
credit spread than gilts;

• purchased properties in the UK in the first half of the year.

The performance of the various asset classes and funds are 
monitored on a quarterly basis to ensure they are in line with risk 
appetite and performance expectations. Asset managers Quilter-
Cheviot (fixed income and equity portfolios) and Aston Rose 
(real estate) were reviewed on a quarterly basis and interviewed 
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on a semi-annual basis. Management information on risk and 
performance of the portfolios was scrutinised, as an outcome 
of which more granular performance reporting and systematic 
follow-up have been installed.

As part of the property programme to diversify the portfolio twenty 
four properties have been sold with sales proceeds of £10.2m 
and three purchased for £9.9m. The Committee appraised new 
investment opportunities identified by Aston Rose. The core property 
portfolio experienced a total annual return of 12.5% over 2016.

Treasury management was optimised by investing cash holdings 
in a money-market fund of Royal London Asset Management and 
short term bank accounts.

The Society took steps to achieve granular investment reporting in 
line with Solvency II Pillar 3 regulatory requirements.

Alternative investment strategies to enhance real returns,  
while improving asset-liability matching, diversifying the sources 
of risk, as well as reducing Solvency II capital requirements, 
are being explored.

Membership Committee
The members who served on the Committee during 2016 were:

Glyn Carpenter (Chairman from June 2016)

Dorothy Deacon (from June 2016)

Cheryl Eagleson (from June 2016)

Myles Edwards (from February 2016)

John Garrett (from June 2016)

Shirley Grealy

Linda Levett (Chairman until June 2016)

Michael Nightingale

Andrew Pooley (until June 2016)

David Watkins (until June 2016)

Number of meetings held in 2016: 8

Key Terms of Reference:
The main function of the Committee is ‘To promote active 
Forestry, as well as act as a conduit between the Board of 
Directors and the total membership and vice versa.

The main responsibilities of the Committee are described in: 
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/governance

Key issues addressed by the Committee:
During 2016, the Committee revised its Terms of Reference and 
managed a budget in support of its extended role in promoting 
active Forestry. The Committee awarded 12 grants to less 
well-funded Courts and approved a sponsorship request from 
Foresters Brass Band.

As part of its delegated duties from the Board, the Committee 
has been active in supporting Courts to find solutions in their 
structure and numbers.

To enhance communications, the Committee appointed an Editor 
to relaunch the Society’s Newsletter, Miscellany, sponsored a 
survey of Court Secretaries’ communication needs and monitored 
a resultant action plan. The Committee considered members 
views on topics as they arose and began work on a focus group to 
hear the voice of a future generation of Foresters. As part of their 
role, the Committee attended various Area Meetings to receive 
direct feedback from members.

The Committee monitored the Society’s benevolent funds and set 
up further working groups to address specific matters:

• to review the Court Handbook and issue a revised edition;

•  to review the 2016 Court funding formula and agree changes 
with the Board for 2017;

•  to develop criteria for use in determining future funding requests;

• develop a reward and recognition scheme.

The Committee commenced a strategic review to develop an 
approach to building a strong, relevant, central offering of 
benefits, services and products that build the membership and 
sustain active members at Court level giving consideration to the 
membership structure and the role of fraternal membership.

Nominations Committee
The members who served on the Committee during 2016 were:

John Instance (Chairman)

Kathryn Vagneur (from February 2016 to June 2016)

Helen Mackinnon (from June 2016)

Graham Setterfield

Penny O’Nions (until June 2016)

Number of meetings held in 2016: 4

Key Terms of Reference:
The main responsibilities of the Nominations Committee are 
described in: 
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/governance
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Key issues addressed by the Committee:
The Committee considered candidates for the positions of High 
Chief Ranger, High Sub-Chief Ranger, Non-Executive Member 
Directors, Non-Executive Professional Directors, Membership 
Director and members of the Membership Committee. These 
candidates were presented to the 2016 Annual General Meeting 
for the consideration of the membership.

The Committee recommended and the Board subsequently 
proposed that at High Court 2016 the election of:

• Myles Edwards as an Executive Director; 

•  Trevor Batten and Erik Vynckier as Non-Executive Professional 
Directors following their co-option to the Board in February 
2016; and  

•  John Instance and Kathryn Vagneur as Non-Executive 
Professional Directors on their retirement after three years in 
accordance with Society’s Rules. Both members were excluded 
from the consideration process for their own positions.

The Committee did not consider the appointment of a new 
Chairman to replace Mike Wilkinson on his retirement. This was 
considered by the Board as a whole as reported on page 28.

The Committee reviewed and recommended changes to the 
composition of the Sub-Committees and the appointment of a 
Senior Independent Director taking into consideration the balance 
of skills, experience, independence and knowledge on the Board, 
succession planning and Board rotation.

Appropriate training is provided using in-house expertise, where 
relevant, or by external providers.

The Society operates a Diversity Policy described on page 36.The 
gender balance of the Board and staff in January 2017 was:

Remuneration Committee
The Committee is made up of three independent Non-Executive 
Directors:

Graham Setterfield (Chairman)

Penny O’Nions (until June 2016)

David Watkins (until June 2016)

John Garrett (from June 2016)

Helen Mackinnon (from June 2016)

Number of meetings held in 2016: 4

Key Terms of Reference:
The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are 
described in: 
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/governance

Key issues addressed by the Committee:
During the year, the Committee considered the Chairman, Non-
Executive Director, High Chief Ranger, High Sub-Chief Ranger and 
Members of the Membership Committee fees and recommended 
no increases be applied for 2016. 

The Committee reviewed the Chief Executive’s bonus scheme 
and given market conditions and mutual status of the Society, it 
recommended the Society entered into negotiations to end the bonus 
scheme. This was subsequently approved and the Chief Executive no 
longer participates in a bonus or long term incentive scheme. 

The Committee updated its Terms of Reference and the 
Remuneration Policy to reflect Solvency II requirements. 

In respect of 2017, the Committee considered the remuneration 
package for the Executive Directors and staff taking into account 
the economic environment, local market rates and business 
affordability, and recommended no increases be applied for 
2017 unless to align with the UK Living Wage independently 
calculated by the Living Wage Foundation. A staff bonus scheme 
rewarding individual performance and corporate objectives is 
being redesigned. Similarly, a review of Non-Executive fees was 
undertaken resulting in a recommendation to reduce fees from 
1 January 2017. Both recommendations were approved by the 
Board. Changes to Board fees are subject to approval at the 
Society’s Annual General Meeting.

The Committee considered the Gender Pay Gap Reporting 
Regulations, applicable to organisations with 250 plus 
employees, and recommended the Society adopted the reporting 
requirements where the data was meaningful.

This was subsequently supported by the Board and work has 
commenced on preparing to report.

Male Female Female 
%

Board – Non-Executive 
Directors

5 2 29%

Board – Executive 
Directors

2 0 0%

Other Management 5 5 50%

Staff 18 35 66%
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A preliminary analysis indicated that the mean hourly rate of 
pay of all employees by gender in January 2017 was £22.32 
for male employees and £15.99 for female employees. Using 
an alternative measure, the median hourly rate of pay of all 
employees by gender in January 2017 was £11.40 for male 
employees and £13.40 for female employees. This means that 
half of the 25 male employees of the Society earned more than 
£11.40 an hour and half the 40 female employees earned 
more than £13.40 an hour.

The same analysis indicated that the hourly rate of pay for the 
Chief Executive in January 2017 was £89.22. This is 5.04 times 
the average hourly rate of pay of all other employees which was 
£17.76, and 10.56 times the hourly rate of pay of the lowest paid 
employee in January 2017 which was £8.45.

The Committee reviewed and approved the Directors’ 
Remuneration Report for the Annual Report.

More details of the Society’s policy on remuneration are set out in 
the Director’s Remuneration on pages 43 to 45.

Risk and Capital Committee
The members who served on the Committee during 2016 were:

Kathryn Vagneur (Chairman)

Trevor Batten (from June 2016)

Sally Butters (Chief Risk Officer)

John Instance (until June 2016)

Paul Osborn

Graham Setterfield

Erik Vynckier (from February 2016)

Number of meetings held in 2016: 7

Key Terms of Reference:
The main responsibilities of the Risk and Capital Committee are 
described in: 
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/governance

Key issues addressed by the Committee:

The Committee regularly reviewed the top risks of the Society and 
provided oversight of the management of risk during the year, as 
well as monitoring the risk and capital management processes 
within the Society. The Committee receives quarterly Chief Risk 
Officer (CRO) reports and Risk Management Information. Changes 
to risks are discussed and mitigation addressed as required.

Solvency II implementation has been a major focus in 2016. The 
development of improved risk processes and embedding these 
within the day-to-day business activities has been monitored 
closely during 2015 and 2016, as have the preparation and 
delivery to the regulator of the Society’s Own Risk and Solvency 
Assessment (‘ORSA’). The Committee reviewed the 2016 
ORSA Report and associated stress and scenario testing and 
recommended Board approval of these. The Committee also 
reviewed and recommended Board approval of an updated Risk 
Management Framework and the continued appropriateness of the 
Standard Formula to determine Solvency Capital Requirements. 

In light of the Solvency II work and economic conditions, the 
Committee concluded that capital coverage would be improved by 
extending reinsurance to include pandemic cover.

Cyber risk has received renewed attention during 2016 as 
changes in the environment have demonstrated the need to test 
and upgrade the Society’s cyber defences. Project work in this 
area is currently underway.

Several meetings were held jointly with the Audit Committee to 
address risk related audit issues and to input into setting priorities 
and planning for the Internal and External audits.

With-Profits Advisory Arrangement
The members who served on the Advisory Arrangement 
during 2016 were:

Trevor Batten (Chairman from June 2016)

John Garrett (from June 2016)

Helen Mackinnon (from June 2016)

Penny O’Nions (until June 2016)

Graham Setterfield

David Watkins (until June 2016)

John Instance (until June 2016) (Chairman until June 2016)

Number of meetings held in 2016: 5

Key Terms of Reference:
The Society has one open with-profits fund – the Order Insurance 
Fund - and four closed with-profits funds – Pure Endowment 
Fund, Tunstall Fund, Leek Fund and Post Office Insurance Society 
Fund (POIS). Although each fund is considered individually, the 
main terms of reference apply to all funds.

The main responsibility of each with-profit advisory arrangement 
is described in: 
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/governance
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Key issues addressed by the Advisory 
Arrangement in respect of the Order Insurance 
Fund, Pure Endowment Fund, Tunstall Fund, Leek 
Fund and POIS Fund
The Advisory Arrangement, taking the advice of the With-Profits 
Actuary, considered the areas where management had exercised 
discretion and concluded that the Society had complied with the 
Principles and Practices set out in the PPFMs of the five with-
profits funds in all material respects. 

It considered the balance between annual and final bonus rates 
given the expectation of lower investment returns persisting for an 
extended period into the future. 

For many of the older policy types the Advisory Arrangement saw 
that there was a margin between the amount available to meet 
claims and the value of the guaranteed benefits enabling annual 
bonuses to be maintained while still allowing an investment 
policy seeking out real returns to continue to be pursued, 
consistent with the PPFM. 

However, for some newer policy types, the current premium rates 
or policy charges indicate that there is a greater likelihood that 
a more prudent investment policy will be required to be followed 
if the current annual bonus rates are maintained. The Advisory 
Arrangement proposed to the Board that it was appropriate to 
make a small reduction in the annual bonus rates on the 50+ 
Plans, the ISA and the Bond to reduce this risk and will continue 
to monitor the situation for other policy classes depending 
on economic conditions.

Consideration was subsequently given to the implications for with-
profits policyholders of management’s proposal to reduce the 
equity backing ratio in the OIF in light of the impact on the capital 
position due to the economic conditions immediately following 
the Brexit vote. The Advisory Arrangement concluded that as 
the guarantees in the with-profits policies had become more 
valuable, there was less scope for investing in equity and property 
investments, but it was recognised that the aim was still to 
provide a real return. The Advisory Arrangement agreed with the 
proposal and recommended this to the Board for implementation.

The Advisory Arrangement instigated a review by Management of 
the Society’s fair treatment of long-standing customers, paying 
particular attention to policyholders with whom contact had been 
lost, and the quality and frequency of information being sent 
to customers to help them understand how their policies were 
performing, including the impact of ongoing charges. A number 
of enhancements will be implemented through the 2017 Bonus 
Notices. The review is aligned with an industry wide thematic 
review of the treatment of closed book customers by the FCA 
often referred to as TR16/2.

Unit-Linked Advisory Arrangement
The members who served on the Advisory Arrangement during 
2016 were:

Trevor Batten (Chairman from June 2016)

John Garrett (from June 2016)

Helen Mackinnon (from June 2016)

Penny O’Nions (until June 2016)

Graham Setterfield

David Watkins (until June 2016)

John Instance (until June 2016) (Chairman until June 2016)

Number of meetings held in 2016: 5

Key Terms of Reference:
The Society has three Unit-Linked funds in operation – POIS 
Flexible Growth Fund, POIS Money Bond Fund and POIS 
Savings Fund.

The main responsibilities of the Advisory Arrangement are 
described in: 
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/governance

Key issues addressed by the Advisory 
Arrangement:
The Advisory Arrangement reviewed the management actions 
taken when there were technical issues which impacted on the 
daily calculation of unit prices and agreed they were appropriate.

The Advisory Arrangement reviewed and recommended to the 
Board minor changes to the public document entitled, ‘How we 
manage our unit-linked funds’ to improve clarity. This document 
helps explain to members how the funds will be operated and 
how the exercise of discretion may occur in relation to deriving 
unit-linked fund prices for use in working out policyholder 
benefits. The revision was approved by the Board and is available 
on www.pois.co.uk/funds

Committee Reports (continued)
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Introduction
This report is provided to give members a full explanation of the 
remuneration policy and explains how the Society has applied the 
‘UK Corporate Governance Code: An annotated version for Mutual 
Insurers’, with respect to Directors’ remuneration. A resolution will 
be put to the Annual General Meeting inviting members to vote on 
the Directors’ Remuneration Report. This vote is advisory and the 
Board will consider any action that may be required following the 
outcome of the vote.

Remuneration Committee
The role and list of Non-Executive Directors who sit on the 
Remuneration Committee is shown on page 40. The Chief 
Executive is invited to attend the meetings to participate in 
discussions on remuneration policy but is excluded from 
detailed discussions relating to his own remuneration.

Remuneration Policy
The Society’s approach to remuneration is an integral part of the 
Society’s strategy. The policy aims to attract, motivate, support 
and retain high quality diverse talent with the necessary skills 
to achieve the Society’s strategic objectives, meet regulatory 
requirements and support the short, medium and long-term 
interests of members. Remuneration is considered within the 
financial services sector for the geographical location the Society 
occupies and business affordability. The policy is to provide 
an industry competitive level of salary and a good working 
environment. Salaries are reviewed annually and all staff are 
entitled to join a defined contribution pension scheme. The Society 
is committed to becoming a Living Wage Employer accredited by 
the Living Wage Foundation, as this is wholly consistent with its 
ethos of being a caring and responsible employer.

Remuneration Policy for Non-
Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors are elected for a period up to three years 
by members at the Annual General Meeting. This appointment 
can be extended for two further periods of three years at which 
point the Non-Executive Director has to stand down in accordance 
with the Society’s Rules. The Board will determine any notice 
period that is convenient to both the Society and the Director 
under other circumstances. The initial term may be shortened to 
align with rotation of the Board.

The remuneration of all Non-Executive Directors, including the 
Chairman, is reviewed on an annual basis by the Remuneration 
Committee using advice and guidance from both internal and 
external sources, and supplemented as required with expert 
advice. A recommendation is made to the Board which then puts 
a proposition to the delegates at the Annual General Meeting to 
receive any remuneration changes. The Non-Executive Directors 
are only entitled to fees and expenses, and do not participate in 
any performance related pay schemes, or receive any pension 
arrangements or other benefits.

Remuneration Policy for Executive 
Directors
The Remuneration Policy of the Executive Directors comprises 
of basic salary, a contributory pension and other benefits. 
The remuneration is approved by the Board based upon 
recommendation by the Remuneration Committee, which includes 
all salary amendments. There is no bonus or long term incentive 
scheme in place however should the Society introduce a scheme 
in the future it retains the right to adjust, defer a substantial 
portion for a period of not less than three years, and consider the 
application of malus based on ex post risk adjustments before it 
has vested i.e. where the Board has cause for concern that the 
achievement of the results has been to the detriment to treating 
customers fairly. Executive Directors are also entitled to benefits 
in kind that include a company car (or an equivalent allowance) 
and private medical insurance. 

The employment contract of the Executive Directors requires 
a contractual notice period of six months by either party. 
The Remuneration Committee will carefully consider what 
compensation commitments (including pension contributions and 
all other elements) their Directors’ terms of appointment would 
entail in the event of their early termination. 
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Salary/
Fees Bonuses Benefits

Pension 
Contributions

Total
2016

Total 
2015

NON-EXECUTIVES £ £ £ £ £ £

Mike Wilkinson 
(retired 13 June 2016)

12,500 - - - 12,500 25,000

John Instance * 21,218 - - - 21,218 20,000

Trevor Batten 
(co-opted 10 February 2016)

17,747 - - - 17,747 -

Cheryl Eagleson 
(retired 15 June 2015)

- - - - - 10,000

John Garrett 
(elected 13 June 2016)

10,000 - - - 10,000 -

Helen Mackinnon 
(elected 13 June 2016)

10,000 - - - 10,000 -

Penny O’Nions 
(retired 13 June 2016)

11,250 - - - 11,250 22,500

Graham Setterfield 22,500 - - - 22,500 21,250

Kathryn Vagneur 22,500 - - - 22,500 22,500

Erik Vynckier 
(co-opted 10 February 2016)

18,994 - - - 18,994 -

David Watkins 
(retired 13 June 2016)

10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000

EXECUTIVES £ £ £ £ £ £

Paul Osborn 149,368 - 21,364 26,222 196,954 203,072

Myles Edwards ** 
(elected 13 June 2016)

72,917 - 8,750 6,458 88,125 -

441, 788 334, 322

*Chose to waive his supplementary fee of £2,500 a year as Chairman of Sub-Committees in recognition of the Society’s strategy to reduce 
costs but in October 2016 accepted the supplementary Society Chairman fee of £5,000 a year following regulatory approval of his role.

**Appointed as Membership Director on 15 January 2016 and elected to the Board on 13 June 2016. Remuneration received pre-election 
was £46,955 with benefits of £5,635 and pension contribution of £208. Total remuneration for 2016 was £140,923.

Directors’ Remuneration Reports (continued)
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Directors’ Pension Benefits
Non-Executive Directors do not receive any pensionable benefits from the Society.  Executive Directors are invited, after three months’ 
service, to become a member of the Society’s Group Personal Pension Scheme, a money purchase stakeholder pension scheme with 
Scottish Widows plc. After six months’ service, the Society makes enhanced contributions. The Society’s contributions to this scheme 
are shown in the remuneration table above. 

Benefits in Kind
Benefits in kind were standardised amongst the Society’s Executive Directors during 2013 and include medical insurance to cover 
the employee’s spouse or partner and dependants and critical illness cover.

Graham Setterfield 
Chairman, Remuneration Committee 
6 April 2017



It is not a building society or a 
bank, it is a community. ‘‘ ‘‘A satisfied Foresters member, 2016
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Opinion on financial statements of The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly 
Society Limited
In our opinion the financial statements:

•  give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and Society’s affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of the Group’s and Society’s 
surplus for the year then ended;

•  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice including FRS 102 “The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and FRS 103 “Insurance Contracts”; and

• h ave been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Friendly Societies Act 1992.

The financial statements comprise:

•  the Consolidated and Society Income and Expenditure Accounts;

• the Consolidated and Society Balance Sheet;

•  the Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses and the related notes 1 to 29.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland” and FRS 103 “Insurance Contracts”.

Independent Auditor’s Report To The Members Of The 
Ancient Order Of Foresters Friendly Society Limited

Summary of our Audit Approach

Key risks

The key risks that we identified in the current year were:
• Life technical provisions: valuation and assumptions used
• Valuation of investment properties
• Assumptions underpinning defined benefit pensions
• Revenue recognition: completeness of POIS premiums recorded

Materiality
The materiality that we used in the current year was £630,000 which was based on the estimated 
funds for future appropriations provided by management at the start of the audit. The calculated 
materiality amount is approximately 3% of the estimated funds for future appropriation.

Scoping

Our group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the group and its environment, 
including group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of material misstatement. Audit work to 
respond to the above risks of material misstatement for all entities in the group was performed by 
the audit engagement team with assistance from component auditors where required.

Significant changes in our approach
Aside from the elimination of “Consolidation of components” as a key risk in the current year and 
our reassessment of the Revenue Recognition risk, there have been no significant changes to our 
audit approach from either the prior year or our audit plan.
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Going concern and the directors’ assessment of the principal risks that would 
threaten the solvency or liquidity of the Society
We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to

•  the directors’ confirmation on page 31 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Society, 
including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

•  the disclosures on pages 22 to 25 and 91 to 94 that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated; 

•  the directors’ statement on page 31 to the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going 
concern basis of accounting in preparing them and their identification of any material uncertainties to the Society’s ability to continue to 
do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements; and

•  the directors’ explanation on page 31 and 32 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Society, over what period they have 
done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation 
that the Society will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, 
including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We confirm that we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in respect of these matters. We agreed with the 
directors’ adoption of the going concern basis of accounting and we did not identify any such material uncertainties. 
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern.

Independence
We are required to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors and confirm that we are independent of the 
Society and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those standards.

We confirm that we are independent of the Society and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
those standards. We also confirm we have not provided any of the prohibited non-audit services referred to in those standards.

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
The assessed risks of material misstatement described below are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy, the allocation of 
resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

Last year our report included a risk identified in relation to the consolidation of components including the Guernsey Court and Leeds 
Investment Association. This is not considered to be a risk in the current period as neither the relevant accounting and financial reporting 
standards, nor the circumstances of the Society or any of the components, have altered during the year.

In addition, our report included within the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts included a risk in respect of the classification of contracts as 
either insurance or investment contracts in line with the definition provided by FRS 103 ‘Insurance Contracts’. This risk is not applicable in 
the current period as this was prevalent only in the Society’s transition to accounting under FRS 102 and FRS 103 in the 2015 accounting 
period. Instead, our presumed risk related to revenue recognition is focussed on the completeness of premiums associated with the Post 
Office Insurance Services policies as described above.

The description of risks above should be read in conjunction with the significant issues considered by the Audit Committee 
discussed on pages 37 and 38.
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Risk How the scope of our audit responded to the risk Key observations

1.  Life technical provisions: valuation and assumptions used

At the year-end the Society recognised technical 
provisions totalling £157m (restated 2015: £152m) 
prepared in line with the accounting policy on Long Term 
Business Provision (See note 1). We consider these 
provisions to be material due to both their size and nature.

Technical provisions are calculated using policy data 
held on the Society’s administration system and 
assumptions set using internal and external data as inputs 
to the actuarial valuation models (Prophet and Excel 
spreadsheets).The assessment of the appropriate carrying 
value of the technical provisions requires management 
to make significant judgements when determining the 
underlying assumptions. These judgements involve 
considering whether the assumptions appropriately reflect 
the Society’s circumstances, historic experience and 
future business plans.

The Society made a change in accounting policy in the 
year, resulting in the Solvency II technical provisions 
(comprising the best-estimate liabilities and the risk 
margin) being the basis of the FRS 103 insurance 
liabilities. As a result, there have been changes in 
the calculation methodology for 2016 which resulted 
in additional risks arising from the newly applied 
assumptions; principally the application of policy contract 
boundaries, the treatment of management actions and the 
calculation of the risk margin prescribed by the Directive.

We have assessed the design and implementation of the 
internal controls put in place at the Society’s Head Office by 
management to mitigate the risks associated with the setting 
of technical provisions assumptions.

Working with our internal life actuarial experts, we audited 
the technical provisions results calculated for both the 2016 
and the restated 2015 year ends. This included assessing 
the design and implementation of controls demonstrating 
the accuracy and completeness of the policy data used 
in the actuarial models, reviewing the appropriateness of 
assumptions and methodology used to calculate the technical 
provisions and considering the resulting reasonableness of 
the technical provisions disclosed in the accounts.

In addition, we substantively tested and reconciled the policy 
data underlying the modelled reserves to gain assurance that the 
input data was accurate and free from material misstatement.

Our experts also reviewed the analysis of change in results 
over the year, focusing on modelled reserves from Prophet 
and other reserves calculated manually. Our review focused 
on output by key product line in order to understand and 
challenge results in discussion with the actuarial team.

We have agreed, on a sample basis, the assumptions 
approved by the Board through to application within the 
actuarial valuation models.

Overall, based on 
the assumptions and 
methodology used at 31 
December 2016, and 
the restated position for 
2015, we consider the 
technical provisions balance 
recognised by the Society 
in the Consolidated Annual 
Report and Accounts to be 
within an appropriate range.

2.  Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are held at fair value in the annual 
accounts at £69m (2015: £64m) and are considered to 
be material due to both its size and nature.

Management relies on external valuations performed by an 
external RICS registered third party utilised by the Society, 
to provide the valuation to be recognised in the annual 
accounts. These external valuations are performed as at 
30 November 2016, with all property values subsequently 
amended for the final month of the year to move in line 
with the IPD (Investment Property Databank) index.

We consider that there is a risk that inappropriate 
assumptions, both specific and general, applied in 
determining the year end valuation could lead to an 
incorrect investment property balance being recognised in 
the consolidated financial statements.

Additional information on the investment valuation is 
provided in note 12 to the financial statements.

We have assessed the effectiveness of the design and 
implementation of key internal controls put in place by 
management to mitigate the risks associated with the 
valuation of investment properties at a Society level.

Working with our internal real estate experts, we have 
assessed the competence of the external valuation experts, 
as well as the assumptions applied in the valuation of a 
sample of investment properties. The rationale for changes 
in valuations driven by economic factors, such as inflation, 
have been evaluated through reference to publicly available 
data on trends in property values. Furthermore, the rationale 
behind changes in the value of individual investment 
properties driven by changes in condition, such as 
tenancy agreements or rental income streams, were 
assessed on a sample basis.

Our internal real estate experts also assessed the indexation 
approach undertaken by management to roll-forward 30 
November 2016 property valuations to 31 December 2016. 
This assessment included comparing the year-end valuations 
for a sample of properties to the indexed values presented in 
the Society’s financial statements to gain assurance that the 
balance is free from material misstatement.

Overall we consider the 
investment property 
balances recognised by the 
Society in the Consolidated 
Annual Report and Accounts 
to be appropriately valued. 
The assumptions applied 
by the external valuation 
experts, both specific and 
general, are considered to 
be appropriate to determine 
the market value of the 
properties held.

The indexation of property 
values for the final month of 
the year does not result in 
the value of the properties 
recognised being materially 
different from their actual 
year-end market value and 
is therefore considered 
appropriate.

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Risk How the scope of our audit responded to the risk Key observations

3.  Assumptions underpinning defined benefit pensions

The Society currently holds a net pension asset 
of £170k (2015: £430k), which is the net of 
the surplus and deficit held on the two defined 
benefits pension schemes operated in the year.

The calculation of the pension schemes’ 
liabilities involves significant judgement in 
respect of key assumptions. Small changes in 
individual assumptions, such as inflation and 
discount rates applied, can have a material effect 
on the balance recognised in the consolidated 
financial statements.

We have identified a key risk in relation to 
the inflation and discount rates used. The key 
judgements are the CPI (Consumer Price Index) 
rate determined and adopted as the modelled 
inflation rate and the discount rate used to 
arrive at a present value for the schemes’ 
obligations. These obligations are £7.9m in 2016 
(2015: £6.4m). An adjustment of around a 0.5 
percentage point change in either of these rates 
would have a material impact on the financial 
statements and could change the net asset from 
a surplus to a deficit.

We have assessed the design and implementation of the key 
internal controls installed by management to mitigate the risks 
associated with the setting of the assumptions underpinning 
defined benefit pensions operated by the Society.

We engaged our internal pension actuarial experts to 
benchmark the key assumptions used by the Society 
against those adopted by competitors, in order to determine 
where they sat within the observed reasonable range. This 
formed the basis of our challenge of the appropriateness of 
the assumptions adopted, along with the actual historical 
experience of the Society.

Overall, based on our 
experience and market 
conditions at 31 December 
2016, the assumptions 
proposed and applied in 
determining the defined 
benefit pension scheme 
were considered within our 
reasonable range, albeit 
toward the prudent end.

4.  Revenue recognition: completeness of POIS premiums recorded

We presume a risk of material misstatement 
related to fraud in revenue recognition and 
evaluate which types of revenue, revenue 
transactions or assertions give rise to such risks.

We identified the risk to be in respect of the 
completeness of premiums collected from Post 
Office insurance services (“POIS”) policies; 
specifically whether all premiums written and 
earned in 2016 are accurately recorded in the 
financial statements. Management perform 
reconciliations between the policy administration 
system for POIS policies and the general ledger; 
there is therefore a risk of manipulation with 
regards to the final reported premium balance.

The Society has recorded £5.4m of premiums in 
relation to POIS policies in 2016 (2015: £5.3m).

We have assessed the effectiveness of the design and 
implementation of the key internal controls associated with 
the Society’s gross written premiums process to ensure 
that they effectively mitigate the risks associated with this 
class of transaction.

We obtained and inspected management’s reconciliation of 
the total POIS premiums between the policy administration 
system and the accounting system and substantively tested 
a sample of items to ensure that they were appropriately 
treated in the Society’s financial statements.

Furthermore, we performed additional testing procedures 
using our bespoke data analytics which interrogate the 
underlying policy data to highlight samples of a higher risk 
which were then subsequently substantively tested.

As a result of the audit 
procedures performed, we 
are satisfied that the POIS 
premiums presented in the 
Consolidated Annual Report 
and Accounts are materially 
appropriate.

We are satisfied that the 
reconciling premiums 
between the premiums 
recorded in the policy 
administration system used by 
the Society and the balance 
recorded in the financial 
statements are appropriately 
treated dependent upon 
their underlying nature. 
Furthermore, we did 
not identify any material 
discrepancies arising from 
the transfer of data from the 
policy administration system 
to the general ledger.

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and not to 
express an opinion on individual accounts or disclosures. Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified with respect to any of the 
risks described above, and we do not express an opinion on these individual matters.
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Our application of materiality
We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the 
financial statements that makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be 
changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work. 
The application of materiality involves both quantitative and 
qualitative considerations.

We have determined that the critical benchmark for the Society is 
the consolidated funds for future appropriation representing the 
accumulated and realised profits of the group. We determined 
materiality for the 2016 accounting period as 3% of the estimated 
funds for future appropriation, being £630k. Our materiality is 
lower than that set for the 2015 audit due to management’s 
decision to calculate technical provisions under a Solvency II basis 
causing a decrease in funds for future appropriation from £41.2m 
in 2015 to £21.5m.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report 
to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £31,500, 
as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, 
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the 
Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when 
assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the entity 
and its environment, including internal controls, and assessing the 
risks of material misstatement. Audit work to respond to the risks 
of material misstatement was performed directly by the 
audit engagement team.

We have utilised component auditors from other firms to 
assist with our Group audit for the Guernsey Court and Leeds 
Investment Association. These significant components were 
subject to full scope audits which were executed at levels of 
materiality applicable to each individual entity of £61,000 and 
£250,000 respectively.

We held meetings with the component audit teams during 
both their planning and year-end work and discussed the risks 
included in our referral instructions as well any additional risks 
identified by them during their risks assessments. We also 
reviewed their returns to us and their resultant findings.

At the parent Society level we also audited the consolidation 
process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm our 
conclusion that there were no significant risks of material 
misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the 
remaining components not subject to audit or audit of specified 
account balances.

Opinion on other matters prescribed 
by the Friendly Societies Act 1992
In our opinion both the Directors’ Report and Strategic Report 
have been prepared in accordance with the Friendly Societies 
Act 1992 and the regulations made under it, and the information 
given therein is consistent with the financial statements for 
the financial year.

Matters on which we are required to 
report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and 
accounting records
Under the Friendly Societies Act 1992 we are required to report to 
you if, in our opinion:

• proper accounting records have not been kept; or

•  the financial statements are not in agreement with the 
accounting records; or

•  we have not received all the information and explanations and 
access to documents that we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Our duty to read other information in the 
Annual Report
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we 
are required to report to you if, in our opinion, information in the 
Annual Report is:

•  materially inconsistent with the information in the audited 
financial statements; or

•  apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Society acquired in 
the course of performing our audit; or

• otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have 
identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired 
during the audit and the Directors’ statement that they consider 
the Annual Report is fair, balanced and understandable and 
whether the Annual Report appropriately discloses those matters 
that we communicated to the Audit Committee which we consider 
should have been disclosed.

We confirm that we have not identified any such 
inconsistencies or misleading statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Other Matter

Corporate Governance Statement
In accordance with our instructions from the Society we reviewed 
whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the 
Society’s compliance with those provisions of the Annotated 
UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review by the 
Association of Financial Mutuals.

We have nothing to report arising from our review.

Respective responsibilities of directors 
and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities 
Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of  
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). We also 
comply with International Standard on Quality Control 1 (UK and 
Ireland). Our audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that 
our quality control procedures are effective, understood and 
applied. Our quality controls and systems include our dedicated 
professional standards review team.

This report is made solely to the Society’s members, as a body, 
in accordance with Section 73 of the Friendly Societies Act 1992. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to 
the Society’s members those matters we are required to state to 
them in an auditor’s report and / or those further matters we have 
expressly agreed to report to them on in our engagement letter 
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the Society and the Society’s members as a body, for our audit 
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Scope of the audit of the financial 
statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or 
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting 
policies are appropriate to the Society’s circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the 
directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 
in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with 
the audited financial statements and to identify any information 
that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course 
of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent 
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the 
implications for our report.

Elanor Gill FCA (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

7 April 2017



Technical Account Long-Term Business Notes 2016 
£’000

Restated 2015 
£’000

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premium written 20,521 18,906
Outward reinsurance premiums (116) (122)

3 20,405 18,784
Investment income 4 7,296 11,309
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 4 9,160 (6,079)
Total Technical Income 36,861 24,014

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid: Gross amount (24,260) (25,792)
Reinsurers’ share  61 51

(24,199) (25,741)
Change in provision for claims: Gross amount (101) 399
Net claims incurred 5 (24,300) (25,342)

Change in other technical provisions
Long term business provision 
   - gross amount (1,770) 6,179
   - reinsurers’ share (68) (190)
   - net of reinsurance 6 (1,838) 5,989
Technical provisions for linked business
   - net of reinsurance 6 (3,298) (252)
Net change (5,136) 5,737

Other Expenditure
Net operating expenses 7 (2,952) (2,725)
Amortisation of PVIF 11 (210) (210)
Investment expenses and charges 4 (429) (471)
Taxation attributable to long-term business 9 - 36

(3,591) (3,370)

Total Technical Charges (33,027) (22,975)

Surplus of technical income over technical charges 3,834 1,039

Transfer from/(to) Non-Technical Account - 565
Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations 19 (3,834) (1,604)
Balance on Technical Account - -

Consolidated and Society Income and Expenditure Account
For the year ended 31 December 2016

54
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Technical Account General Business Notes 2016 
£’000

Restated 2015 
£’000

Technical Account-General Business
Technical Income
Gross premium written 2,267 2,172
Investment income 116 110
Total Technical Income  2,383 2,282

Technical Charges
Claims incurred gross (2,047) (2,006)
Transferred to general business provision (182) (128)
Net operating expenses 7 (154) (148)
Total Technical Charges (2,383) (2,282)

Balance on Technical Account - -

Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Non-Technical Account Notes 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Income
Investment income 10 5,712 6,419
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 10 1,804 3,988
Unrealised gains/(losses) on Court investments 10 3,185 183
Discretionary fund donations and levies 95 268
Total Income 10,796 10,858

Expenditure
Net operating expenses 7 (2,370) (1,840)
Court operating expenses 7 (3,357) (3,169)
Investment expenses and charges 10 (439) (492)
Discretionary benefits paid and approved Court distributions (970) (1,027)
Total Expenditure (7,136) (6,528)

Excess/(Deficit) of income over expenditure for the financial year 3,660  4,330

From/(to) Discretionary Fund 17 (937) (5,375)
From/(to) Long Term Business Technical Account - (565)
From/(to) Mainland Court funds 18 (3,477) (910)
From/(to) Court funds – Guernsey 18 (153) 53
From/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations 19 907 2,467

Balance on the Non-Technical Account - -

All long term business is written in the United Kingdom, is in respect of continuing operations and relates to direct insurance contracts. General business 
is written by the Guernsey branch and is classified as overseas business.

The notes on pages 63 to 99 form an integral part of these accounts.

Financial Statements
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Notes 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations (Technical Account) 3,834 (18,532)
Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations (Non-Technical Account)  (907) (2,467)
Pension schemes actuarial gain/(loss) 23 240 (76)

Other Comprehensive Income 3,167 (21,075)

Consolidated and Society’s Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2016

The notes on pages 63 to 99 form an integral part of these accounts.

Non-Technical Account Notes 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Income
Investment income 10 5,792 6,608
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 10 721 3,978
Unrealised gains/(losses) on Court investments 10 3,185 183
Discretionary fund donations and levies 95 268
Total Income 9,793 11,037

Expenditure
Net operating expenses (2,171) (1,653)
Court operating expenses 7 (3,357) (3,169)
Investment expenses and charges 10 (439) (492)
Discretionary benefits paid and approved Court distributions (970) (1,030)
Total Expenditure (6,937) (6,344)

Excess/(Deficit) of income over expenditure for the financial year 2,856 4,693

(To)/from Discretionary Fund 17 (240) (5,354)
(To)/from Long Term Business Technical Account - (565)
(To)/from mainland Court funds 18 (3,370) (1,294)
(To)/from Court funds – Guernsey 18 (153) 53
(To)/from Fund for Future Appropriations 19 907 2,467

Balance on the Non-Technical Account - -

Society Income and Expenditure Account
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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Assets Notes 2016 
£’000

Restated 2015 
£’000

Intangible assets
Purchased value of in force business 11 910  1,120 

Investments
Land and buildings 12 68,527  63,686 
Investment in subsidiary 13 10 10
Other financial investments 13 135,132  130,650 

 203,669  194,346 

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - investment contracts 13  1,995  2,078 

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - insurance contracts 13  34,408  31,027 

Reinsurers share of Long term business provision                                     20 120  188

Debtors
Debtors arising out of insurance operations 591  487
Other debtors 14  2,173  914

 2,764  1,401
Other assets
Tangible assets 15 98  170
Certificates of deposit 3,165  2,636
Cash at bank and in hand 27,759  28,124

 31,022  30,930

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 1,169  1,249
Deferred acquisition costs 16 - -
Other prepayments and accrued income 241 295

 1,410  1,544

Pension asset 23 256  430

Total assets  276,554  263,064

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2016

The notes on pages 63 to 99 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2016

Liabilities Notes 2016 
£’000

Restated 2015 
£’000

Reserves
Discretionary Funds 17  12,930  11,993 
Court Funds 18 78,946  75,316

 91,876  87,309

Fund for future appropriations 19 24,398  21,471

Technical provisions
Long term business provision - Insurance and participating investment contracts 20 115,458  113,699 
Long term business provision - non-participating investment contracts 20 (85) (96)
Technical provision for linked liabilities - investment contracts 20  1,995  2,078
Technical provision for linked liabilities - insurance contracts 20 34,408  31,027
Claims outstanding 20 2,005  1,904
General business provision (Guernsey) 20 3,452  3,270

 157,233  151,882

Provision for other risks and charges           22 - -

Creditors
Other creditors 1,453  639
Taxation and Social Security 84  74 

1,537  713 

Accruals and deferred income 1,424  1,689 

Pension Liability 23 86 -

Total Liabilities  276,554  263,064

The notes on pages 63 to 99 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Society Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2016

The notes on pages 63 to 99 form an integral part of these accounts.

Assets Notes 2016 
£’000

Restated 2015 
£’000

Intangible assets
Purchased value of in force business 11 910  1,120 

Investments
Land and buildings 12 61,077 56,682
Investment in subsidiary 13 10 10
Other financial investments 13  133,360 131,411

 194,447 188,103

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - investment contracts 13  1,995  2,078 

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - insurance contracts 13  34,408  31,027 

Reinsurers share of Long term business provision 20 120  188

Debtors
Debtors arising out of insurance operations 591  487
Other debtors 14  2,173  881

 2,764 1,368
Other assets
Tangible assets 15 98  170
Certificates of deposit  1,450 1,699
Cash at bank and in hand 21,539 19,118

 23,087 20,987

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 1,105 1,095
Deferred acquisition costs 16 - -
Other prepayments and accrued income 220 234

 1,325 1,329

Pension asset 23 256  430

Total assets  259,312 246,630
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Society Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2016

Liabilities Notes 2016 
£’000

Restated 2015 
£’000

Reserves
Discretionary Funds 17  2,819 2,579
Court Funds 18 71,841 68,318

 74,660 70,897

Fund for future appropriations 19 24,398  21,471

Technical provisions
Long term business provision - Insurance and participating investment contracts 20 115,458  113,699 
Long term business provision - non-participating investment contracts 20 (85) (96)
Technical provision for linked liabilities - investment contracts 20  1,995  2,078
Technical provision for linked liabilities - insurance contracts 20 34,408  31,027
Claims outstanding 20 2,005  1,904
General business provision (Guernsey) 20 3,452  3,270

 157,233  151,882

Provision for other risks and charges 22 - -

Creditors
Other creditors 1,453  639
Taxation and Social Security 84  74 

1,537  713 

Accruals and deferred income  1,398 1,667

Pension Liability 23 86 -

Total Liabilities  259,312 246,630

The notes on pages 63 to 99 form an integral part of these accounts.

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 6 April 2017 and authorised for issue. No amendments are permitted after authorisation for 
issue. On behalf of the Board:

John Instance  
Chairman

Paul Osborn 
Chief Executive

Lisa Russell  
Company Secretary
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Notes to the Accounts

1. Accounting policies

General Information, change in accounting policy 
and basis of accounting
The Society is a Friendly Society incorporated in the United 
Kingdom under the Friendly Societies Act. The address of the 
registered office is given on page 1. The nature of the Group’s 
operations and its principal activities are set out in the Strategic 
Report on pages 14 to 18.

The Society prepares its Annual Report & Accounts on the 
historical cost convention modified for fair value, excluding 
tangible fixed assets, in accordance with The Friendly Societies 
(Accounts and Related Provisions) Regulations 1994, The Friendly 
Societies Act 1992 and Financial Reporting Standards 102 and 
103 (FRS 102 and FRS 103).

As permitted by the Amendments to FRS 103 Insurance Contracts 
Solvency II, the Society has changed its accounting policy 
to recognise and measure technical provisions on long term 
insurance contracts on a realistic basis. This means that the value 
of technical provisions disclosed in these financial statements 
are aligned with the Society’s other regulatory financial reporting. 
The prior year financial statements have been restated for 
material adjustments resulting from adopting this accounting 
policy change this year. The new accounting policy for technical 
provisions is shown in the long-term business provision on page 
64. The prior year restatement is shown in Note 29 on pages 94 
to 99 and more information on the new technical provisions is 
shown in Note 20 on pages 79 to 83.

The functional currency of the Society continues to be pounds 
sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Society operates. The consolidated 
financial statements are also presented in pounds sterling.

The Society meets the definition of a qualifying entity under 
FRS 102 and has therefore taken advantage of the disclosure 
exemptions available to it in respect of its separate financial 
statements, which are presented alongside the consolidated 
financial statements. Exemptions have been taken in relation to 
financial instruments, presentation of a cash flow statement and 
remuneration of key management personnel.

Under FRS 103 the accounting treatment of long-term business 
contracts depends on the classification of contracts as either 
insurance contracts if the level of insurance risk is significant,  
or investment contracts if the risk is not significant.

The Society considers insurance risk to be the risk of having to 
pay benefits as a result of an insured event which are significantly 
more than would be paid if the insured event did not occur. All 
of the Society’s non-profit policies and regular premium unit-
linked policies are classified as insurance contracts. The Society 
accounts for all contracts with no significant insurance risk in 
accordance with section 11 and 12 of FRS 102.

All of the Society’s with-profit policies are classified as 
participating investment contracts as these entitle the policyholder 
to receive, in addition to the guaranteed benefits, additional 
discretionary bonuses which are likely to form a significant 
proportion of the total benefit payable and where the amount 
and timing are at the discretion of the Society and depend on the 
performance of a specified pool of assets.

The Society’s single premium unit-linked contract (which is no 
longer offered for sale) is classified as an investment contract.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated income and expenditure accounts, the 
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income and the 
consolidated balance sheet are the financial statements of the 
whole Group including the Branches (Courts) and the Investment 
Associations (see note 2) where the Society has the ability to 
exercise control. Internal transactions and balances between the 
various components of the Society have been eliminated.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of 
acquisitions using the acquisition method. In the balance sheet,  
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
are initially recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date. 
The results of acquired operations are included in the consolidated 
income and expenditure accounts from the date on which control 
is obtained. They are deconsolidated from the date control ceases. 
In the case of the acquisition of policy engagements and related 
assets and liabilities, the acquisition method is applied as if the 
engagements acquired constituted an entity.

The Court assets are not available to back the long-term 
business of the Society but the Courts remain as Branches of 
the incorporated Society. Their assets and activities are therefore 
shown separately within the notes to the accounts. Investment 
Association deposits are investments of the Courts.

The balance sheet includes the cost of £10,000 for all the 
shares in Foresters General Insurance Services Limited. In view 
of the immaterial amounts involved, this entity has not been fully 
consolidated in the financial statements (see note 13).
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Going Concern
The Society’s business activities, together with the factors likely to 
affect its future development, performance and position are set out 
in the Strategic Review on pages 14 to 18. Note 25 also describes 
the financial position of the Society; its cash flows, liquidity position 
and borrowing facilities; the Society’s objectives, policies and 
processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management 
objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; 
and its exposure to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Society meets its day to day working capital requirements 
through its own cash reserves. The Directors have a reasonable 
expectation that the Society has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue 
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the 
annual financial statements.

Premium Income
For long term insurance contracts and participating investment 
contracts, regular premium income is accounted for on a receivable 
basis, single premium income is accounted for when received. 
Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in accordance 
with the contract terms when due, reflecting the period when  
risk is transferred.

For general insurance business premium income is accounted for 
on an accruals basis so that the figures stated include all premiums 
received and receivable in respect of the current reporting year.

Claims
Maturity claims are charged to the Income and Expenditure account 
when due for payment. Surrenders are accounted for on maturity 
or, if earlier, on the date when the policy ceases to be included 
within the calculation of the long term business provision. Death 
claims are accounted for when notified. Claims on with-profit 
business include bonuses payable. Claims payable include related 
claims handling costs. Amounts receivable from reinsurers are 
estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims 
provisions or the settled claims associated with the reinsured 
policies and in accordance with the relevant reinsurance contract.

Long Term Business Provision
The long term business provision is determined by the Board on 
the advice of the Chief Actuary as part of the annual valuation 
of the Society’s long term insurance business. The provision 
is determined in accordance with the requirements of the PRA 
rulebook: Solvency II Firms Technical Provisions Instrument 2015.

The long term business provision on a Solvency II basis is 
calculated as the expected present value of the expected future 
cash flows (benefit payments and expenses less premiums) plus a 
risk margin. The risk margin allows for the cost to a third party of 
holding Solvency II capital until all the contacts are settled.

The valuation rate of interest used to discount the expected future 
cash flows is prescribed by regulation, removing a key area of 
judgement compared to the previous basis. 

The prior year financial statements have been restated for material 
adjustments on the change in accounting policy this year. Further 
details are shown in note 29.

Further details of these technical provisions are contained in note 20.

General Business Provision
General Business comprises the medical and medical services 
insurance protection conducted by Guernsey Branch. The liabilities 
are calculated in accordance with local regulatory requirements. 
The liabilities are the accumulated surplus income from the  
general business which the branch Committee of Management  
has allocated to set aside to cover the provision of medical  
benefits for policyholders.

Fund for Future Appropriations
The fund for future appropriations (FFA) consists of funds that 
have not been allocated to specific policyholders, members or 
non-insurance funds. Transfers to and from the fund reflect the 
excess or deficiency of income over outgoings in each accounting 
period arising from participating business. The FFA represents 
membership funds, working capital and is available to cover 
solvency capital requirements.

As a result of the change in Accounting Policy for the calculation  
of the long term business provision, the FFA no longer includes  
the value of discretionary future bonuses to policyholders as these 
are now captured in the long term business provision. The prior 
year financial statements were restated to reflect the change 
adopted this year.

Deferred Acquisition Costs
As a consequence of the change in the recognition and 
measurement of technical provisions for long term insurance 
contracts, acquisition costs are no longer deferred for with-profits 
policies. Acquisition costs deferred in previous periods have 
been expensed in the current year. The Society does not defer 
acquisition costs on its non-profit policies.

Taxation
Friendly Societies are taxed on their life or endowment business 
so far as the annual premiums or sums assured exceed limits 
prescribed in tax law, and on certain investment returns referable  
to their subsidiaries. Insofar as the Society’s business is taxed,  
it is taxed on investment return less management expenses.

Provision for current and deferred taxation is calculated using the tax 
law and rates as enacted or substantively at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that they 
reduce deferred tax liabilities or it is probable there will be future 
taxable profits against which they may be set.

Notes to the Accounts (continued)
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Land and Buildings
Land and Buildings, which include properties that are held by 
the Society for operational purposes, are freehold and leasehold 
investment properties held for long term rental yields and capital 
growth. Changes in fair value are accounted for as unrealised gains 
or losses in the Income and Expenditure account.

Land and buildings, other than those held by the Society for 
operational purposes, are valued at least annually on an open 
market value basis by qualified external professional valuers. Land 
and buildings held for operational purposes are valued at least 
annually on an existing use value basis by qualified 
external professional valuers.

Land and buildings held by the Society for operational purposes 
are required to be depreciated over their expected useful economic 
lives under the requirements of the Friendly Societies Act 1992. 
This requirement conflicts with the generally accepted accounting 
principle for Investment Properties set out in section 16 of FRS 102, 
that no depreciation should be provided on such investments.  
The Board consider that, as these properties are held for investment, 
to depreciate them would not give a true and fair view, and that 
it is necessary to adopt FRS 102 in order to give a true and fair 
view. Depreciation is only one of the factors reflected in the annual 
valuations, and the amount which might otherwise have been shown, 
cannot reasonably be separately identified or quantified.

Freehold land is not subject to depreciation. No depreciation is 
charged on freehold buildings as, in the Directors’ opinion, it is 
considered that their estimated useful economic lives and residual 
values are such that the required depreciation charge is immaterial.

Investments
Other financial investments comprise listed investments, units 
in authorised unit trusts, loans, mortgages, deposits with credit 
institutions and deposits with Investment Associations. Listed 
investments and units held in authorised unit trusts are measured 
at their bid value at the balance sheet date. Amounts receivable 
in respect of loans and mortgages are shown at the lower of the 
amounts advanced or the amount expected to be recovered where 
there is evidence of impairment. Deposits with credit institutions 
are carried at their historical cost as no reliable fair value can be 
obtained for these instruments. Investment Associations are shown 
at cost plus interest accrued on the deposit. The Society does not 
invest in derivative investments.

In the Society balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries and 
associates are measured at cost less impairment.

Investment Income and Expenses
Investment income includes dividends, property rent, interest, together 
with realised gains and losses on investments. Dividends are taken into 
account when declared. Interest on fixed interest securities, deposits 
and rental income is recognised on an accruals basis.

Investment expenses and charges are shown as expenditure.

Gains and Losses on Investments
Balance Sheet

Unrealised gains and losses represent the difference between 
the market value of investments held at the end of the year and 
their market value at the beginning of the year, or their cost when 
acquired during the year.

Income and Expenditure Account

Realised gains and losses are calculated as the difference between 
purchase costs and net sales proceeds. An adjustment is made to 
unrealised gains and losses previously recognised for the impact of 
any disposals in the year. Realised and unrealised gains and losses 
are taken to the Income and Expenditure Account.

Pension Schemes
The Society operates a group stakeholder personal pension scheme 
covering most permanent employees. This is a defined contribution 
scheme and the Society’s contributions are charged to the Income 
and Expenditure account in the year to which they relate. The 
Society has no liability in respect of this defined contribution 
scheme other than future contractual contributions.

The Society also operates two defined benefit pension schemes, 
both of which are closed to new members. Both schemes  
are administered by Trustees and are independent of the  
Society’s finances.

The asset or liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect 
of the defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of the 
plan assets at the reporting date. The defined benefit obligation is 
calculated using actuarial projections. Annually the Society engages 
independent actuaries to calculate the obligation.

The fair value of plan assets is measured in accordance with the 
FRS 102 fair value hierarchy and in accordance with the Society’s 
policy for similarly held assets. This includes the use of appropriate 
valuation techniques.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumptions are included in the Statement of 
Other Comprehensive Income. These amounts, together with the return 
on plan assets, less amounts included in net interest, are disclosed in 
note 23 as the “Change in recognised defined benefit” asset.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the 
net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan 
assets. This cost is recognised in the income and expenditure account.

Further details of the pension schemes are contained in note 23.

Operating Leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the 
technical and non-technical accounts on a straight-line basis in line 
with the accruals concept over the lease term.
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Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are valued at cost less depreciation or 
provision for impairment. Depreciation is provided on all tangible 
fixed assets in equal annual instalments over their estimated  
useful economic lives based on cost, less estimated residual  
value. The principal rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Fixture and fittings – 4 to 10 years 
Motor vehicles – 4 to 5 years

Residual value represents the estimated amount which would 
currently be obtained from disposal of an asset, after deducting 
estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and 
in the condition expected at the end of its useful economic life.

Cash Flow Statement
The Society, being a mutual life assurance company, is exempt from 
the requirement under FRS 102 to produce a cash flow statement.

Unit-Linked Business
Assets held in respect of unit-linked business are fair valued on a 
daily basis at bid price, using market prices supplied by third party 
data providers. The prices derived from the valuation apply to the 
next working day after the valuation point.

The provision for unit-linked business is equal to the value of the 
assets to which the contracts are linked. This provision is included 
within the long term business provision.

Purchased Value of In-force Business (‘PVIF’)
On acquisition of a portfolio of insurance contracts, the net present 
value of the Society’s interest in the expected cash flows of the 
in-force business is capitalised as an intangible asset. The relevant 
element is that part of PVIF which will be recognised as profit over 
the remaining lifetime of the in-force policies.

PVIF is amortised over the remaining anticipated lives of the related 
contracts which is generally between 5 and 15 years. Amortisation 
is recognised within net operating expenses in the Income and 
Expenditure account.

The carrying value of PVIF is assessed for possible impairment 
on an annual basis.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Society 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction 
price (including transaction costs). If an arrangement constitutes 
a financing transaction, the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at 
a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset in the balance sheet, 
when and only when, there exists a legally enforceable right to set off 

the recognised amounts and the Society intends either to settle on a 
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when a) the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire 
or are settled, b) the Society transfers to another party substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, 
or c) the Society, despite having retained some significant risks 
and rewards of ownership, has transferred control of the asset to 
another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell 
the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to 
exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose 
additional restrictions on the transfer.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised only when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Key Estimates and Judgements
The preparation of these Financial Statements requires the Society 
to make certain estimates and assumptions that have an impact 
on the application of the policies and the amounts reported in the 
Financial Statements. Estimates and judgements are evaluated 
based on historical experiences and expected outcomes and 
are believed to be reasonable at the time such estimates and 
judgements are made, although actual experience may vary from 
these estimates. The estimates and assumptions which have the 
most significant bearing on the carrying value of assets or liabilities 
are explained below:

1) Basis of Consolidation

The Society has a number of Branches (‘Courts’) as well as 
one subsidiary entity, Foresters General Insurance Services 
Limited. The Society also has a number of Court fund deposits 
invested in organisations known as ‘Investment Associations’. 
The Society is in a position where it can exert control over The 
Leeds District of the Ancient Order of Foresters’ Investment 
Association. At 31 December 2014, the Society also had 
control over The Sheffield and Hallamshire District of the 
Ancient Order of Foresters’ Investment Associations, which was 
dissolved on 10 February 2015.

The Derby and Derbyshire Foresters’ Investment Association 
states within its rules that the members of the Association consist 
of those individuals who are members of depositing Courts, and 
not the Courts themselves. There are members of the Derby 
Investment Association who are not members of the depositing 
Courts. The ownership of the Association and controlling voting 
rights therefore rest with those individual members and not the 
Courts. There are no future economic benefits accruing in the 
Derby Investment Association in respect of the Society.

These consolidated financial statements therefore only include 
the results of the Society, its Courts and the Leeds Investment 
Association. Further information is contained within note 2 to 
these Financial Statements.

Notes to the Accounts (continued)
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2) Classification of Contracts

A key issue for the Society under FRS 103 is that a distinction 
is made between insurance contracts and investment 
contracts. The Society issues contracts that transfer insurance 
risk, financial risk or both. Insurance contracts are those 
contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Such 
contracts may also transfer financial risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial 
risk with no significant insurance risk.

For each product type within the Society’s portfolio, 
Management has reviewed the level of benefits under the 
contract to determine the appropriate contract classification. 
All with-profits contracts have been classified as participating 
contracts as these contracts entitle the holder to receive, as 
a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits or 
bonuses that are likely to be a significant portion of the total 
contractual benefits whose amount or timing is contractually  
at the discretion of the Society.

As a result of this review, one product, the POIS unit-linked 
MoneyBond Fund, has been classified as an Investment Contract.

3)  Technical Provisions - Valuation of investment and long-
term insurance contract liabilities

Technical provisions are calculated using policy data held on 
the Society’s administration systems and assumptions set 
using internal and external data as inputs to actuarial valuation 
models. The assessment of the appropriate carrying value of 
the technical provisions requires the Society to make significant 
judgements when determining the underlying assumptions. 
The principal economic assumption is the inflation rate for 
future expenses, while the principal non-economic assumption 
is the allowance for future expenses. The assumptions used 
for mortality, morbidity and longevity are based on standard 
industry or reinsurers’ tables, adjusted where appropriate to 
reflect the Society’s own experience. The assumptions used 
for expenses, lapse and surrender rates are based on product 
characteristics and relevant claims experience. The valuation 
interest rates used to discount projected cashflows are a 
duration-specific risk-free yield curve specified by EIPOA (the 
European Insurance and Occupational Pensions Authority) 
under Solvency II regulations. Due to the long-term nature 
of these obligations, the estimates are subject to significant 
uncertainty. Further details on specific assumptions are 
provided in note 20 to these Financial Statements.

4) Valuation of Investment Properties

The Society owns a portfolio of Investment Properties which 
are held for long-term rental yield and capital growth. This 
portfolio is valued on an open market basis on an annual basis 
by Society appointed Chartered Surveyors. The valuations 
have been prepared in accordance with the RICS Valuation 
Standards on the basis of Market Value. In preparing these 

valuations, data and information available concerning rental 
yields, lease terms, voids and floor areas, and enquiries within 
local market places have been used as contributing factors 
to each individual property’s valuation.  The most significant 
inputs into this valuation approach are the rental income and 
yield assumptions. Further details are provided in note 12 to 
these Financial Statements.

5) Valuation of Financial Assets

The Society holds a number of financial assets as described 
in the investments accounting policy on page 66. The Society 
has no financial assets held for trading, all investments are 
classified and valued at fair value. Such assets are measured at 
market prices, or prices consistent with market ratings should 
no price be available. Any unrealised or realised gains or losses 
are taken to the appropriate Income and Expenditure Account 
as they occur. Further details are provided in note 13 to 
these Financial Statements.

6) Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

In determining the pension cost and the defined benefit 
obligation of the Society’s defined benefit pension schemes, a 
number of assumptions are used. These assumptions include 
an appropriate discount rate, the levels of salary escalation, 
price inflation and mortality rates. Further details are contained 
in note 23 to these Financial Statements.

7) Intangible Assets - PVIF

The Society holds a PVIF asset in respect of the POIS acquisition 
in 2014 and assesses this intangible asset for signs of impairment 
on an annual basis. As part of this review process, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is determined using value in use calculations, 
which requires estimates of future cash flows and as such is 
subject to estimates and assumptions. The test for impairment of 
the PVIF involves a comparison of the portfolio movements over 
the accounting period with the assumptions made in the original 
PVIF calculation. This includes analysis of the number and type of 
policies in-force, the nature and value of policy exits, the value of 
funds under management, the level of premium income and the 
costs of administering the business. Further details are contained 
in note 11 to these Financial Statements.
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2. Investment Associations
The Society had a number of Court fund deposits invested in organisations known as ‘Investment Associations’. These Associations are all 
registered as Specially Authorised Societies under the Friendly Society Act. The Associations have their own constitutions or rules and are 
governed by a Committee of Management that is independent to the Society’s Board of Directors. The objective of these Associations is to 
receive deposits of registered friendly societies and their branches and to invest the same for their benefit. All Investment Associations are 
unincorporated Associations and are registered in England and Wales. In all cases they do not have issued share capital and their principal 
country of operation is Great Britain. The Society is currently in a position where it can exert control over The Leeds District of the Ancient 
Order of Foresters’ Investment Association.  Furthermore, the Society’s rules clearly allow for exercising control through their ability to ask 
Courts to withdraw their deposits. This Association has been consolidated using the equity accounting method in line with the requirements 
of FRS 102. The Sheffield & Hallamshire District of the Ancient Order of Foresters Investment Associations was legally dissolved on 10 
February 2015 with all final proceeds returned to the depositing Courts in proportion to their deposited values.

The Investment Association deposits are investments of the Court and Discretionary funds and consequently have no impact on the 
insurance results shown in the Technical Account.

At a specially arranged Extraordinary General Meeting on 27 January 2010, the Court depositors of the Sheffield & Hallamshire District 
of the Ancient Order of Foresters’ Investment Associations voted to dissolve the Association. Professional advisers were appointed by 
the Association’s Committee of Management to support the Committee through the dissolution process. As at 31 December 2015, the 
dissolution process was complete.

The Derby and Derbyshire Foresters’ Investment Association, states within its rules that the members of the Association consist of those 
individuals who are members of depositing Courts, and not the Courts themselves. The ownership of the Association and controlling voting 
rights rest with those individual members and not the Courts. Deposits by Courts in The Derby and Derbyshire Foresters’ Investment 
Association are shown at the deposit value (cost), which represents cash invested along with cumulative interest and bonuses paid.  
At 31 December 2016 these deposits totalled £3,605,527 (2015: £3,448,175) as shown in note 13, Other Financial Investments.

Financial information for the year ended
31 December 2016

2016 2015 

Profit/(loss) 
for the year 

£’000

Total Assets 
£’000

Profit/(loss) 
for the year 

£’000

Total Assets 
£’000

The Leeds District of the Ancient Order of Foresters’ 
Investment Association  804  17,242 (221) 16,433
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3. Earned Premiums-Long Term Business

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Gross premium written 20,521 18,906
Outward reinsurance premiums (116) (122)
Net earned premiums  20,405 18,784

Gross premium written:

Unit-linked Premium Income
Investment and savings - Regular premiums 5,387 5,264

Non-linked Premium Income
Life cover business - regular premiums 4,143 4,187
Pensions business - regular premiums 45 68
Investment and savings - single premiums 4,210 2,911
Industrial business - regular premiums 18 59
Group business - regular premiums 6,718 6,417

 20,521 18,906

The above includes premiums in respect of participating business 7,958 6,648

Single premiums relate to products issued by the Society which allow for one premium only or allow for recurrent single premiums.  
Regular premiums contractually allow for payments on a regular basis and have been annualised in the gross new business premiums.

The breakdown of earned premiums set out above for regular premiums are estimated using the brought forward and carried forward  
in-force premiums at the 31 December.

The Society uses an alternative performance measurement to measure sales of new long-term business policies. Annual premium 
equivalent (APE) is an industry standard measure which measures sales as the value of regular premiums plus 10% of any new single 
premiums written during the year.

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Gross new business premiums (APE)
Life cover business – regular premiums  435  343 
Group business – regular premiums  1,100  48 
Investment and savings – single premiums  421  291 
Investment and savings – regular premiums  1,065  897 

 3,021 1,579
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4. Investment Returns-Long Term Business

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

a) Investment Income – Long Term Business
Income from property investments 526 628
Income from listed investments 4,604 4,497
Income from other investments 52 372
Sub-total income 5,182 5,497

(Losses)/gains on the realisation of property investments 4 79
(Losses)/gains on the realisation of listed investments 2,110 5,733
Sub-total realised (losses)/gains 2,114 5,812

7,296 11,309

b) Unrealised gains/(losses) on Investments
Unrealised gains/(losses) from property investments  192 1,355
Unrealised gains/(losses) from listed and other investments 8,968 (7,434)
Reversal of previously recognised unrealised losses - -

9,160 (6,079)

c) Investment expenses and charges – Long-Term Business
Investment management expenses and charges 429 471

5. Claims Incurred-Long Term Business

6. Change In Technical Provisions-Long Term Business & Linked Liabilities

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Gross claims payable 24,131 25,164
Cost of administration 169 178

 24,300 25,342

Gross 
£’000

Reinsurance 
£’000

Net 
£’000

Change in Long term business provision
At 1 January 2016  113,590 (188)  113,402
Movement in year  1,770 68  1,838
At 31 December 2016  115,360 (120)  115,240

Change in technical provision for linked liabilities
At 1 January 2016  33,105 -  33,105 
Movement in year  3,298 -  3,298 
At 31 December 2016  36,403 -  36,403 
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Gross 
£’000

Reinsurance 
£’000

Net 
£’000

Change in Long term business provision
At 1 January 2015 (as reported) 100,074 (404) 99,670
Restatement 19,695 26 19,721
At 1 January 2015 (restated) 119,769 (378) 119,391
Movement in year (6,179) 190 (5,989)
At 31 December 2015 113,590 (188) 113,402

Change in technical provision for linked liabilities
At 1 January 2015 32,853 - 32,853
Movement in year 252 - 252
At 31 December 2015 33,105 - 33,105

7. Net operating expenses

2016 
£’000

Restated 2015 
£’000

a) Operating Expenses
Long Term business 2,952 2,725
PVIF Amortisation  210 210
General Business 154 148
Non Technical Account 2,370 1,840
Court Operating Expenses 3,357 3,169

 9,043 8,092
Total operating expenses for the year amount to £9.0m (Restated 2015: £8.1m)

b) Long Term Business
Acquisition costs 1,421 1,173
Change in deferred acquisition costs (see note 29) - (40)
Administrative expenses 1,531 1,592

 2,952 2,725
Acquisition costs include commissions paid of £512,939 (2015: £463,425) 

c) Non-Technical Account and Court Operating Expenses

Non-Technical Account expenses of £2,370,000 (2015: £1,840,000) consist of the allocation of central expenses which are not directly related to individual 
insurance funds or Courts. They represent the indirect costs of running the business of the Society and include strategy and project costs such as Solvency II. 
Court Operating expenses of £3,357,000 (2015: £3,169,000) include both the allocated expenses from Head Office and the directly borne expenses.

Transfers between the Technical and Non-Technical Accounts reflect the allocation of monies received or paid in respect of insurance and other business 
activities, including any financial support provided to the insurance business.

d) Net operating expenses includes:
Fees payable to the Society’s auditor for the audit of the annual accounts  161  100
Other services supplied pursuant to legislation – PRA Returns -  23
Total audit fees  161  123
Audit related services - -
Other non-audit fees - -
Total fees paid to Deloitte LLP 161 123
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 59  64
Operating lease rental charges  8  9

e) Operating leases

Annual commitments under operating leases for motor vehicles which 
expire between one and five years

 8  9
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8. Staff costs

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

a) Employees
i) Staff Costs
Wages and salaries  2,474 2,209
Social security costs  247 240
Other pension costs  198 178

 2,919 2,627

Number Number

ii) Average number of persons employed:
Board and Senior Management  10 9
Administration and other  50 46
Area Co-ordinators  12 12

 72 67

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

b) Board emoluments
Remuneration (including benefits in kind)  409 319
Compensation for loss of office - -
Pension scheme contributions (money purchase) 33 15
Total  442 334

Full details of Directors’ emoluments are contained in the Directors’ Remuneration report on pages 43 to 45.

9. Taxation

2016 
£’000

As previously reported 
2015 £’000

Surplus of technical income over technical charges 3,834 633
Taxation on Technical Surplus at standard UK corporation tax rate of 20% (2015: 20%) 767 127

Effects of:
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised (767) (87)
Release of deferred taxation held in respect of pension scheme assets (note 22) - (76)

Consolidated total tax charge/(credit) for the period - (36)

There was no current tax charge in either 2016 or 2015 due to the losses the Society is carrying forward. At 31 December 2016, these 
losses stood at £6,927,250 (2015: £4,848,719) in respect of excess management expenses. As at 31 December 2016 there are realised 
capital losses carried forward of £279,434 (2015: £2,277,080) which can be relieved against unrealised gains of £3,283,909 (2015: 
£138,711). These losses are available to be used against future profits of the Society.

A deferred tax credit of £Nil (2015: £76,000). 



73

Financial Statements

10. Non-technical investment returns

2016 Group 
£’000

2016 Society 
£’000

2015 Group 
£’000

2015 Society 
£’000

a) Investment Income
Income from property investments 2,879 2,609 2,627 2,384
Income from listed investments 911 632 1,022 815
Income from other investments 237 35 343 114
Sub-total income 4,027 3,276 3,992 3,313

Gains/(losses) on the realisation of listed investments 413 413 1,052 1,052
Gains/(losses) on the realisation of property investments 326 380 326 331
Sub-total realised gains/(losses) 739 793 1,378 1,383

Court held assets;
Income from property investments 130 130 103 103
Income from mainland Court investments 422 1,199 181 1,044
Other income – Courts 394 394 563 563
Gains/(losses) on realisation of investments - - 202 202

946 1,723 1,049 1,912

5,712 5,792 6,419 6,608

b) Unrealised (losses)/gains on Investments
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 2,284 1,201  5,474  5,464
Reversal of previously recognised unrealised 
(gains)/losses on listed investments 188 188 (805) (805)

Reversal of previously recognised unrealised 
(gains)/losses on property investments (668) (668) (681) (681)

1,804 721 3,988 3,978

c) Unrealised gains/(losses) on Court Investments
Unrealised gains on Court investments  3,185  3,185 183 183

d) Investment Management Expenses and Charges
Investment expenses and charges 439 439 492 492
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11. Intangible assets

12. Land and buildings

On acquisition of the POIS portfolio of insurance contracts on 26 September 2014, the net present value of the Society’s interest in the 
expected cash flows of the in-force business was capitalised as an intangible asset as shown above, known as the Purchased Value 
of In-force Business (PVIF).

PVIF is amortised over the remaining anticipated lives of the related contracts which is between 5 and 15 years. Amortisation is recognised 
within net operating expenses in the Income and Expenditure account.

2016 2015 

Group 
£’000

Society 
£’000

Group 
£’000

Society 
£’000

PVIF PVIF
Cost
At 1 January 1,400 1,400 1,400 1,400
Additions - - - -
At 31 December 1,400 1,400 1,400 1,400

Amortisation
At 1 January (280) (280) (70) (70)
Charged during the period (210) (210) (210) (210)
At 31 December (490) (490) (280) (280)

Net Book Value
31 December 2016 910 910
31 December 2015 1,120 1,120

Group Freehold 
£’000

Long 
Leasehold 

£’000

Occupied by 
Society 
£’000

Court & Investment 
Association 

Properties £’000

Total 
£’000

Market Value
At 1 January 2016 49,458 2,256 1,265 10,707 63,686
Additions 7,000  3,697  -  888  11,585
Disposals (9,021) (1,302)  - (688) (11,011)
Revaluation 4,145 (415) 40  497  4,267
At 31 December 2016 51,582 4,236 1,305 11,404 68,527

Society Freehold 
£’000

Long 
Leasehold 

£’000

Occupied by 
Society 
£’000

Court Properties 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Market Value
At 1 January 2016 49,458 2,256 1,265 3,703 56,682
Additions 7,000  3,697  -  -  10,697 
Disposals (9,021) (1,302)  - (65) (10,388)
Revaluation 4,145 (415) 40  316  4,086 
At 31 December 2016 51,582 4,236 1,305 3,954 61,077
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13. Other financial investments

All investment properties, except the Court and Investment Association properties and properties purchased within the previous 12 months, 
were valued by Aston Rose Chartered Surveyors as at 30 November 2016 in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ 
guidelines on the basis of Market Value, taking into account the remaining periods of leases granted to tenants. Properties purchased 
within the 12 months prior to 30 November 2016 were valued by Allsop. The properties have then been indexed in value to 31 December 
2016 in line with the IPD Index. The property occupied by the Society, Foresters House, and the property occupied in Tunstall were 
valued at the same date by Aston Rose Chartered Surveyors on an Existing Use Value basis. No allowance has been made for the costs of 
realisation. Court and Investment Association properties have been valued by a number of different professional independent valuers on a 
Market Value basis as at 31 December 2016, taking into account the remaining periods of leases granted to tenants. Property costs have 
been restated as at 1 January 2003 at the value at the Society’s Incorporation.

In order for these accounts to show a true and fair view it is appropriate not to provide depreciation on land and buildings as it is considered 
that their useful economic lives and residual values are such that their depreciation is immaterial.

2016 2015 

Group 
£’000

Society 
£’000

Group 
£’000

Society 
£’000

At Market Value
Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts 37,201 27,067 46,577 39,340
Debt securities and other fixed income securities 92,949 91,775 79,327 78,304
Investments listed on UK recognised investment exchange                                                             130,150  118,842 125,904 117,644
Loans secured by mortgages 99 99 144 124
Other investments  115  115 117 117
Deposits in Investment Associations 3,606 13,142 3,448 12,489
Investment in subsidiary 10 10 10 10
Court held other investments-mainland 11 11 11 11
Court held other investments-Guernsey 1,151 1,151 1,026 1,026
Other financial investments  135,142  133,370  130,660  131,421
Assets held to cover linked liabilities (see below) 36,403 36,403 33,105 33,105

171,545 169,773 163,765 164,526

Listed investments were valued at their bid value at 31 December 2016. Mortgages and other investments are included at their book cost. 
Investment Association investments were valued at market value by the Association’s professional advisors. Investment in subsidiary includes 
the cost of £10,000 for all the shares in Foresters General Insurance Services Limited, which is incorporated in the United Kingdom.

2016 2015 

Group 
£’000

Society 
£’000

Group 
£’000

Society 
£’000

Analysis of assets held to cover linked liabilities
Debt securities and other fixed income securities                                 2,224 2,224 2,450 2,450
Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts 33,647 33,647 29,934 29,934
Other investments 532 532 721 721

 36,403  36,403 33,105 33,105



76

13. Other financial investments – continued

Fair Value measurement
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair values are 
generally determined at prices quoted in an active market (level 1). Where such information is not available it may be possible to apply 
calculation techniques making use of market observable data for all significant inputs (level 2). Where inputs are not based on observable 
market data, fair value are classified as level 3. The classification by level of the Society’s key financial assets are as set out below.

All debtors are due within 1 year.

Group 2016 Society 2016

Level 1 
£’000

Level 2 
£’000

Level 3 
£’000

Level 1 
£’000

Level 2 
£’000

Level 3 
£’000

Financial Assets
Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts 37,201 - - 27,067 - -
Debt securities and other fixed income securities 92,949 - - 91,775 - -
Assets held to cover linked liabilities 36,403 - - 36,403 - -
Land and Buildings - - 68,527 - - 61,077

 166,553 -  68,527  155,245 -  61,077

Group 2015 Society 2015

Level 1 
£’000

Level 2 
£’000

Level 3 
£’000

Level 1 
£’000

Level 2 
£’000

Level 3 
£’000

Financial Assets
Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts 46,577 - - 39,340 - -
Debt securities and other fixed income securities 79,327 - - 78,304 - -
Assets held to cover linked liabilities 33,105 - - 33,105 - -
Land and Buildings - - 63,686 - - 56,682

159,009 - 63,686 150,749 - 56,682

14. Other debtors

2016 2015 

Group 
£’000

Society 
£’000

Group 
£’000

Society 
£’000

Trade debtors 998 998 365 285
Other debtors including taxation recoverable 1,175 1,175 549 596

 2,173  2,173 914 881
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Following the adoption of a realistic valuation methodology for estimating the value of liabilities, in accordance with the amendments to FRS 
103, acquisition costs are no longer deferred for with-profits funds. This is explained further in note 29.

15. Tangible fixed assets (Group and Society)

16. Deferred acquisition costs (Group and Society)

Fixtures & Fittings  
£’000

Total 
£’000

Cost
As at 1 January 2016  1,069  1,069 
Additions 2 2
Disposals (15) (15)
As at 31 December 2016  1,056  1,056

Depreciation
As at 1 January 2016  899  899 
Charge for the year 59 59
Disposals - -
As at 31 December 2016  958  958 

Net Book Value
31 December 2016  98  98
31 December 2015  170  170

Prior Year Information: Fixtures & Fittings  
£’000

Total 
£’000

Cost
As at 1 January 2015  1,910  1,910 
Additions 43 43
Disposals (884) (884)
As at 31 December 2015  1,069  1,069

Depreciation
As at 1 January 2015  1,714  1,714 
Charge for the year 64 64
Disposals (879) (879)
As at 31 December 2015  899  899 

Net Book Value
31 December 2015  170  170 
31 December 2014  196  196 

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

At 1 January - 415
Restatement - (415)
At 1 January (restated) - -
Movement - -
At 31 December - -
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17. Discretionary funds

18. Court funds

2016 2015 

Group 
£’000

Society 
£’000

Group 
£’000

Society 
£’000

At 1 January 11,993 2,579 6,618 (2,775)
Transfer from/(to) non-technical account 937 240 5,375 5,354
At 31 December 12,930 2,819 11,993 2,579

These funds are comprised as follows:
Court Reserve Fund 12,189 2,078 11,221 1,808
Convalescent Home Benefit Fund 59 59 30 30
Foresters Child Support Fund 418 418 394 394
Foresters Lifeboat Fund 4 4 4 4
150th Anniversary Educational Awards Fund 167 167 189 188
Foresters Support Fund 73 73 90 90
Police Benevolent Fund 8 8 21 21
Subsidiary Benefit Funds 12 12 44 44
At 31 December 12,930 2,819 11,993 2,579

The Discretionary funds are those funds with specific purposes as determined by the Society.

Mainland Courts 
£’000

Guernsey Court 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Group
At 1 January 2016 74,795 521 75,316
Transfer from non-technical account 3,477 153 3,630
At 31 December 2016 78,272 674 78,946

Society
At 1 January 2016 67,797 521 68,318
Transfer from/(to) non-technical account 3,370 153 3,523
At 31 December 2016 71,167 674 71,841
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19. Fund for future appropriations (Group and Society)

The Fund for Future Appropriations (‘FFA’) stands at £24.4m (2015 restated: £21.5m) and represents the estimated surplus in the funds 
that has not been allocated and is available to meet regulatory and other solvency requirements. Following the adoption of a realistic 
valuation approach for long term insurance liabilities (which resulted in a prior year restatement), the proportion of the FFA previously 
shown as belonging to the with-profit policyholders now forms part of the Long Term Business provision, the main constituent of the FFA 
now represents member funds.

More information on the prior year restatement is shown in note 29.

The Long Term Business provision includes pension annuity guarantees of £1,318,769 (2015 restated: £1,122,038).

20. Technical Provisions (Group and Society)

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

At 1 January 21,471 42,470
Restatement (see note 29)  -  (20,136)

21,471 22,334
Transfer from/(to) technical account 3,834 1,604
Transfer from/(to) non-technical account (907) (2,467)
Pension schemes actuarial gain/(loss)  -  - 
At 31 December 24,398 21,471

2016 Gross
Long Term 

Business Provision 
£’000

Technical Provision 
for Linked Liabilities

£’000

General Business 
Provision 

£’000

Outstanding 
Claims 
£’000

Total 
£’000

At 1 January 2016 (restated) 113,603  33,105 3,270 1,904 151,882
Premiums received 14,684 5,162 - -  19,846
Liabilities paid on exits (17,722) (6,579) - - (24,301)
Maintenance Expenses (5,215) - - - (5,215)
Interest (i) 814 236 - -  1,050
New business 429 412 - -  841
Changes to liabilities:
-  Insurance variance & assumptions (109) - - - (109)
-  Expenses & Inflation (316) - - - (316)
-  Economic variance 5,588 4,883 - - 10,471
-  Economic assumptions 3,588  -  182  - 3,770
-  Other 29 (816)  -  - (787)
Change in provision for outstanding claims  -  -  - 101 101
At 31 December 2016 115,373 36,403 3,452 2,005 157,233

Reinsurers’ share
At 1 January 2016 (restated) 188  -  -  -  188
Change in reinsurers’ share (68)  -  -  - (68)
At 31 December 2016 120  -  -  - 120

( i ) Interest expected on a reserving basis.
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( i ) Interest expected on a reserving basis.

2015 Gross
Long Term 

Business Provision 
£’000

Technical Provision 
for Linked Liabilities

£’000

General Business 
Provision 

£’000

Outstanding 
Claims 
£’000

Total 
£’000

At 1 January 2015 100,074  32,869 3,142 2,303 138,388
Restatement 19,695 - - - 19,695
At 1 January 2015 (restated - see note 29) 119,769 32,869 3,142 2,303 158,083
Premiums received 13,302 4,957 - -  18,259 
Liabilities paid on exits (19,173) (6,082) - - (25,255)
Maintenance Management Expenses (4,360) - - - (4,360)
Interest (i) 747 207 - -  954
New business 333 306 - -  639 
Changes to liabilities:
-  Insurance variance & assumptions 416 - - - 416
- Expenses & Inflation 380  - -  - 380
-  Economic variance 1,303 1,441  -  - 2,744
-  Economic assumptions 1,670  -  128 - 1,798
-  Other (784) (593) - - (1,377)
Change in provision for outstanding claims - - - (399) (399)
At 31 December 2015 113,603 33,105 3,270 1,904 151,882

Reinsurers’ share
At 1 January 2015 404  -  -  - 404
Restatement (26) - - - (26)
At 1 January 2015 (restated) 378 - - - 378
Change in reinsurers’ share (190)  -  -  - (190)
At 31 December 2015 188  -  -  - 188

(a) Introduction

The Long Term Business Provision primarily comprises the liabilities of the following funds:

• Order Insurance Fund (OIF) - an open with-profits fund

• Non-Profit Fund (NPF) – an open non-profit fund mainly selling unit-linked business

• Group Business Fund (GBF) - an open non-profit fund selling Group and PHI business

• Group Capital Fund (GCF) – a fund that supports the capital requirements of the Society

• POIS Fund (POIS) – a closed with-profits fund

• Tunstall Fund (TF) – a closed with-profits fund

• Sick and Death Fund (S&D) – a closed non-profit fund

• Pure Endowment Fund (PEF) – a closed with-profits fund

• Leek Fund (LF) – a closed with-profits fund

The General Business provision is held in respect of medical and medical services insurance protection business conducted by the Court in 
Guernsey. This is classified as general overseas business and is shown separately in the Technical Account.

The provision for outstanding claims consists of all claims notified to the Society by 31 December 2016 but not yet paid.

20. Technical Provisions (Group and Society) – continued
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(b) Types of insurance contracts

The main types of insurance contracts that the Society currently has in force are savings, life assurance and income protection contracts.

The Order Insurance Fund is open to with-profits savings and life assurance business and the main products currently offered are as follows:

The Non-Profit Fund is open to unit-linked savings business and the main products currently offered are as follows:

The Group Business Fund is open to non-profit business for group schemes and the main products are as follows:

No new business (other than increments to existing policies) is written in the other funds of the Society.

Product name Description

Guaranteed Savings Plan A long-term regular savings plan with a guaranteed cash sum at the end of the chosen term and 
the potential for bonuses to increase the policy value.

Tax Exempt Savings Plan
A long-term regular tax exempt savings plan with a guaranteed tax-free cash sum at the end of 
the chosen term and the potential for bonuses to increase the policy value.

With-profit (Stocks & Shares) ISA
A flexible medium to long-term tax-free savings plan which can accept regular investments or one-
off lump sum investments up to the maximum annual ISA limit. There is the potential for bonuses 
to increase the policy value. 

Bond A single lump sum investment with the potential for bonuses to be added over the medium to long term.

50+ Life Cover
A with-profit whole of life insurance policy for the over 50s, providing a guaranteed tax-free cash 
sum on death which has the potential to grow with bonuses over time. The monthly premiums are 
fixed at outset and guaranteed not to change.

Product name Description

Tax Exempt Savings Plan
A long-term regular tax exempt savings plan of which the premium is used to allocate units in the 
POIS Flexible Growth Fund. The fund invests in a range of investments such as gilts, corporate 
bonds and equities, both UK and overseas, for the potential of long-term growth. 

Savings & Investment Plan
A long-term regular savings plan of which the premium is used to allocate units in the POIS 
Savings Fund. The fund invests mainly in UK stocks and shares for a potential for growth over the 
longer term. 

Product name Description

Group Life & Sickness Schemes

These are set up by employers to provide life assurance, critical illness and/or income protection 
benefits for employees. The employees have the option of joining the scheme and paying the 
appropriate premiums for the selected benefits. A range of different benefit types is available and 
these are tailored to the individual scheme.
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20. Technical Provisions (Group and Society) – continued
(c) Method used for calculating technical provisions

The liability for insurance contracts is calculated on the basis 
of recognised actuarial methods having due regard to actuarial 
principles and best practice. The methodology takes into account 
risks and uncertainties of the business written.

Calculations are generally made on an individual policy basis, 
although for Group schemes the reserves are set at a portfolio level 
allowing for the mix of different schemes (by size and benefit type).

Technical provisions are calculated in line with the PRA Rulebook 
which implements the European Union’s Solvency II Directive 
2009/138/EC, amended by Omnibus II in April 2014 (“Solvency II”). 
Technical provisions are the sum of the BEL (Best Estimate Liability) 
and the Risk Margin. The risk margin allows for the cost to a third 
party of holding Solvency II capital until all the contracts are settled.

For the with-profits business within OIF, TF, PEF and POIS the 
BEL consists of policy asset shares plus the cost of guarantees 
and any adjustment for the cost of smoothing. For Leek Fund a 
gross premium reserve is calculated.

The liabilities for the individual sickness policies are calculated 
using the inception annuity method on a gross premium basis, 
which values the expected future claim payments from the 
valuation date to the end of each policy term.

The liabilities for the Group business are calculated using a 
scheme level cashflow model that allows for:

• future premiums, claims and expenses;

•  IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) claims which have already 
occurred but have not been notified to us; and

• the cost of periodic claims already in payment

The liabilities for the general business written in Guernsey are 
calculated in accordance with local regulatory requirements.

The liabilities for protection business are calculated using a 
gross premium basis.

For unit-linked business, the liabilities are made up of the unit 
liability together with a non-linked element. The unit-linked 
policies with a guaranteed return are valued using closed-form 
solutions (Black-Scholes).

(d) Assumptions used for calculating technical provisions

The principal economic assumption is the valuation interest rate 
which, under Solvency II regulations, is a duration-specific curve 
specified by EIOPA (the European Insurance and Occupational 
Pensions Authority).

EIOPA publish on their website the duration specific valuation 
interest rates to use at each valuation date for a range of 
currencies. The Society only has liabilities denominated in £ 
sterling, therefore a single valuation interest rate curve is used for 
all calculations of technical provisions.

Non-economic assumptions are based on standard tables 
adjusted where necessary to take into account the Society’s 
own experience. Where appropriate tables are not available, 
industry experience is used to calculate provisions. The principal 
assumptions are mortality, morbidity and persistency although the 
relative sensitivity will depend on the class of long-term business.

Experience investigations for mortality, morbidity and persistency 
are performed on a regular basis. Where industry analysis indicate 
that changes in expected future mortality, morbidity or other 
specific circumstances mean that claim costs are likely to change in 
future, then this is taken into account in the valuation. Assumptions 
are generally intended to be a best estimate of future experience.

The key insurance assumptions used to calculate the liabilities 
are as follows:

At 31 December
Mortality tables used

2016 2015

OIF Conventional With-profits and 
PEF With-profits

Males
160% AMC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000
160% AMC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000

Females
160% AFC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000
160% AFC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000

OIF Accumulating With-profits 

Males
104% AMC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000
160% AMC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000

Females
104% AFC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000
160% AFC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000

NPF unit-linked contracts
Males 60% AMC00 45% AMC00

Females 45% AFC00 60% AFC00

Tunstall Industrial business with-profits

Males
80% AMC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000
80% AMC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000

Females
110% AFC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000
110% AFC00 with 1.3% per annum 

improvement since 2000
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The main change to the valuation assumptions has been the interest rate change which has increased technical provisions by approximately £3.7m 
(2015 restated: increased technical provisions by approximately £0.4m). Other valuation assumption changes have not been significant.

21. Capital statement (Group and Society)
The Capital Statement in respect of the Society’s Life insurance business is set out below. The statement shows the analysis of the 
available capital resources, the solvency capital requirements and the overall surplus capital. In addition the statement provides an 
analysis of policyholders’ liabilities.

At 31 December 2016 With-profit funds 
£’000

Non-participating 
funds

 £’000

Group Capital 
Fund 

£’000

Total 
£’000

Qualifying capital
Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA) 2,990 13,704 7,704  24,398 
Regulatory adjustments – assets - - (1,089) (1,089)
Regulatory adjustments – liabilities - - 910 910
Total available capital resources  2,990  13,704 7,525  24,219 
Solvency capital requirement (12,328)
Overall surplus capital  11,891 

Analysis of policyholders’ liabilities
With-profits  103,810 - -  103,810 
Non-participating - 2,382  9,182  11,564 
Unit-linked -  36,403 -  36,403 
Claims outstanding  1,498  306  201  2,005 

 105,308  39,091  9,383  153,782 

At 31 December
Mortality tables used

2016 2015

Tunstall Industrial business non-profit
Males 65% AMC00 65% AMC00

Females 90% AFC00 90% AFC00

Leek contracts
Males 90% AMC00 90% AMC00

Females 90% AFC00 90% AFC00

S&D Non-profit contracts 
Males 130% AMC00 130% AMC00

Females 130% AFC00 130% AFC00

POIS/NPF all contracts except 
unit-linked and whole life non-profit 
contracts

Males 45% AM80 45% AM80

Females 45% AF80 65% AF80

POIS/NPF whole life non-profit contracts
Males 110% AMC00 110% AMC00

Females 110% AFC00 110% AFC00
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At 31 December 2015 With-profit funds 
£’000

Non-participating 
funds

 £’000

Group Capital 
Fund 

£’000

Total 
£’000

Qualifying capital
Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA) 3,727 11,864 5,880 21,471
Regulatory adjustments – assets - - (1,120) (1,120)
Regulatory adjustments – liabilities - - 1,120 1,120
Total available capital resources 3,727 11,864 5,880 21,471
Solvency capital requirement (15,246)
Overall surplus capital 6,225

Analysis of policyholders’ liabilities
With-profits 98,518 - - 98,518
Non-participating - 3,391 11,693 15,084
Unit-linked -  33,105 -  33,105 
Claims outstanding  1,226 493 185 1,904

99,744 36,989 11,878 148,611

(a) Summary

As shown in the Capital Statement on the previous page, the 
total available capital resources of the Society’s insurance 
operations amount to £24.2m (2015: £21.5m), its solvency 
capital requirements amount to £12.3m (2015: £15.2m) 
resulting in a surplus of available capital of £11.9m (2015: 
£6.2m). The increase in surplus of available capital is driven by 
strong investment returns in 2016 and lower solvency capital 
requirements due to purchasing pandemic reinsurance for the 
Group business, a reassessment of the Society’s future expense 
inflation and reduced market risk taken in the non-profit funds.

Apart from the capital employed by the Society’s insurance 
operations, the Society also has capital in funds known as Court 
Funds and Discretionary Benefit Funds. These funds are not 
available to support either the long term insurance business or 
general insurance business activities of the Society.

It is the Board’s intention to ensure that there is adequate capital 
to exceed the solvency capital requirements of the Society’s 
insurance business, to meet any net new business strain and to 
meet any additional capital requirements of the Own Solvency 
and Risk Assessment.

(b) Basis for calculating available capital resources 

The Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA) represents the estimated 
surplus in the funds that has not been allocated to policyholders or 
members and is available to meet the solvency requirements.

Adjustments are shown to assets and liabilities to bridge between 
the FFA and the available capital determined in accordance with 
the PRA Rulebook. Allowance has been made in the technical 
provisions for Guarantees and Options which are features of life 
assurance that confer potentially valuable benefits to policyholders. 

The Society maintains two types of guarantees in the with-profits 
funds: Maturity Guarantees and Guaranteed Annuity Options 
(GAOs). Maturity Guarantees are in respect of conventional with-
profits business and represent the sum assured and reversionary 
bonuses declared to date. GAO’s apply to some personal pensions 
on retirement but are not considered material and are largely 
matched with suitable assets with no material risk to market 
or interest rate changes.

(c) Basis of calculating capital requirements

The Society must hold sufficient capital to meet its 
regulatory requirements.

The Society is required to hold sufficient capital to meet the PRA’s 
minimum capital requirements (MCR). The absolute floor of the 
MCR is fixed in Euro terms at €3.7m. Using the conversion rate 
specified by EIOPA this is equivalent to £3.3m at 31 December 
2016. The Society’s calculated capital requirements exceed 
this minimum floor.

The total insurance solvency capital requirement (SCR) of the 
Society amount to £12.3m (2015: £15.2m) The SCR is the 
additional capital required when a prescribed set of stress tests 
as set by the PRA are applied simultaneously to the value of the 
assets and liabilities. This includes the following three tests as at 
31 December 2016:

• a fall in equity values of 24.22% (2015: 22%); 

• a fall in property prices of 25% (2015: 25%); and 

•  the more onerous of an increase or decrease of fixed interest 
yields specified by the PRA.

21. Capital statement (Group and Society) – continued
The prior year figures were as follows:
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(d) Restrictions on available capital resources 

In general, as the Society is a mutual, all surplus belongs to 
members. As a result of the exercise to clarify the fund structures 
that took effect from 1 January 2012, each insurance fund has 
its own capital. The assets for each of the with-profit funds have 
been ring-fenced which means that the associated assets are for 
the benefit of the with-profit policyholders of the various funds 
and cannot be used to support other areas of the business except 
in exceptional circumstances.

The Group Capital Fund constituent of the FFA is available 
to support all other funds in respect of regulatory and other 
commitments as the Board shall decide after taking advice from 

the Chief Actuary. The increase from £5.9m in 2015 to £7.5m 
in 2016 is primarily due to realised gains from equity sales offset 
by the expenses borne by the Group Capital Fund from new 
business, non-insurance and project costs and by an increase in 
the technical provisions for guaranteed annuity options as a result 
of lower risk-free rates.

The non-participating funds constituent of the FFA increased 
from £11.9m in 2015 to £13.7m in 2016 primarily due to strong 
investment performance.

Full details of these restrictions are publicly available within the 
Society’s Principles and Practices of Financial Management.

The available capital is sensitive to changes in market conditions, due to both changes in the value of the assets and the effect any change 
in investment conditions would have on the basis for calculating policy liabilities. The capital position is also sensitive to assumptions and 
actual experience relating to investment returns, mortality, expenses and policy lapse rates. The mix of assets is kept under review taking 
into account the level of capital required and the anticipated returns for members.

In accordance with FRS 102, the Society is required to disclose that it has an unbooked deferred tax asset of £784,000 (2015: 
£1,549,000) using a deferred taxation rate of 20% (2015: 20%). No deferred tax asset has been booked, due to the uncertainty 
over when the losses will be utilised.

(e) Movement in available capital

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Total available capital at 1 January 21,471 20,644
Change in long term business assets  11,081 (5,164)
Change in non-insurance liabilities (4,021) (29)
Change in insurance liabilities (4,312) 6,020
Total available capital at 31 December 24,219 21,471

Deferred Taxation 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Movements in provision
At 1 January - 76
Charge/(credit) in technical account - (76)
At 31 December - -

Asset not provided for
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on Investments 601 (316)
Acquisition costs (313) (264)
Excess management expenses carried forward (1,072) (969)
Deferred tax asset not recognised in the balance sheet (784) (1,549)

22. Provisions for other risks and charges (Group and Society)
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23. Pension schemes
(a) Defined contribution scheme

The Society operates a defined contribution group stakeholder 
pension scheme: The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society 
Group Stakeholder Pension Plan (FGSPP) for all employees joining 
the Society after 2003. The majority of current staff are members 
of the scheme and contribute to it. The Society contributes 
10% of salaries of all contributing staff into the scheme. The 
contributions made by the Society amounted to £174,885 (2015: 
£161,056). The funds of the scheme are administered by a third 
party and are independent of the Society’s finances. The Society 
has no liability in respect of this defined contribution scheme 
other than future contractual contributions.

(b) Defined benefit schemes

The Society operates two defined benefit schemes: The Ancient 
Order of Foresters 1978 Retirement & Death Benefit Scheme (the 
AOF scheme) and The Tunstall and District Assurance Collecting 
Society Staff Superannuation Fund Scheme (the Tunstall scheme). 
The funds of the schemes are administered by trustees and are 
independent of the Society’s finances. Contributions are paid 
to the scheme in accordance with the recommendations of an 
independent actuarial adviser.

Both defined benefit schemes are closed to new entrants. The AOF 
scheme has 2 (2015: 2) active members, 26 (2015: 26) deferred 
members and 50 (2015: 50) pensioners (including 32 pensioners 
where an annuity has been purchased). The Tunstall scheme has 
2 (2015: 2) active members, 10 (2015: 11) deferred members 
and 14 (2015: 14) pensioners. As the schemes are closed to 
new entrants, the age profile of the active members will tend to 
rise and under the projected unit method the current service cost 
will tend to increase with time.

The employer contributions amount to 0% (2015: 0%) in respect of 
the AOF scheme and 25.7% (2015: 25.7%) in respect of the Tunstall 
scheme. In total, employer contributions to the schemes amounted 
to £22,906 (2015: £17,045) and other costs amounted to 
£57,658 (2015: £58,000).

Details in respect of the schemes are provided below in 
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102). 
A full triennial valuation of the AOF scheme was carried out at 6 
April 2016 and of the Tunstall scheme at 31 December 2016. 
Following the triennial valuation of the AOF Scheme at 6 April 
2016, the Trustees have agreed a proposal that an employer’s 
contribution holiday, introduced in 2014, will continue to be 
applied until the next triennial valuation. There has therefore 
been no employer contributions to the AOF Scheme during the 
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil employer contributions 
were made). A triennial valuation of the Tunstall Scheme as at 31 
December 2016 commenced in 2017.

The actuarial valuations of both schemes have been updated 
to the accounting date by an independent qualified actuary. As 
required by FRS 102, the value of the defined benefit liabilities 
have been measured using the projected unit credit method and 
both the assets and liabilities include the value of those pensions 
in payment that are secured with insured annuities.

The AOF scheme is in surplus and the Tunstall scheme is in 
deficit. At the end of the prior year both schemes were in surplus.

(c) Assumptions for defined benefit schemes

The following table sets out the key FRS 102 assumptions used 
for the two schemes:

31 December 2016 
%

31 December 2015 
%

Discount rate  2.6 3.6
Retail price inflation  3.3 2.8
Consumer price inflation  2.4 1.9
Pension increases  0.0 to 3.2 0.0 to 3.0
Salary growth  3.4 2.9
Life expectancy of a current 65 year old (years)  21 to 23 yrs 21 to 23 yrs
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Assets 31 December 2016 
%

31 December 2015 
%

Equities  50 49
Property  10 11
Bonds  18 18
Gilts  22 22
Cash - -
Total %  100  100 

Balance Sheet position 31 December 2016 
£’000

31 December 2015 
£’000

Total fair value of assets  5,923 5,401
Present value of defined benefit obligation (5,217) (4,439)
Surplus in scheme  706 962
Asset not recognised (450) (728)
Recognised defined benefit asset  256 234

(d) AOF Scheme

The split of assets in the AOF scheme has been as follows:

The net pension asset represents the amount of surplus available to the Society by way of possible reduced future contributions.

Analysis of change in assets: 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Assets in scheme at 1 January 5,401 6,000
Interest income  185 190
Actual return on assets excluding interest income  576  (96) 
Employer contributions - -
Employee contributions  3  4
Benefits paid (242) (697)
Assets in scheme at 31 December  5,923 5,401

Actual return on assets  761 94

Analysis of change in defined benefit obligation: 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Liabilities in scheme at 1 January 4,439 5,173
Current service cost  38 37
Interest cost on scheme liabilities  151 162
Employee contributions  3 4
Remeasurement arising from changes in assumptions  843 (210)
Remeasurement arising from experience (15) (30)
Benefits paid (242) (697)
Liabilities in scheme at 31 December 5,217 4,439
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Defined benefit cost: Year to 31 December 2016 
£’000

Year to 31 December 2015 
£’000

Current service cost and total operating charge  38 37
Net interest on the defined benefit asset (8) (9)
Total recognised in Profit or Loss  30 28
Remeasurements in Other Comprehensive Income (52) 4
Defined benefit cost (22) 32

Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: Year to 31 December 2016 
£’000

Year to 31 December 2015 
£’000

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation  828 (240)
Actual return on assets excluding interest income (576) 96
Change in the effect of the asset ceiling excluding amounts in net interest (304) 148
Total recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (52) 4

Change in recognised defined benefit asset: 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Recognised defined benefit asset at 1 January 234 266
Defined benefit cost  22 (32)
Employer contributions - -
Recognised defined benefit asset at 31 December 256 234

Change in effect of the asset ceiling: 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Effect of asset ceiling at 1 January 728 561
Interest on the effect of the asset ceiling 26 19
Change in effect of the asset ceiling excluding interest (304) 148
Effect of asset ceiling at 31 December 450 728

(e) Tunstall Scheme

The split of assets in the Tunstall scheme has been as follows:

31 December 2016 
%

31 December 2015 
%

Equities  49 49
Fixed Interest Gilts  25 25
Index Linked Gilts  25 25
Other  1 1
Total %  100  100 

23. Pension schemes – continued
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Balance Sheet position 31 December 2016 
£’000

31 December 2015 
£’000

Total fair value of assets  2,616 2,173
Present value of defined benefit obligation (2,702) (1,977)
Surplus in scheme (86) 196
Asset not recognised  - -
Recognised defined benefit (liability)/asset  (86)  196 

Defined benefit cost: 31 December 2016 
£’000

31 December 2015 
£’000

Current service cost and total operating charge  21  21 
Net interest on the defined benefit asset (8) (4)
Total recognised in Profit or Loss  13 17
Remeasurements in Other Comprehensive Income  292 (80)
Defined benefit cost  305 (63)

Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: 31 December 2016 
£’000

31 December 2015 
£’000

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation  674 (89)
Actual return on assets excluding interest income (382) 9
Change in the effect of the asset ceiling excluding amounts in net interest  -  - 
Total recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  292 (80)

The net pension liability represents the present value of the excess of expected future benefits over expected future premiums on this basis.

Analysis of change in assets: 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Assets in scheme at 1 January 2,173 2,171
Interest income  78 73
Actual return on assets excluding interest income  382 (9)
Employer contributions  23 17
Benefits paid (40) (79)
Assets in scheme at 31 December 2,616 2,173

Actual return on assets  460 64

Analysis of change in defined benefit obligation: 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Liabilities in scheme at 1 January 1,977 2,055
Current service cost  21  21 
Interest cost on scheme liabilities  70 69
Remeasurement arising from changes in assumptions  673 (88)
Remeasurement arising from experience  1  (1) 
Benefits paid (40) (79)
Liabilities in scheme at 31 December 2,702 1,977
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Change in recognised defined benefit asset: 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Recognised defined benefit asset at 1 January 196 116
Defined benefit cost (305) 63
Employer contributions  23  17 
Recognised defined benefit (liability)/asset at 31 December (86) 196

Change in effect of the asset ceiling: 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Effect of asset ceiling at 1 January - -
Interest on the effect of the asset ceiling - -
Change in effect of the asset ceiling excluding interest - -
Effect of asset ceiling at 31 December - -

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

Management fee to Orion Insurance Management Limited 139 138
Rent to Orion Insurance Management Limited  20  20 

24. Related party disclosures
Control

The Society is controlled by its members, in particular through the Annual Meeting of delegates at the High Court.

Transactions

The Board, the Chief Executive, or their immediate family held various policies on standard terms (including the right to bonuses where 
appropriate) throughout the year. The aggregate premiums payable for the year by the Directors amounted to £7,277 (2015: £954) in 
respect of the Society’s products. The Court in Guernsey had the following transactions with Orion Insurance Management Limited, an 
insurance management company that is owned by members of the Court Committee of Management:

The Society has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by FRS 102 not to disclose transactions with members of the group headed 
by The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited on the grounds that those entities are controlled within that group, and the 
entities are included in consolidated financial statements. The exemption only applies to wholly owned subsidiaries.

23. Pension schemes – continued
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25. Risk Management
The key risks that the Society are exposed to and the way the Society manages them is set out as follows:

1) Insurance Risk

Insurance risk is the risk that arises from uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance liabilities. Long term 
insurance risk arises from mortality, morbidity, persistency and expense variances. Systems are in place to measure, monitor and 
mitigate exposure to all of these risks.

The Society’s technical provisions and maturity profile as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

The table below shows the technical provisions as at 31 December 2015:

Details of the assumptions used to calculate the technical provisions are set out in Note 20.

The impact on the technical provisions to key assumptions are shown below:

Technical provisions at 31 December 2016 Within 1 year 
£’000

1-5 years
£’000

5-10 years 
£’000

Over 10 years 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Long Term Business Provision 18,378 22,202 16,531 58,262 115,373
Technical provision for linked liabilities 89 595 1,137 34,582 36,403
General Business Provision 3,452 - - - 3,452
Outstanding Claims 2,005 - - - 2,005
Total 23,924 22,797 17,668 92,844 157,233

Technical provisions at 31 December 2015 Within 1 year 
£’000

1-5 years
£’000

5-10 years 
£’000

Over 10 years 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Long Term Business Provision 17,604 19,258 19,642 57,099 113,603
Technical provision for linked liabilities 82 539 1,082 31,402 33,105
General Business Provision 3,270 - - - 3,270
Outstanding Claims 1,904 - - - 1,904
Total 22,860 19,797 20,724 88,501 151,882

Assumptions

2016 2015 

Change in 
Technical 

Provisions 
£’000

Impact in %

Change in 
Technical 

Provisions 
£’000

Impact in %

Reduction in risk-free rates by 0.5% 3,281 2.2 3,171 2.2
Increase in mortality by 10% 578 0.4 377 0.3
Increase in claims inception by 10% 504 0.3 726 0.5
Decrease in claims recovery by 10% 164 0.1 457 0.3
Increase in expenses by 10% 2,708 1.8 3,072 2.1
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25. Risk Management – continued
2) Financial Risk

The Society is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. 
The most important components of this financial risk are market risks which include equity price risk, property valuation risk, interest rate risk, 
currency exchange risk and credit spread risk. The Society also faces financial risks in respect of counterparty default exposures.

Each of the exposures to risk are analysed regularly to assess their likely impact and probability. The overall level of risk is assessed in 
the calculation of the Society’s Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) in accordance with the PRA Rulebook, which takes into account the 
correlation of individual risks. The Board is responsible for reviewing the risks faced by the Society and approving the required level of 
capital to be held against each risk element.

The assets held in the insurance funds as at 31 December 2016 split by duration are as follows:

3) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that as a result of market movements the 
Society may be exposed to fluctuations in the value of its assets, the 
amount of its liabilities, or the income from its assets. Sources of 
general market risk include movements in interest rates, equity 
prices and property prices.

The investment strategy is kept under regular review by the 
Investment Committee. The Investment Committee also monitors 
all investment activity on behalf of the Board.

(a) Equity price risk

Holdings in equities are by their nature subject to market 
movement. In order to mitigate this risk, the Society employs 
Quilter Cheviot as an external investment manager. In addition, 
the acceptable level of equity holdings for the Society’s With Profit 
funds is governed by the Principles and Practices of Financial 
Management (PPFM) for each fund.

As at 31 December 2016, the Society held £27.1m (2015: 
£39.3m) of individual equities in respect of non-linked liabilities. 
This has reduced by £12.2m as a result of de-risking exercises 
carried out in mid 2016. £19.5m of these holdings were eligible 
for transitional equity stress of 24.2% reduction in value whereas 
the remainder had the full equity stress of 37.6% reduction were 
applied to them. These stresses would lead to a 14.1% decrease 
(2015: 20.9% decrease) in the Society’s surplus capital, before 
allowing for correlation, as with-profit policy asset shares would 
absorb a significant part of the reduction.

(b) Property price risk

As for equity, property holdings are by their nature subject to 
market movement. In order to mitigate this risk the Society 
employs Aston Rose to manage its portfolio of individual 
residential and commercial properties across the UK.

The assets held in the insurance funds as at 31 December 2015 split by duration are as follows:

Assets as at 31 December 2016 No maturity 
£’000

Within 1 year 
£’000

1-5 years
£’000

5-10 years 
£’000

Over 10 years 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Land & Buildings 7,875 - - - - 7,875
Equity investments 27,068 - - - - 27,068
Fixed interest securities - 3,950 27,013 31,941 27,916 90,820
Assets held to cover linked liabilities 33,692 486 114 1,737 374 36,403
Cash & Other 3,007 15,750 2,850 - - 21,607
Total 71,642 20,186 29,977 33,678 28,290 183,773

Assets as at 31 December 2015 No maturity 
£’000

Within 1 year 
£’000

1-5 years
£’000

5-10 years 
£’000

Over 10 years 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Land & Buildings 9,775 - - - - 9,775
Equity investments 39,341 - - - - 39,341
Fixed interest securities - 4,021 22,914 34,697 17,357 78,989
Assets held to cover linked liabilities 30,215 2,229 205 456 - 33,105
Cash & Other 4,656 6,915 1,516 - - 13,087
Total 83,987 13,165 24,635 35,153 17,357 174,297
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As at 31 December 2016, the Society held £7.9m (2015: £9.8m) 
of property in respect of non-linked liabilities. A 25% reduction in 
this value would lead to a 4.9% decrease (2015: 5.7% decrease) 
in the Society’s surplus capital on a Solvency II basis, before 
allowing for correlation, as with-profit policy asset shares would 
absorb a significant part of the reduction.

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk exists for all assets and liabilities which are sensitive 
to changes in the term structure of interest rates or interest rate 
volatility. Due to the nature of the Society’s products, the long term 
business funds may be impacted by these interest rate movements.

Asset-liability matching is performed to broadly match expected 
liability cash flows on a realistic basis in each fund. However, 
this can never be exact due to the uncertainties involved. The 
down shock on the risk-free rates would lead to a 2.6% decrease 
(2015: 7.3% decrease) in the Society’s surplus capital, 
before allowing for correlation.

(d) Exchange rate risk

The Society has a number of directly held equity investments 
in foreign currencies in with-profit and unit-linked funds which 
present a minor exchange rate risk. The Society’s holdings shown 
by currencies are listed below:

The reduction from 2015 to 2016 is due to the de-risking exercise carried out in mid 2016.

Exchange rate risk is not hedged and so a change in the exchange rate will lead to a corresponding change in the value of assets. A 25% 
change in the exchange rate would lead to a 2.3% decrease (2015: 4.0% decrease) in the Society’s surplus capital, before allowing for 
correlation, as with-profit policy asset shares would absorb a significant part of the reduction.

(e) Credit spread risk

Credit spread risk results from the sensitivity of the value of assets and liabilities to changes in the level or volatility of credit spreads over 
the risk-free interest rate term structure.

The terms of the Society’s investment mandates require an appropriate spread of holdings within specified parameters, with the majority 
of assets being ‘A’ rated bonds or higher. There are also limits on the maximum exposure to any single counterparty and on the level 
of exposure to lower rated bonds. This results in a relatively modest exposure to lower rated and hence more risky assets within the 
investment funds. The Society considers regular reviews from the fund manager so that the risk within the funds remains appropriate.

At 31 December 2016 the Society held £95.1m (2015: £76.5m) of listed fixed interest securities. The significant increase from 2015 is 
the result of the reduction in equity-backing ratio mainly in OIF which resulted to larger holding of listed fixed interest securities. These are 
analysed by credit rating below:

Equity market values by currency 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

US Dollar 6,326 6,689
Euro 1,872 2,126
Swiss Franc 310 421
Swedish Krona 108 127
Danish Krona 41 82
Total 8,657 9,445

No financial assets are past due or impaired at the reporting date and management expects no significant losses from non-performance by 
these counterparties. A widening spread on these assets would lead to a 6.9% decrease (2015: 4.9% decrease) in the Society’s surplus 
capital, before allowing for correlation, as with-profit policy asset shares would absorb a significant part of the reduction.

Credit rating 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

AAA 6,249 5,293
AA 58,831 53,383
A 20,409 13,024
BBB 9,590 4,822
Below BBB - -
Not rated - -

95,079 76,522
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4) Counterparty default risk

Counterparty default risk is the risk of loss incurred by the Society if 
a counterparty fails to perform its contractual obligations, including 
failure to perform them in a timely manner.

The Society’s exposures are mostly in respect of debtors, but also 
the £23.1m of cash balances held in respect of the long term 
insurance funds at 31 December 2016 (2015: £13.3m). The cash 
deposits are spread between Royal London Cash Management, 
its investment manager Quilter Cheviot and over a number of high 
street banks and building societies.

The Society has a low level of exposure to reinsurers and this 
is declining with the maturity of the portfolios. There are not 
therefore any specific actions envisaged to manage reinsurer 
default risk. Counterparty default stress would lead to a 1.6% 
decrease (2015: 3.7% decrease) in the Society’s surplus capital, 
before allowing for correlation, as with-profit policy asset shares 
would absorb a significant part of the reduction.

5) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is that of not having sufficient liquid resources to meet 
changing market conditions and being unable to meet obligations 
as they fall due, or being able to secure them only at excessive 
cost. Liquidity is required to honour all cashflow commitments, 
both on and off balance sheet, and these are generally met through 
cashflows supplemented by assets readily convertible to cash.

The management of liquidity is consistent with the economic 
capital, regulatory and operational needs across the Society. The 
Board is responsible for defining the risk appetite and monitoring 
liquidity risk exposure. Liquidity risk oversight is performed by 
the Investment Committee. The Investment Committee sets and 
monitors appropriate asset ranges bearing in mind the liquidity 
needs for each fund.

26. Chief Actuary and With-Profits 
Actuary
Mr Trevor Fannin of Willis Towers Watson held the With-Profits 
Actuary and Chief Actuary roles during 2016.  In accordance with 
section 77 of the Friendly Societies Act 1992 the Society has 
requested Mr Fannin to provide certain particulars and they have 
confirmed the following information:

That neither Mr Fannin or his family were members of the Society 
throughout the year; neither Mr Fannin, or his family, have any 
pecuniary interests in the Society; and the aggregate amount of 
fees paid to Willis Towers Watson in 2016 were £224,000 (2015: 
£196,000) exclusive of Value Added Tax.

27. Creditor payment policy
The Society’s policy is to settle creditors within the credit terms 
specified, unless the transaction is subject to dispute.

28. Approval of financial statements
These financial statements were approved by the Board 
on 6 April 2017.

29. Prior Year Restatement
In May 2016 a revised Financial Reporting Standard 103 
(Amendments to FRS 103 Insurance Contracts Solvency II) was 
issued to reflect the implementation, from 1 January 2016 of the 
Solvency II Directive. As permitted under the revised standard, 
the Society has changed its accounting policy for the recognition 
and measurement of technical provisions to be based on the 
rules under the Solvency II Directive. This is a voluntary change 
in accounting policy in accordance with FRS 102.10. The Board 
consider that this change results in a more appropriate reflection 
of the financial performance and capital position of the Society. 
A further benefit is that all of the Society’s financial reporting 
is on a consistent basis.

Under the revised accounting policy the realistic value of the 
liabilities allowing for all future expected payments and not just 
future guaranteed benefits is calculated. For further details of 
the calculation methodology see Note 20. The adjustments to 
technical provisions resulting from the change in accounting 
policy are matched by an equal and opposite change in the 
Fund for Future Appropriations. Details of the changes and the 
restatement of comparatives for the period ended 31 December 
2015 are shown on the following pages.
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Consolidated & Society Technical Account - 
Long Term Business - 2015

Adjustment 
reference

2015 as previously 
reported 

£’000 

Adjustment 
£’000

2015 restated 
£’000

Long term business provision
Gross amount 1 5,385 542 5,927
Reinsurers’ share 3 (14) (176) (190)

5,371 366 5,737
Other Expenditure
Net operating expenses 2 (2,765) 40 (2,725)
Amortisation of PVIF (210) - (210)
Investment expenses and charges (471) - (471)
Taxation attributable to Long Term Business 36 - 36

(3,410)  40 (3,370)

Total Technical Charges (23,381) 406 (22,975)

Surplus of technical income over technical charges 633 406 1,039

Transfer from/(to) Non-Technical Account 565 565
Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations (1,198) (406) (1,604)
Balance on Technical Account - - -

Explanation of adjustments made to the consolidated income and expenditure technical account for the year ended 31 December 2015

Adjustment Description

1. Recalculation of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.

2. Acquisition costs are not deferred under Solvency II regulations.

3. Recalculation of reinsurers share of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.

Explanation of adjustments made to the Consolidated and Society’s Statement of Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 
31 December 2015

Adjustment Description

1. Recalculation of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.

2. Acquisition costs are not deferred under Solvency II regulations.

3. Recalculation of reinsurers share of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.

Consolidated and Society’s Statement of 
Other Comprehensive Income

Adjustment 
reference

2015 as previously 
reported 

£’000 

Adjustment 
£’000

2015 restated 
£’000

Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations 
(Technical Account) 1,198 406 1,604

Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations 
(Non-Technical Account) (2,467) - (2,467)

Pension schemes actuarial gain/(loss) (76) - (76)
Other comprehensive income (1,345) 406 (939)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet - Assets - 2014 Adjustment 
reference

2014 Under FRS 
102 & FRS 103 as 

previously reported 
£’000 

Adjustment 
£’000

2014 restated 
£’000

Reinsurers share of Long term business provision 3 404 (26) 378

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 1,336 - 1,336
Deferred acquisition costs 2 415 (415) -
Other prepayments and accrued income 148 - 148

1,899 (415) 1,484

Total Assets 264,567 (441) 264,126

Consolidated Balance Sheet -Liabilities - 2014 Adjustment 
reference

2014 Under FRS 
102 & FRS 103 as 

previously reported 
£’000 

Adjustment 
£’000

2014 restated 
£’000

Fund for future appropriations 1, 2, 3 42,470 (20,136) 22,334

Technical provisions

Long term business provision - 
Insurance and participating investment contracts 1 100,058 19,815 119,873

Long term business provision - 
non-participating investment contracts 1 16 (120) (104)

Technical provision for linked liabilities - 
investment contracts 2,233 - 2,233

Technical provision for linked liabilities - 
insurance contracts 30,620 - 30,620

Claims outstanding 2,303 - 2,303
General business provision (Guernsey) 3,142 - 3,142

138,372 19,695 158,067

Total Liabilities 264,567 (441) 264,126

Explanation of adjustments made to the Consolidated Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 December 2014

Adjustment Description

1. Recalculation of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.

2. Acquisition costs are not deferred under Solvency II regulations.

3. Recalculation of reinsurers share of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.

29. Prior Year Restatement – continued
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Society Balance Sheet - Assets - 2014 Adjustment 
reference

2014 Under FRS 
102 & FRS 103 as 

previously reported 
£’000 

Adjustment 
£’000

2014 restated 
£’000

Reinsurers share of Long term business provision 3 404 (26) 378

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 1,336 - 1,336
Deferred acquisition costs 2 415 (415) -
Other prepayments and accrued income 147 - 147

1,898 (415) 1,483

Total Assets 247,749 (441) 247,308

Society Balance Sheet - Liabilities - 2014 Adjustment 
reference

2014 Under FRS 
102 & FRS 103 as 

previously reported 
£’000 

Adjustment 
£’000

2014 restated 
£’000

Fund for future appropriations 1, 2, 3 42,470 (20,136) 22,334

Technical provisions

Long term business provision - 
Insurance and participating investment contracts 1 100,058 19,815 119,873

Long term business provision - 
non-participating investment contracts 1 16 (120) (104)

Technical provision for linked liabilities - 
investment contracts 2,233 - 2,233

Technical provision for linked liabilities - 
insurance contracts 30,620 - 30,620

Claims outstanding 2,303 - 2,303
General business provision (Guernsey) 3,142 - 3,142

138,372 19,695 158,067

Total Liabilities 247,749 (441) 247,308

Explanation of adjustments made to the Society Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 December 2014

Adjustment Description

1. Recalculation of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.

2. Acquisition costs are not deferred under Solvency II regulations.

3. Recalculation of reinsurers share of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet - Assets - 2015 Adjustment 
reference

2015 as previously 
reported 

£’000 

Adjustment 
£’000

2015 restated 
£’000

Reinsurers share of Long term business provision 3 390 (202) 188

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 1,249 - 1,249
Deferred acquisition costs 2 376 (376) -
Other prepayments and accrued income 295 - 295

1,920 (376) 1,544

Total Assets 263,642 (578) 263,064

Consolidated Balance Sheet -Liabilities - 2015 Adjustment 
reference

2015 as previously 
reported 

£’000 

Adjustment 
£’000

2015 restated 
£’000

Fund for future appropriations 1, 2, 3 41,201 (19,730) 21,471

Technical provisions

Long term business provision - 
Insurance and participating investment contracts 1 94,439 19,260 113,699

Long term business provision - 
non-participating investment contracts 1 12 (108) (96)

Technical provision for linked liabilities - 
investment contracts 2,078 - 2,078

Technical provision for linked liabilities - 
insurance contracts 31,027 - 31,027

Claims outstanding 1,904 - 1,904
General business provision (Guernsey) 3,270 - 3,270

132,730 19,152 151,882

Total Liabilities 263,642 (578) 263,064

Explanation of adjustments made to the Consolidated Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 December 2015

Adjustment Description

1. Recalculation of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.

2. Acquisition costs are not deferred under Solvency II regulations.

3. Recalculation of reinsurers share of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.

29. Prior Year Restatement – continued
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Society Balance Sheet - Assets Adjustment 
reference

2015 as previously 
reported 

£’000 

Adjustment 
£’000

2015 restated 
£’000

Reinsurers share of Long term business provision 3 390 (202) 188

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 1,095 - 1,095
Deferred acquisition costs 2 376 (376) -
Other prepayments and accrued income 234 - 234

1,705 (376) 1,329

Total Assets 247,208 (578) 246,630

Society Balance Sheet - Liabilities Adjustment 
reference

2015 as previously 
reported 

£’000 

Adjustment 
£’000

2015 restated 
£’000

Fund for future appropriations 1, 2, 3 41,201 (19,730) 21,471

Technical provisions

Long term business provision - 
Insurance and participating investment contracts 1 94,439 19,260 113,699

Long term business provision - 
non-participating investment contracts 1 12 (108) (96)

Technical provision for linked liabilities - 
investment contracts 2,078 - 2,078

Technical provision for linked liabilities - 
insurance contracts 31,027 - 31,027

Claims outstanding 1,904 - 1,904
General business provision (Guernsey) 3,270 - 3,270

132,730 19,152 151,882

Total Liabilities 247,208 (578) 246,630

Explanation of adjustments made to the Society Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 December 2015

Adjustment Description

1. Recalculation of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.

2. Acquisition costs are not deferred under Solvency II regulations.

3. Recalculation of reinsurers share of technical provisions on a Solvency II basis.
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Abbreviations
AGM Annual General Meeting

AOF Scheme The Ancient Order of Foresters 1978 Retirement & Death 
Benefit Scheme

AP Annual Premiums

API Annualised Premium Income

APE Annual Premium Equivalent (representing annualised 
new regular premiums plus 10% of single premiums)

BEL Best Estimate Liability

BRCC Business Risk and Compliance Committee

CIF Court Investment Fund

CRF Court Reserve Fund

DAC Deferred Acquisition Costs

DBF Discretionary Benefit Fund

EIOPA European Insurance and Occupational Pensions Authority

FCA Financial Conduct Authority

FFA Fund for Future Appropriations

Foresters The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited

FRS Financial Reporting Standard

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

GAO Guaranteed Annuity Option

GBF Group Business Fund

GCF Group Capital Fund

GDPR General Data Protection Regulation

GRF General Reserve Fund

HCR High Chief Ranger

HMRC HM Revenue and Customs

IBNR Incurred But Not Reported

ICA Individual Capital Assessment

IFA Independent Financial Adviser

JISA Junior Individual Savings Account

KPI Key Performance Indicator

KRI Key Risk Indicator

Leek Leek Assurance Collecting Society Limited (transferred to 
the Society on 31 December 2005)

LISA Lifetime Individual Savings Account

LTB Long Term Business

LTBP Long Term Business Provision

MCR Minimum Capital Requirement

MVR Market Value Reduction

NED Non-Executive Director

NISA New Individual Savings Account

NP Non-Profit

OIF Order Insurance Fund

ORSA Own Risk and Solvency Assessment

PEF Pure Endowment Fund

POIS Post Office Insurance Society

PPFM Principles and Practices of Financial Management

PRA Prudential Regulation Authority

PRIIPs Packaged Retail Insurance-based Investment Products 

RCSA Risk and Control Assessment

S&D Sick & Death Fund

SCR Solvency Capital Requirement

SFCR Solvency and Financial Condition report

SID Senior Independent Director

Society The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited

STRGL Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

TCF Treating Customers Fairly

Tunstall Tunstall Assurance Friendly Society Limited (transferred 
to the Society on 31 December 2003)

Tunstall 
scheme

The Tunstall and District Assurance Collecting Society 
Staff Superannuation Fund Scheme

WP With-Profits

WPA With-Profits Actuary





Society Information
Foresters Friendly Society (the Society) is the trading name of The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited. 
The Society is registered and incorporated under the Friendly Societies Act 1992, registered number 511F. 
The Society’s registered office is 29 – 33 Shirley Road, Southampton, SO15 3EW. 

t: 02380 229655 e: mail@forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk 
w: www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk
The Society is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Aurhority (PRA) and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the Prudential 
Regulation Authority (PRA) registration number 110029. The Society is a member of the Association of Financial mutuals (AFM).


